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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED (“Issuer” / “Company”)

A public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date and Place of Incorporation: May 18, 1995, Delhi India; CIN: U74899DL1995PLC068688:
PAN:AAACT2834L Registration No: 14.01513
Telephone No.: +91-11 49724000; Fax No.: +91-11 4972 4051
Email: cs@satyamicrocapital.com; Website: www.satyamicrocapital.com
General Information Document for issue of Debentures on a private placement basis
Dated: November 29, 2023

Issue of listed, rated, senior, unsecured/secured/subordinated, transferable, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures (the “Issue”).

Period of Validity of General Information Document: This General Information Document shall be valid for a
period of one (1) year from the Issue Opening Date of the first offer of Debentures made by the Company
under this General Information Document. In respect of the offer of Debentures during the period of validity
of this General Information Document, the Company shall file with the Stock Exchange, a Key Information
Document with respect to each offer of Debentures, containing details of the private placement and material
changes, if any, in the information including the financial information provided in this General Information
Document, or any material developments, as applicable

Key Information Document: Investors to note that each Series of Debentures offered pursuant to this General
Information Document shall be subject to the terms and conditions pertaining to the Debentures outlined
hereunder as modified/ supplemented by the terms of the respective Key Information Documents filed with
the Stock Exchange in relation to such Series and other documents in relation to such issuance including the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter(s). The terms and conditions contained in this General
Information Document shall be read in conjunction with the provisions (as may be mutually agreed between
the Company and respective Debentures Holders from time to time) contained in the respective Key
Information Documents, and in case of any repugnancy, inconsistency or where there is a conflict between the
terms and conditions as are stipulated in the respective Key Information Documents on one hand, and the
terms and conditions in the General Information Document on the other, the provisions contained in the Key
Information Documents shall prevail over and override the provisions of this General Information Documents
for all intents and purposes.

PART A: DISCLOSURES AS PER SEBI DEBT LISTING REGULATIONS:

** Please refer pages 1-6 for all information required to be placed on the front page of a general information
document as per Schedule I of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2023.

Please see below the disclosures as required under the terms of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations (as defined
below):

S.no | Particulars Relevant Disclosure

1. Corporate Identity Number of the | U74899DL1995PLC068688
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S.no | Particulars Relevant Disclosure
Issuer:
2. Permanent Account Number of the | AAACT2834L
Issuer:
3. Date and place of Incorporation of | Date of incorporation: May 18, 1995
the Issuer: Place of incorporation: Delhi, India
4. Latest registration / identification | 14.01513
number issued by any regulatory
authority which regulates the Issuer
(in this case the RBI):
5. Registered Office address of the | 519, 5th floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,
Issuer: Phase-1, Delhi- 110020
6. Corporate Office address of the | 519, 5th floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,
Issuer: Phase-1, Delhi- 110020
7. Telephone No of the Issuer: +91-11 49724000
8. Website address of the Issuer: www.satyamicrocapital.com
9. Email address of the Issuer: cs@satyamicrocapital.com
10. | Details of Compliance officer of the | Name: Choudhary Runveer Krishnan
Issuer: Telephone Number: +91 11 49724000
Email address: runveer.krishanan(@satyamicrocapital.com
11. | Details of Company Secretary of the | Name: Choudhary Runveer Krishnan
Issuer: Telephone Number: +91 11 49724000
Email address: runveer.krishanan@satyamicrocapital.com
12. | Details of Chief Financial Officer of | Name: Ms. Vandita Kaul
the Issuer: Telephone Number: +91 11 49724000
Email address: vandita.kaul@satyamicrocapital.com
13. | Details of Principal Promoter: . Mr. Vivek Tiwari
13A | Promoters of the Issuer . Mr. Vivek Tiwari
. Mr. Ratnesh Tiwari
. Ms. Vandna Tiwari
. Ms. Sadhna Tiwari
. Koshish Marketing Solutions Private Limited
o Gojo & Company, Inc.
14. 2:::::“ of debenture trustee for the As per Key Information Document for each issuance
15. | Details of lead manager(s) | Not applicable as the Debentures under this General
(applicable in case of public issue): Information Document are being issued on private
placement basis.
16. | Details of statutory auditors of the | Name: S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Issuer: Address: 51-52, Sector-18, Udyog Vihar, Phase-1V,
Gurugram, Haryana-122016
S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
LOgOZ Chartered Accountants
Telephone Number: +91 124 481 4444
Email address: vinesh.jain@sndhawan.com
Contact person: Vinesh Jain
17. | Details of credit rating agency for As per Key Information Document for each issuance
the Issue:
18. | Details of Arranger As per Key Information Document for each issuance
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S.no

Particulars

Relevant Disclosure

19.

A disclosure that a copy of the issue
document has been delivered for
filing to the Registrar of Companies
as required under sub-section (4) of
Section 26 of Companies Act, 2013
(18 0f2013)

Not applicable as the Debentures under this General
Information Document are being issued on private
placement basis under Section 42 of Companies Act, 2013.

20. | Date of this general information | November 29, 2023
document:

21. | Type of general information | This General Information Document is being issued in
document: relation to the private placement basis of Debentures

(which are being issued under the terms hereof).

22. | The nature, number, price and | As per Key Information Document for each issuance
amount of securities offered and
issue size (base issue or green shoe),
as may be applicable:

23. | The aggregate amount proposed to | Not applicable as the Debentures under this General
be raised through all the stages of | Information Document are being issued on private
offers of non-convertible securities | placement basis under Section 42 of Companies Act, 2013.
made through the shelf prospectus
under section 31 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) (applicable in
case of public issue):

24. | Details of Registrar to the Issue: As per Key Information Document for each issuance

25. | Issue Schedule As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

26. | The credit rating (cross reference of | As per Key Information Document for each issuance.
press release to be provided) of the
Issue along with all the ratings
obtained by the Issuer for the Issue:

27. | The name(s) of the stock exchanges | The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale
where the securities are proposed to | debt market of the BSE Limited / Bombay Stock Exchange
be listed: (“BSE”).

28. | The details of eligible investors | As per Key Information Document for each issuance.
(applicable in case of private
placement):

29. | Coupon rate, coupon payment | Please refer to Section 5.377 (Issue Details) of this
frequency, redemption date, | General Information Document for the coupon rate, the
redemption amount and details of | coupon payment frequency, and the redemption date and
debenture trustee redemption amount in respect of the Debentures.

30. | Details about underwriting of the | Not applicable.
issue  including the amount
undertaken to be underwritten by
the underwriters:

31. | Inclusion of a compliance clause in | Please refer Section 8.9 below

relation to electronic book
mechanism and details pertaining to
the uploading the general
information document on the
Electronic Book Provider Platform
(applicable in case of private
placement).
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S.no

Particulars

Relevant Disclosure

32.

Terms in relation to electronic book
mechanism and details pertaining to
the uploading of the General
Information  Document on  the
Electronic Provider Platform.

**Please note that the Company shall have the option
to access EBP Platform for the issuance of each Series
of Debentures, depending on the size of such Series.

This Issue, offer and subscription to the Debentures
constituting the relevant Series may be made by the
Eligible Investors through the electronic book mechanism
as prescribed by SEBI and BSE under the EBP Guidelines
(as defined below) by placing bids on the EBP Platform
during the period of the Issue. The Eligible Investors
should also refer to the operational guidelines of the EBP
in this respect. The disclosures required pursuant to the
EBP Guidelines (as defined below) are set out herein
below:

Issue composition —| As per Key Information
Details of size of the | Document for each issuance
Issue including green
shoe option, if any
Interest Rate | As per Key Information
Parameter Document for each issuance
Bid opening and | As per Key Information
closing date Document for each issuance
Minimum Bid lot As per Key Igformation
Document for each issuance
Manner of bidding in | As per Key Information
the Issue Document for each issuance
Manner of As per Key Information
allotment in the Document for each issuance
Issue
Manner of As per Key Information
settlement in the Document for each issuance
Issue
Trading Lot Size As per Key I-nformation
Document for each issuance
Settlement cycle | As per Key Information
[T+1/ T+2] where T | Document for each issuance
refers to the date of
bidding/ issue day

33.

Anchor portion and Anchor Investors

In case the Issuer opts for the anchor portion in accordance
with Chapter VI of the Debentures Master Circular, the
details of such anchor portion and anchor investors shall
be disclosed in the relevant Key Information Document for
each issuance.

34.

Specific declaration requested by
BSE: non-equity regulatory capital

As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Background

This General Information Document (as defined below) is related to the Debentures to be issued by Satya
Microcapital Limited (the “Issuer” or “Company”) on a private placement basis and contains relevant




General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

information and disclosures required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of the
Debentures comprised in the Issue and described under this General Information Document has been
authorised by the Issuer through the resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Issuer on July 03, 2023
and the Board of Directors of the Issuer on February 27, 2023 and the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company. Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders dated July
03, 2023 in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has been authorised to
raise funds, by way of issuance of non-convertible debentures, upon such terms and conditions as the Board
may think fit for aggregate amounts not exceeding INR 3,500 Crores (Indian Rupees Three Thousand Five
Hundred Crores only). The present issue of Debentures in terms of this General Information Document is
within the overall powers of the Board as per the above shareholder resolution(s).

Issuer’s Absolute Responsibility

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this
General Information Document contains all information with regard to the Issuer and the Issue
which is material in the context of the Issue, that the information contained in the General
Information Document is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading, that the
opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly stated and that there are no other facts, the
omission of which make this document as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any
such opinions or intentions misleading.

GENERAL RISK

Investment in non-convertible securities is risky, and investors should not invest any funds in such
securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors are advised to take
an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully before investing in this offering. For taking an
investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue including the risks involved in it.
Specific attention of investors is invited to statement of risk factors contained under Section 3 of this issue
document. These risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of all risks and considerations
relevant to the non-convertible securities or investor’s decision to purchase such securities.

LISTING

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market of the BSE Limited (“BSE”)
(“Designated Stock Exchange”).

KEY ISSUE DETAILS
ISSUE SCHEDU

Issue Opening Date Issue Closing Date Pay In Date Deemed
Date of
Allotment

As per Key Information | As per Key Information Document | As per Key Information | As per Key

Document for each | for each issuance. Document for each | Information

issuance. issuance. Document for
each
issuance.

The Issuer reserves the right to change the Issue programme including the Deemed Date of Allotment (as
defined hereinafter) at its sole discretion in accordance with the timelines specified in the Operational
Guidelines without giving any reasons or prior notice. In the event any Issue is made through the electronic
book platform in accordance with the EBP Guidelines, the Issue will be open for bidding as per bidding
window that would be communicated through BSE BOND-EBP Platform.

Coupon Coupon Payment Frequency Redemption Date Redemption
Amount

As per Key Information | As per Key Information Document | As per Key Information | As per Key

Document for each | for each issuance. Document for each | Information

issuance. issuance. Document
for each
issuance.
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DISCLAIMER

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS CONTAIN NO UNSUBSTANTIATED FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS. TO THE EXTENT THERE ARE ANY UNSUBSTANTIATED FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS UNDER THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT, SUCH STATEMENTS
SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO BE NULL AND VOID.
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings given below in this
General Information Document.

Act or Companies Act

means the Companies Act, 2013, and shall include any re-enactment, amendment or
modification of the Companies Act, 2013, as in effect from time to time.

Allot/Allotment/Allotte
d

means the allotment of the Debentures pursuant to this Issue.

Applicable Law means all applicable statutes, enactments or acts of any legislative body in India, laws,
ordinances, rules, bye-laws, regulations, notifications, guidelines, policies, directions,
directives and orders of any Governmental Authority and any modifications or re-
enactments thereof.

Applicable Accounting | means the generally accepted accounting principles, standards and practices in India or

Standards any other prevailing accounting standard in India as may be applicable, and includes the
Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS).

Applicant means a person who has submitted a completed Application Form to the Issuer, and
"Applicants" shall be construed accordingly.

Application Form The form used by the recipient of this General Information Document, to apply for
subscription to the Debentures, which is in the form annexed to this General
Information Document and marked as Annexure IV,

Application Money means the subscription amounts paid by the Debenture Holders at the time of
submitting the Application Form.

Assets means, for any date of determination, the assets of the Issuer on such date as the same

would be determined in accordance with Applicable Accounting Standards.

Beneficial Owners

means the holders of the Debentures in dematerialised form whose names are recorded
as such with the Depository(ies) in the Register of Beneficial Owners, and "Beneficial
Owner" shall be construed accordingly.

Board / Board of The Board of Directors of the Issuer.
Directors
BSE means BSE Limited.

Business Day

means:

(a) subject to (b) and (c) below, means any day on which commercial banks in
Delhi, India are open for business;

(b) for the period commencing on the "Issue Opening Date" set out in the General
Information Document until the "Issue Closing Date" set out in the General
Information Document, any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or a public
holiday under Section 25 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881), on which
commercial banks in Delhi, India are open for business; and

(c) for the period commencing on the "Issue Closing Date" set out in the General
Information Document until the listing of the Debentures in accordance with the
DTD, any trading day of BSE, other than a Saturday, Sunday or a bank holiday,
as specified by SEBI,

and "Business Days" shall be construed accordingly

CDSL

means the Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

CERSAI

means the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest
of India.
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Client Loan

means each loan disbursed by the Issuer as a lender, and "Client Loans" shall be
construed accordingly.

Company/Issuer/ Satya
Microcapital Limited

Satya Microcapital Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956having corporate identification number
U74899DL1995PLC068688 and registered as a non-banking financial company with
the Reserve Bank of India, having its registered office at 519, 5th floor, DLF Prime
Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, Delhi- 110020.

Conditions Precedent

means the conditions precedent set out under the heading in Section 5.37 (Issue Details)
of this General Information Document.

Conditions Subsequent

means the conditions subsequent set out in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General
Information Document.

Constitutional means the certificate of incorporation of the Issuer, the memorandum of association and

Documents articles of association of the Issuer and the certificate of registration issued by the RBI
to the Issuer.

Crore means ten million

Debenture Holders / means each person who is:

Investors

(a) registered as a Beneficial Owner; and

(b) registered as a debenture holder in the Register of Debenture Holders,
and (b) shall be deemed to include transferees of the Debentures registered with
the Issuer and the Depository(ies) from time to time, and in the event of any

inconsistency between (a) and (b) above, (a) shall prevail,

and "Debenture Holder" shall be construed accordingly.

Debenture Trust
Deed/DTD

means the trust deed executed / to be executed by and between the Debenture Trustee
and the Issuer which will set out the terms upon which the Debentures are being issued
and shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided
by the Issuer.

Debenture Trustee

As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Debenture Trustee

means the agreement executed / to be executed by and between the Debenture Trustee

Agreement and the Issuer for the purposes of appointment of the Debenture Trustee to act as
debenture trustee in connection with the issuance of the Debentures.

Debentures/NCDs As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Debt Disclosure means this General Information Document, Key Information Document.

Document

Debt Listing means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-

Regulations or SEBI Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended, modified, supplemented or

Debt Listing restated from time to time.

Regulations or SEBI

NCS Regulations or

SEBI ILNCS

Regulations

Deed of Hypothecation | has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information

Document.

Deemed Date of
Allotment

As per Key Information Document of each issuance.

Demat

means dematerialized securities which are securities that are in electronic form, and not
in physical form, with the entries noted by the Depository.

Depositories Act

means the Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time
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Depositories means the depositories with which the Issuer has made arrangements for
dematerialising the Debentures, being NSDL and CDSL, and "Depository" means any
one of them.

Depository Participant / | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

DP

Director(s) means the director(s) of the Issuer.

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number.

DRR has the meaning given to it in Section 5.33 (Other Details) of this General Information
Document.

Due Dates means, collectively, each Interest Payment Date, the Final Redemption Date, and all
other dates on which any interest, additional interest or liquidated damages and/or any
other amounts, are due and payable, and "Due Date" shall be construed accordingly.

EBP Platform has the meaning given to it under the EBP Requirements.

EBP Requirements or
SEBI EBP

means the requirements with respect to electronic book mechanism prescribed in
Chapter VI (Electronic Book Provider platform) of the Listed NCDs Master Circular,

Requirements and the operational guidelines issued by the relevant Electronic Book Provider, as may
be restated, amended, modified or updated from time to time.

Effective Date means the date of execution of the Debenture Trust Deed.

EFT Electronic Fund Transfer

Electronic Book
Provider / EBP

has the meaning given to it under the EBP Requirements.

Eligible Investors

has the meaning given to it in Section 8.14 (Eligible Investors) of this General
Information Document.

Events of Default

As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Final Redemption Date

As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Final Settlement Date

means the date on which all Secured Obligations have been irrevocably and
unconditionally paid and discharged in full to the satisfaction of the Debenture Holders.

Financial Indebtedness

means any indebtedness for or in respect of:
(a) moneys borrowed;

(b) any amount raised by acceptance under any acceptance credit, bill
acceptance or bill endorsement facility or dematerialised equivalent;

(©) any amount raised pursuant to any note purchase facility or the issue of
bonds, notes, loan stock or any similar instrument;

(d) the amount of any liability in respect of any lease or hire purchase contract
which would, in accordance with the Applicable Accounting Standards, be
treated as a finance or capital lease;

(e) receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables to the extent they
are sold on a non-recourse basis);

® any amount raised under any other transaction (including any forward sale
or purchase agreement) having the commercial effect of a borrowing;

(2) any derivative transaction entered into in connection with protection against
or benefit from fluctuation in any rate or price (and, when calculating the
value of any derivative transaction, only the marked to market value shall

10
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be taken into account);

(h) shares which are expressed to be redeemable or shares which are the subject
of a put option or any form of guarantee;

(1) any obligation under any put option in respect of any securities;

) any counter-indemnity obligation in respect of a guarantee, indemnity,
bond, standby or documentary letter of credit or any other instrument issued
by a bank or financial institution;

&) any corporate/personal guarantee, a letter of comfort or any other similar
contractual comfort issued or incurred in respect of a liability incurred by
any other third person; and

0] the amount of any liability in respect of any guarantee or indemnity for any

of the items referred to in paragraphs (a) to (k) above

Financial Year/ FY

means each period of 12 (twelve) months commencing on April 1 of any calendar year
and ending on March 31 of the subsequent calendar year

General Information

means this general information document issued by the Issuer for the issue of the

Document Debentures on a private placement basis in accordance with Applicable Laws.

Governmental means any government (central, state or otherwise) or any governmental agency, semi-

Authority governmental or judicial or quasi-judicial or administrative entity, department or
authority, agency or authority including any stock exchange or any self-regulatory
organisation, established under any Applicable Law, and "Governmental Authorities"
shall be construed accordingly.

Hypothecated Assets has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information

Document.

Information Utility

means the National E-Governance Services Limited or any other entity registered as an
information utility under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (Information
Utilities) Regulations, 2017.

Interest Payment Dates

means the interest payment dates as specified in Schedule VI of this General
Information Document.

Interest Rate

As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Issue

means the private placement of the Debentures.

Issue Closing Date

As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Issue Opening Date

As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Listed NCDs Master means the master circular issued by SEBI bearing the reference number

Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/119 dated August 10, 2021 on "Master Circular
for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments,
Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial Paper" (updated as on
July 7, 2023) to the extent applicable in respect of the private placement of debt
securities, as amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time to time.

Listing Period has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information
Document.

LODR Regulations or means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

SEBI LODR Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, modified, supplemented or restated

Regulations from time to time.

Majority Debenture | As per Key Information Document of each issue.

Holders

11
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Majority Resolution

means a resolution approved by the Majority Debenture Holders.

N.A.

Not Applicable

NBFC

Non-banking financial company

NBFC Directions

means the Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company-
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as may be applicable read with the RBI's
circular no. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on
"Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards", each as amended, modified,
supplemented or restated from time to time.

NPA

means non-performing assets of the Company which are loans or advances in respect of
which the concerned borrower has failed to make payments on the principal and interest
component of the loan for at least 90 (ninety) days, determined in accordance with the
NBFC Directions.

NSDL

means the National Securities Depository Limited

Outstanding Amounts

means, at any date, the Outstanding Principal Amounts together with any interest,
additional interest, costs, fees, charges, and other amounts payable by the Issuer in
respect of the Debentures

Outstanding Principal means, at any date, the principal amounts outstanding under the Debentures.

Amount

PAN Permanent Account Number

Payment Default means any event, act or condition which, with notice or lapse of time, or both, would

constitute an event of default set out in paragraph (a) under the section named "Events
of Default" under Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information Document.

Potential Event of
Default

means any event, act or condition which with notice or lapse of time, or both, would
constitute an Event of Default

Private Placement Offer
cum Application
Letter/PPOA

The offer cum application letter prepared in compliance with Section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014.

Principal Promoter

Shall mean Mr. Vivek Tiwari

Promoters

e  Mr. Vivek Tiwari

e  Mr. Ratnesh Tiwari
e Ms. Vandna Tiwari
e Ms. Sadhna Tiwari

e Koshish Marketing Solutions Private Limited
e  Gojo & Company, Inc.

Promoter Group

Shall mean the Promoter(s)s and such other person(s) which has meaning given to it in
the Debt Listing Regulations.

Purpose has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Utilization of the Issue Proceeds) of this
General Information Document.

Quarterly Date means each of March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of a calendar year,
and "Quarterly Dates" shall be construed accordingly.

Rating As per Key Information Document of each issuance.

Rating Agency Mean any credit rating agency registered with SEBI pursuant to SEBI (Credit Rating
Agencies) Regulations 1999, as amended from time to time or any other SEBI
registered credit rating agency appointed by the Issuer from time to time

RBI Reserve Bank of India.

Record Date As per Key Information Document of each issuance.
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REF / Recovery
Expense Fund

means the recovery expense fund established/to be established and maintained by the
Issuer in accordance with the provisions of Chapter IV (Recovery Expenses Fund) of
the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular.

Register of Beneficial
Owners

means the register of beneficial owners of the Debentures maintained in the records of
the Depositories.

Register of Debenture
Holders

means the register of debenture holders maintained by the Issuer in accordance with
Section 88 of the Companies Act.

Registrar/R&T Agent As per Key Information Document of each issuance.

ROC means the jurisdictional registrar of companies.

Rs./INR Indian National Rupee.

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (as amended from time to time).

SEBI Centralized means the requirements prescribed in Chapter IV (Centralized Database for corporate

Database Requirements

bonds/ debentures) of the Listed NCDs Master Circular read together with Chapter XII
(Centralised Database - Responsibilities of Debenture Trustee) of the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular.

SEBI Debenture means the master circular issued by SEBI bearing reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS -

Trustees Master PoD1/P/CIR/2023/109 dated March 31, 2023 on "Master Circular for Debenture

Circular Trustees" (updated as on July 6, 2023) to the extent applicable in respect of the private
placement of debt securities, as amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time
to time.

SEBI Listed Debentures | means, collectively, the Listed NCDs Master Circular, the SEBI Debenture Trustees

Circulars Master Circular, and (to the extent applicable) the LODR Regulations.

SEBI Listing Timelines | means the requirements in respect of the timelines for listing of debt securities issued

Requirements on a private placement basis prescribed in Chapter VII (Standardization of timelines for
listing of securities issued on a private placement basis) of the Listed NCDs Master
Circular, read with, to the extent applicable, the SEBI EBP Requirements.

SEBI EBP means the requirements with respect to electronic book mechanism prescribed in

Requirements Chapter VI (Electronic Book Provider platform) of the Listed NCDs Master Circular,
and the operational guidelines issued by the relevant electronic book provider, as
amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time to time.

Secured Obligations means all present and future obligations (whether actual or contingent and whether

owed jointly or severally or in any capacity whatsoever) of the Issuer to the Debenture
Holders or the Debenture Trustee under the Transaction Documents, including without
limitation, the making of payment of any interest, redemption of principal amounts, the
interest, default interest, additional interest, liquidated damages and all costs, charges,
expenses and other amounts payable by the Issuer in respect of the Debentures.

Security Cover

has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information
Document.

Step Up Rate

has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information
Document.

Stressed Assets

means the RBI's circular no. DBR.No.BP.BC.45/21.04.048/2018-19 dated June 7, 2019

Framework on "Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets", as amended, modified,
supplemented or restated from time to time.
Tax means any present or future tax (including but not limited to direct taxes, indirect taxes

such as goods and services tax, service tax, value added tax or other similar taxes), levy,
duty, charge, fees, deductions, withholdings, surcharges, cess, turnover tax, transaction
tax, stamp tax or other charge of a similar nature (including any penalty or interest
payable on account of any failure to pay or delay in paying the same), now or hereafter,
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imposed pursuant to any Applicable Law or by any Governmental Authority.

Tax Deduction

means a deduction or withholding for or on account of Tax from a payment under a
Transaction Document pursuant to Applicable Law.

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source.

Terms & Conditions

The terms and conditions pertaining to the Issue as outlined in the Transaction
Documents.

Tier I Capital has the meaning given to it in the NBFC Directions.
Tier II Capital has the meaning given to it in the NBFC Directions.
Total Assets means, for any date of determination, the total Assets of the Issuer on such date.

Transaction Documents

has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information
Document.

Transaction Security

has the meaning given to it in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information
Document.

WDM

Wholesale Debt Market segment of the BSE

Wilful Defaulter

means an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by any Bank or financial
institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and includes an issuer whose director or promoter
is categorized as such.
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SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS
2.1 ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus and should not be
construed to be a prospectus or a statement in lieu of a prospectus under the Companies Act. The issue of the
Debentures to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE is being made strictly on a private placement basis.
Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to the same person and shall be treated
as such. This General Information Document does not constitute and shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or
invitation to subscribe to the Debentures to the public in general.

As per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this General Information Document to be filed or
submitted to the SEBI for its review and/or approval. This General Information Document has been prepared in
conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations as amended from time to time and applicable RBI regulations
governing private placements of debentures by NBFCs. This General Information Document has been prepared
solely to provide general information about the Issuer to Eligible Investors to whom it is addressed and who are
willing and eligible to subscribe to the Debentures. This General Information Document does not purport to contain
all the information that any Eligible Investor may require. Further, this General Information Document has been
prepared for informational purposes relating to this transaction only and upon the express understanding that it will
be used only for the purposes set forth herein.

Neither this General Information Document nor any other information supplied in connection with the Debentures is
intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this General Information
Document should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any Debentures. Each potential
Investor contemplating subscription to any Debentures should make its own independent investigation of the
financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the Issuer. Potential
investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other professional advisors as to the risks and investment
considerations arising from an investment in the Debentures and should possess the appropriate resources to analyze
such investment and the suitability of such investment to such potential Investor’s particular circumstances.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this General Information Document (including the documents
incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the context of the Issue and
regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and is accurate in all such material respects. No person has been
authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained or incorporated by reference in this
General Information Document or in any material made available by the Issuer to any potential Investor pursuant
hereto and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having being authorized
by the Issuer. The Issuer certifies that the disclosures made in this General Information Document and/or the Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter are adequate and in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations and
the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014. Further, the Issuer accepts no responsibility for
statements made otherwise than in the General Information Document or any other material issued by or at the
instance of the Issuer and anyone placing reliance on any source of information other than this General Information
Document would be doing so at its own risk.

This General Information Document, the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and the respective
contents hereof respectively, are restricted only for the intended recipient(s) who have been addressed
directly and specifically through a communication by the Issuer and only such recipients are eligible to apply
for the Debentures. All Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to
them for investing in this Issue. The contents of this General Information Document and/or the Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter are intended to be used only by those Investors to whom it is
distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other person and should not be reproduced by the
recipient.
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No invitation is being made to any persons other than those to whom Application Forms along with this General
Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter being issued have been sent. Any
application by a person to whom the General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter has not been sent by the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning any reason.

The person who is in receipt of this General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter shall not reproduce or distribute in whole or in part or make any announcement in public or to a
third party regarding the contents hereof without the consent of the Issuer. The recipient agrees to keep confidential
all information provided (or made available hereafter), including, without limitation, the existence and terms of the
Issue, any specific pricing information related to the Issue or the amount or terms of any fees payable to us or other
parties in connection with the Issue. This General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter may not be photocopied, reproduced, or distributed to others at any time without the prior written
consent of the Issuer. Upon request, the recipients will promptly return all material received from the Issuer
(including this General Information Document) without retaining any copies hereof. If any recipient of this General
Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter decides not to participate in the
Issue, that recipient must promptly return this General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer
cum Application Letter and all reproductions whether in whole or in part and any other information statement,
notice, opinion, memorandum, expression or forecast made or supplied at any time in relation thereto or received in
connection with the Issue to the Issuer.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter to reflect subsequent events after the date of General Information Document and/or the Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such subsequent events
without first confirming its accuracy with the Issuer.

Neither the delivery of this General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application
Letter nor any sale of Debentures made hereafter shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

This General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter does not constitute,
nor may it be used for or in connection with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such
offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.
No action is being taken to permit an offering of the Debentures or the distribution of this General Information
Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter in any jurisdiction where such action is
required. Persons into whose possession this General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter comes are required to inform themselves of, and to observe, any such restrictions. The General
Information Document is made available to potential Investors in the Issue on the strict understanding that it is
confidential.

2.2 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, a copy of this General Information Document has been filed with the BSE in terms of the SEBI Debt
Listing Regulations. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this General Information Document to the
BSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this General Information Document has been
reviewed, cleared, or approved by the BSE; nor does the BSE in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the
correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this General Information Document, nor does the BSE warrant
that the Issuer’s Debentures will be listed or will continue to be listed on the BSE; nor does the BSE take any
responsibility for the soundness of the financial and other conditions of the Issuer, its promoters, its management or
any scheme or project of the Issuer.

16



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF RBI

The company is having a valid certificate of registration issued by the Reserve Bank of India under Section 45 1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However, the RBI does not accept any responsibility or guarantee about the
present position as to the financial soundness of the company or for the correctness of any of the statements or
representations made or opinions expressed by the company and for repayment of deposits/ discharge of liability by
the company.

2.4 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT FILING OF THE ISSUE DOCUMENT TO THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SEBI) SHOULD NOT IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED
OR CONSTRUED TO MEAN THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI
DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY
SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS PROPOSED TO BE MADE OR FOR THE
CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE ISSUE
DOCUMENT. THE LEAD MANAGER(S), HAS CERTIFIED THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE
ISSUE DOCUMENT ARE GENERALLY ADEQUATE AND ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH THE
REGULATIONS. THIS REQUIREMENT IS TO FACILITATE INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED
DECISION FOR MAKING INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED ISSUE.

2.5 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Issue is made in India to investors as specified under the paragraph titled “Eligible Investors” of this General
Information Document, who shall be/have been identified upfront by the Issuer. This General Information Document
and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to
subscribe to Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it is not specifically addressed. Any disputes arising
out of this Issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts and tribunals at New Delhi, India. This
General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter does not constitute an
offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to the Debentures herein, in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it
is unlawful to make an offer or invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.6 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the
concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Rating Agency has based its ratings on information
obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. The Rating Agency does not, however, guarantee
the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for
the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by
the Rating Agency have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank facilities/instruments.

2.7 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the Depositories for
the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the Debentures in dematerialised form
as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take necessary steps to credit the Debentures allotted to
the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor with its depositary participant. The Issuer will make the
Allotment to the Investors on the Deemed Date of Allotment after verification of the Application Form, the
accompanying documents and on realisation of the application money.
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SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

Investment in non-convertible securities is risky and investors should not invest any funds in such securities unless
they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors are advised to take an informed decision and
to read the risk factors carefully before investing in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must
rely on their examination of the issue including the risks involved in it. Specific attention of investors is invited to
statement of risk factors contained under Section 3 of this General Information Document. These risks are not, and
are not intended to be, a complete list of all risks and considerations relevant to the non-convertible securities or
investor’s decision to purchase such securities.

The following are the risks relating to the Company, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged by the
management of the Company. Potential Investors should carefully consider all the risk factors stated in this General
Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter for evaluating the Company and
its business and the Debentures before making any investment decision relating to the Debentures. The Company
believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the Debentures.
Potential Investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this General Information Document
and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and reach their own views prior to making any
investment decision.

3. GENERAL RISKS
3.1 RISKS IN RELATION TO THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES:

(a) Repayment is subject to the credit risk of the Issuer.

Potential Investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e. the redemption amount) and
any other amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of the Issuer.
Potential Investors assume the risk that the Issuer will not be able to satisfy their obligations under the
Debentures. In the event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme of arrangement or similar
proceedings to avert bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums due on the
Debentures may not be made or may be substantially reduced or delayed.

(b) The secondary market for non-convertible securities may be illiquid.

The non-convertible securities may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof.
Even if there is a secondary market for the non-convertible securities, it is not likely to provide significant
liquidity. Potential Investors may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize any value.

(© Credit Risk & Rating Downgrade Risk

The Rating Agency has assigned the credit ratings to the Debentures. In the event of deterioration in the
financial health of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the rating agency may downgrade the rating of the
Debentures. In such cases, potential Investors may incur losses on revaluation of their investment or make
provisions towards sub-standard/ non-performing investment as per their usual norms.

(d) Changes in interest rates may affect the price of Debentures.

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as this Issue, are subject to price risk. The price
of such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest rates rise,
prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or
rise in the prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the
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level of prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/or a
growing economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the pricing of the Debentures.

Tax Considerations and Legal Considerations:

Special tax considerations and legal considerations may apply to certain types of investors. Potential
Investors are urged to consult with their own financial, legal, tax and other advisors to determine any
financial, legal, tax and other implications of this investment.

Accounting Considerations:

Special accounting considerations may apply to certain types of taxpayers. Potential Investors are urged to
consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications of this investment.

Material changes in regulations to which the Issuer is subject could impair the Issuer’s ability to meet
payment or other obligations.

The Issuer is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations and
policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect the
profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its activities,
increasing costs or otherwise.

RISKS IN RELATION TO THE SECURITY CREATED IN RELATION TO THE DEBT
SECURITIES. FURTHER, ANY RISKS IN RELATION TO MAINTENANCE OF SECURITY
COVER OR FULL RECOVERY OF THE SECURITY IN CASE OF ENFORCEMENT

In the event that the Company is unable to meet its payment and other obligations towards Investors under
the terms of the Debentures, the Debenture Trustee may enforce the Security as per the terms of security
documents, and other related documents executed in relation to the Debentures. The Debenture Holder(s)’
recovery in relation to the Debentures will be subject to (i) the market value of such Security (ii) finding
willing buyers for the Security at a price sufficient to repay the Debenture Holder(s)’ amounts outstanding
under the Debentures. There is a risk that the value realised from the enforcement of the Security may be
insufficient to redeem the Debentures.

While the Debentures are secured against a charge to the tune of at least 100% of the principal and interest
amount in favour of the Debenture Trustee, and it is the duty of the Debenture Trustee to monitor that the
security is maintained.

REFUSAL OF LISTING OF ANY SECURITY OF THE ISSUER DURING PRECEDING THREE
FINANCIAL YEARS AND CURRENT FINANCIAL YEAR BY ANY OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGES IN INDIA OR ABROAD:

As of date, the Issuer has not been refused of listing of any security during preceding three financial years
and current financial year by any of the stock exchanges in India or abroad and therefore, this would not be
applicable.

LIMITED OR SPORADIC TRADING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER
ON STOCK EXCHANGES:

As of date, we are not aware of any limited or sporadic trading of the non-convertible securities of the Issuer
on stock exchanges and therefore, this would not be applicable.
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IN CASE OF OUTSTANDING DEBT INSTRUMENTS OR DEPOSITS OR BORROWINGS, ANY
DEFAULT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERIAL COVENANTS SUCH AS CREATION OF
SECURITY AS PER TERMS AGREED, DEFAULT IN PAYMENT OF INTEREST, DEFAULT IN
REDEMPTION OR REPAYMENT, NON-CREATION OF DEBENTURE REDEMPTION
RESERVE, DEFAULT IN PAYMENT OF PENAL INTEREST WHEREVER APPLICABLE

As of date, the Issuer has not defaulted in compliance with any material covenants agreed to by the Issuer
and therefore, this would not be applicable.

RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

Majority of the Issuer’s loans are unsecured and the clients of these unsecured loans are of the high risk
category and if the Issuer is unable to control the level of non-performing loans (“NPAs”) in the future,
or if the Issuer’s loan loss reserves are insufficient to cover future loan losses, the financial condition and
results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

A majority of the Issuer’s loans are unsecured and the clients of these unsecured loans are of the high risk
category. There is uncertainty on the client’s ability to fulfil its loan obligations as clients typically do not
have bank accounts or proper income proof verification so it can be difficult to verify all client details and
assess the risk. Such non-performing or low credit quality loans can negatively impact our results of
operations.

The Issuer has various procedures and process controls in place to mitigate the risk.

As at March 31, 2023, the gross NPA was INR 54.82 Crore on a gross portfolio of INR 4,684.31 Crore
(including managed / securitized portfolio of INR 1008.13 Crore).

The Issuer cannot assure that it will be able to effectively control and reduce the level of the NPAs of its
Client Loans. The amount of its reported NPAs may increase in the future as a result of growth of Client
Loans, and also due to factors beyond its control, such as over-extended member credit that it is unaware
of. If the Issuer is unable to manage NPAs or adequately recover its loans, the results of its operations
will be adversely affected.

The current loan loss reserves of the Issuer may not be adequate to cover an increase in the amount of NPAs
or any future deterioration in the overall credit quality of Client Loans. As a result, if the quality of its total
loan portfolio deteriorates the Issuer may be required to increase its loan loss reserves, which will adversely
affect its financial condition and results of operations.

The borrowers might be vulnerable if economic conditions worsen or growth rates decelerate in India, or if
there are natural disasters such as floods and droughts in areas where the Issuer’s members live. Moreover,
there is no precise method for predicting loan and credit losses, and the Issuer cannot assure that its
monitoring and risk management procedures will effectively predict such losses or that loan loss reserves
will be sufficient to cover actual losses. If the Issuer are unable to control or reduce the level of its NPAs or
poor credit quality loans, its financial condition and results of its operations could be materially and
adversely affected.

The Issuer’s business operates through a large number of rural and semi urban branches and is exposed
to operational risks including fraud

The Issuer is exposed to operational risks, including fraud, petty theft and embezzlement, as it handles a
large amount of cash due to high volume of small transactions. This could harm its operations and its
financial position.

As the Issuer handles a large amount of cash through a high volume of small transactions taking place in its
network, the Issuer is exposed to the risk of fraud or other misconduct by its employees or outsiders. These
risks are further compounded due to the high level of delegation of power and responsibilities that the
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Issuer’s business model requires. Given the high volume of transactions processed by the Issuer, certain
instances of fraud and misconduct may go unnoticed before they are discovered and successfully rectified.
Even when the Issuer discovers such instances of fraud or theft and pursue them to the full extent of the law
or with its insurance carriers, there can be no assurance that the Issuer will recover any such amounts. In
addition, the Issuer’s dependence upon automated systems to record and process transactions may further
increase the risk that technical system flaws or employee tampering or manipulation of those systems will
result in losses that are difficult to detect.

The Issuer maintains an internal audit process to ensure the operations team follows the defined procedures
and reports any deviations to the operations staff and management team. The Issuer also has a strong MIS
system that has a wide range of data that can be used to monitor financial and operational performance.

To mitigate the above risk, the Issuer maintains an internal audit process to ensure the operations team
follows the defined procedures and reports any deviations to the operations staff and management team. The
Issuer also has a MIS system able to generate data analysis that can be used to monitor financial and
operational performance.

The Issuer is exposed to certain political, regulatory and concentration of risks

Due to the nature of its operations, the Issuer is exposed to political, regulatory and concentration risks. The
Issuer believes a mitigant to this is to expand its geographical reach and may consequently expand its
operations in other states. If it is not effectively able to manage such operations and expansion, it may lose
money invested in such expansion, which could adversely affect its business and results of operations.

Large scale attrition, especially at the senior management level, can make it difficult for the Issuer to manage
its business.

If the Issuer is not able to attract, motivate, integrate or retain qualified personnel at levels of experience that
are necessary to maintain the Issuer’s quality and reputation, it will be difficult for the Issuer to manage its
business and growth. The Issuer depends on the services of its executive officers and key employees for its
continued operations and growth. In particular, the Issuer’s senior management has significant experience in
the banking and financial services industries. The loss of any of the Issuer’s executive officers, key
employees or senior managers could negatively affect its ability to execute its business strategy, including its
ability to manage its rapid growth. The Issuer’s business is also dependent on its team of personnel who
directly manage its relationships with its members. The Issuer’s business and profits would suffer adversely
if a substantial number of such personnel left the Issuer or became ineffective in servicing its members over
a period of time. The Issuer’s future success will depend in large part on its ability to identify, attract and
retain highly skilled managerial and other personnel. Competition for individuals with such specialized
knowledge and experience is intense in this industry, and the Issuer may be unable to attract, motivate,
integrate or retain qualified personnel at levels of experience that are necessary to maintain its quality and
reputation or to sustain or expand its operations. The loss of the services of such personnel or the inability to
identify, attract and retain qualified personnel in the future would make it difficult for the Issuer to manage
its business and growth and to meet key objectives.

The Issuer’s insurance coverage may not adequately protect it against losses. Successful claims that
exceed its insurance coverage could harm the Issuer’s results of operations and diminish its financial
position

There are various types of risks and losses for which the Issuer does not maintain insurance, such as losses
due to business interruption and natural disasters, because they are uninsurable. A successful assertion of
such large claims against the Issuer that exceeds it’s available insurance coverage or results in changes in its
insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of a larger deductible or co-insurance
requirement, could adversely affect the Issuer’s business, financial condition and results of operations. Such
risks are normally minimized through strong Risk Management practices of the Company.

Issuer requires certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting business and failure to obtain
or retain them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect operations.
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NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. Pursuant to guidelines issued by
the RBI (including the NBFC Directions) the Issuer is required to maintain its status as a NBFC in order to
be eligible for categorization as priority sector advance for bank loans. The Issuer requires certain approvals,
licenses, registrations and permissions for operating its business, including registration with the RBI as a
NBEFC. Further, such approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions must be maintained/renewed over
time, applicable requirements may change and the Issuer may not be aware of or comply with all
requirements all of the time. Additionally, the Issuer may need additional approvals from regulators to
introduce new insurance and other fee based products to its members. In particular, the Issuer is required to
obtain a certificate of registration for carrying on business as a NBFC that is subject to numerous conditions.
In addition, its branches are required to be registered under the relevant shops and establishments laws of the
states in which they are located. The shops and establishments laws regulate various employment conditions,
including working hours, holidays and leave and overtime compensation. If the Issuer fails to obtain or
retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, its business may
be adversely affected. If the Issuer fails to comply, or a regulator claims that it has not complied, with any of
these conditions, the Issuer’s certificate of registration may be suspended or cancelled and it shall not be
able to carry on such activities. If the Issuer fails to comply with the NBFC Directions and fails to maintain
the status of NBFC, it will not be eligible for priority sector loans from the Indian banking sector and may
also attract penal provisions under the RBI Act, 1934 for non-compliance.

The economic fallout from the spread of the COVID-19 virus may impact the Issuer’s business prospects,
financial condition, result of operations and credit risk

The spread of the COVID-19 virus has affected millions across the globe and the same coupled with
measures taken by the governments including lockdowns/ curfew has not only affected day to day lives of
people but has also given a hard blow to the supply chain of factories, with trade routes being disturbed and
slowing down of the industry, trade, commerce and business activities across all sectors.

The COVID-19 virus pandemic had adversely affected our operations, business, liquidity and cashflows, and
we have experienced unpredictable reductions in demand for certain of our products and services. Further,
since a good fraction of our borrowers are small transport road operators, the disruption due to COVID-19
will also have an impact on their business as well as repayment capacity of the loans taken from us.

Any other Black Swan event of the similar nature resulting into sustained economic slowdown may
significantly affect our business, financial condition, liquidity, cashflows and results of operations and the
same will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.
Consequently, there may be a negative effect on the Company’s ability to service the obligations in relation
to the Debentures.

Economic Risk in India:

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from the domestic
market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in economic growth, investment and
consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for
credit and other financial products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or
negative growth of sectors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its
performance. Any such slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of operations and
financial condition.

IN CASE OF OUTSTANDING DEBT INSTRUMENTS OR DEPOSITS OR
BORROWINGS:

i.  Any default in compliance with the material covenants such as creation of Security as per
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ii.

iii.

iv.
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termsagreed:

As on the date of this General Information Document, the Issuer has not committed any default in
compliance with the material covenants such as creation of security as per terms agreed in respect
of any outstanding borrowings.

Default in payment of Interest:

As on the date of this General Information Document, the Issuer has not committed any default
in paymentof interest in respect of any outstanding borrowings.

Default in Redemption or Repayment

As on the date of this General Information Document, the Issuer has not committed any default
in redemptionor repayment in respect of any outstanding borrowings.

Non-creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve:
Pursuant to Rule 18 (7) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a non-

banking financial company is not required to maintain debenture redemption reserve for
debentures issued ona private placement basis.

v. Default in payment of penal interest wherever applicable:

As on the date of this General Information Document, the Issuer has not committed any default
in paymentof interest penal in respect of any outstanding borrowings.

ANY OTHER RISK FACTORS

Legality of Purchase

Potential Investors in the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the
Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of their incorporation or the jurisdiction in which they
operate or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy applicable
to it.
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended March 31, 2023 and quarter ended
September 30, 2023 are set out in Annexure III hereto.
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SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The General Information Document is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations and in this section, the Issuer has set out the details required as per Regulation 44, Regulation
50A and Schedule I of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations.

5.1

Documents Submitted to the Exchanges

The following documents have been / shall be submitted along with the listing application to the BSE and
with the Debenture Trustee:

(a)
(b)

(©
(d)

(e)
®

(@
(h)

(1)

0)
(k)

This General Information Document;

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the allotment
of the Debentures;

Copy of the resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting
held on July 03, 2023 authorizing the issue / offer of non-convertible debentures by the Company;
Copies of the resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting
held on July 03, 2023 authorising the Company to borrow, upon such terms as the Board may think
fit, up to an aggregate limit of INR 10,000 Crores (Indian Rupees Ten Thousand Crores only);

Copy of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company dated February 27, 2023,
authorizing the issuance of the Debentures and the list of authorized signatories;

Copy of last 3 (three) years audited Annual Reports and financial Results for the quarter ended
September 30, 2023;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and agreements;

An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the charge,
where applicable, including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within the time frame
prescribed in the relevant regulations/acts/rules etc. and the same would be uploaded on the website
of the BSE, where such debt securities are proposed to be listed.

Where applicable, an undertaking that permission/consent from the prior creditor for a second or
pari passu charge being created, in favor of the debenture trustee to the proposed issue has been
obtained;

Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it deems fit;
and

Due diligence certificates from the Debenture Trustee as per the format specified in Annexure IIB of
the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular and Schedule IV of the SEBI ILNCS Regulations.

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to BSE at the time of filing the draft of this
General Information Document:

M

5.2

5.3

Due diligence certificates from the Debenture Trustee as per the format specified in Annexure IIA of
the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular and Schedule IV of the SEBI ILNCS Regulations.

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
Details of Promoters of the Issuer:

(a) Profile of the Promoter of the Issuer:
Promoter 1: Principal Promoter

S.no | Details of Promoter Description
1. | Name of promoter Mr. Vivek Tiwari
2. | Date of Birth 01.04.1978
3. Age 45 years
4. Personal Addresses Flat No. A-406, Gaur Grandeur, Sector-119,
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Parthala Khanjarpur Gautam Buddha Nagar, UP —
210304
5. | Education Qualifications Post Graduate in Rural Development &
Management from the Institute of Engineering &
Rural Technology, Allahabad
6. | Experience in the business | 21 years
or employment
7. | Positions/posts held in the | COO — Satin Creditcare Network Ltd
past by the promoter
8. | Directorships held by the | 10
promoter
9. | Other ventures of the | Other Directorships are as follows:
promoter 1. Satya Micro Housing Finance Private Limited
2. V&S Advisors (OPC) Private Limited
3. Koshish Sustainable Solutions Private
Limited
Satya Shakti Foundation
10. | Special achievements Has been felicitated with the BFSI Leadership
Award as well as “Bharat Jyoti Award” by India
International Friendship Society.
11. | Business and financial | Managing Director, CEO & CIO of Satya
activities of the promoter | MicroCapital Limited
12. | Photograph
13. | Permanent Accountant | AEYPT2745P
Number
14. | Other Details N.A.
Promoter 2
S.no | Details of Promoter Description
1. | Name of promoter Ratnesh Tiwari
2. | Date of Birth 07.04.1987
3. Age 35 years
4. Personal Addresses Flat No. T-9/1134, Purvanchal Royal City, Plot No-
GH-05 Sector CHI V, Greater Noida Knowledge Park-
I, Gautam Budha Nagar, U.P-201310
5. Education Qualifications Engineering postgraduate and has a doctoral
degree (Ph.D.) from Indian Institute of Technology
(IIT) Delhi
6. | Experience in the business | 10 Years
or employment
7. Positions/posts held in the | Scientist
past by the promoter
8. | Directorships held by the | 5
promoter
9. Other ventures of the | Other Directorship is as follows:
promoter 1. Satya Micro Housing Finance Private Limited
2. HDMR Healthcare Private Limited
3. Medicall Services Private Limited
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LD Educare Private Limited

Koshish Marketing Solutions Private Limited
Satya Shakti Foundation

Credentia Finclusion Private Limited

Koshish  Sustainable  Solutions  Private
Limited

PN A

10. | Special achievements -
11. | Business and financial | He is the Chief Executive Officer at Koshish
activities of the promoter Sustainable Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

12. | Photograph

‘
A

13. | Permanent Accountant | AREPT0430C

Number
14. | Other Details N.A.
Promoter 3
S.no | Details of Promoter Description
1. | Name of promoter Sadhna Tiwari
2. | Date of Birth 23.12.1986
3. Age 36 years
4. Personal Addresses Flat No. T-9/1134, Purvanchal Royal City, Plot No-
GH-05 Sector CHI V, Greater Noida Knowledge Park-
I, Gautam Budha Nagar, U.P-201310
5. Education Qualifications MBA (Human Resource)

6. | Experience in the business | 5 Years
or employment
7. Positions/posts held in the | Human Resource Manager-UJALA Credit

past by the promoter Cooperative Society Limited
8. | Directorships held by the | -

promoter
9. | Other ventures of the | -

promoter

10. | Special achievements -
11. | Business and financial | He is the Chief Executive Officer at Koshish
activities of the promoter Sustainable Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

12. | Photograph :

///é

13. | Permanent Accountant | AORPT9043F

Number
14. | Other Details N.A.
Promoter 4

| S.no | Details of Promoter | Description
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1. Name of promoter Vandna Tiwari
2. | Date of Birth 25.07.1984
3. Age 39 years
4. Personal Addresses Flat No. A-406 Gaur Grandeur, Sector-119, Parthala
Khanjarpur, Gautam Buddha Nagar, UP- 201304
5. Education Qualifications MA
6. Experience in the business | 5 Years
or employment
7. | Positions/posts held in the | -
past by the promoter
8. Directorships held by the | 2
promoter
9. Other ventures of the | Other Directorship is as follows:
promoter 1. Koshish Marketing Solutions Private Limited
2. Aananda Foundation
10. | Special achievements -
11. | Business and financial | Director in Koshish Marketing Solutions Private
activities of the promoter Limited and Aananda Foundation
12. | Photograph
13. | Permanent Accountant | AJYPT9498G
Number
14. | Other Details N.A.
Promoter 5
S.no | Details of Promoter Description
1. | Name of promoter Koshish Marketing Solutions Pvt. Ltd
2. Date of Birth N.A.
3. Age N.A.
4. Personal Addresses 1/10712,UGF SUBHASH PARK HULEWALAL PARK,
NAVEEN SHAHADRA, Delhi DL 110032
5. | Education Qualifications N.A.
6. | Experience in the business | N.A.
or employment
7. Positions/posts held in the | N.A.
past by the promoter
8. | Directorships held by the | N.A.
promoter
9. Other ventures of the | N.A.
promoter
10. | Special achievements N.A.
11. | Business and financial | N.A.
activities of the promoter
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12. | Photograph [ 4

.‘_

@RI

13. | Permanent Accountant | AAHCK2971N

Number
14. | Other Details N.A.
Promoter 6
S.no | Details of Promoter Description
1. Name of promoter Gojo & Company, Inc.
2. Date of Birth N.A.
3. Age N.A.
4. Personal Addresses 3-14-5, Sendagaya, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, 151-0051,
Japan
Education Qualifications N.A.
6. | Experience in the business | N.A.

or employment
7. Positions/posts held in the | N.A.

past by the promoter

8. | Directorships held by the | N.A.
promoter

9. Other ventures of the | N.A.
promoter

10. | Special achievements N.A.

11. | Business and financial | N.A.
activities of the promoter
12. | Photograph

Gojo & Company,Inc.
13. | Permanent Accountant | AAHCG6962D

Number
14. | Other Details N.A.

(b) Declaration pursuant to paragraph 3.3.2(b) of Schedule I of the SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations:

Declaration
The Issuer confirms that the permanent account number, Aadhaar number, driving license
number, bank account number(s) and passport number of the promoters and permanent account
number of directors have been submitted to the stock exchanges on which the non-convertible
securities are proposed to be listed, at the time of filing the draft issue document.

5.4 Details of credit rating, along with the latest press release of the Credit Rating Agency in
relation to the issue, and a declaration that the rating is valid as on the date of issuance and
listing. Such press release shall not be older than one year from the date of opening of the issue.

As per Key Information Document of each issuance.

5.5 Name(s) of the stock exchange(s) where the non-convertible securities are proposed to be listed
and the details of in-principle approval for listing obtained from these stock exchange(s).

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE. The Issuer shall comply
with the requirements of the listing agreement for debt securities to the extent applicable to it on a
continuous basis.
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If non-convertible securities are proposed to be listed on more than one stock exchange(s) then
the issuer shall specify the designated stock exchange for the issue. The issuer shall specify the
stock exchange where the recovery expense fund is being/has been created as specified by the
Board:

The Debentures are not proposed to be listed on more than one stock exchange.

Details of specific entities in relation to the Issue:

S.no | Particulars Details

1. | Legal Counsel (if any) Name: N.A. The Issuer has been advised by its
in-house legal and compliance team.

Logo: N.A

Address: N.A.

Website: N.A.

Email address: N.A.

Telephone Number: N.A.

Contact Person: N.A.

2. | Merchant Banker and Co- | Not applicable as the Debentures under this
managers to the issues (Not | General Information Document are issued on

applicable for private | private placement basis.
placement. However, if
appointed, to be disclosed) Further, no Merchant Banker and Co-manager

has been appointed for this Issue.

3. | Legal advisor (applicable in | Not applicable as the Debentures under this
case of public issue) General Information Document are issued on
private placement basis.

4. | Bankers to the issue (applicable | Not applicable as the Debentures under this
in case of public issue) General Information Document are issued on
private placement basis.

5. | Sponsor Bank (applicable in | Not applicable as the Debentures under this

case of public issue) General Information Document are issued on
private placement basis.
6. | Guarantor, if any As per Key Information Document for each
Issuance.
7. | Arrangers, if any As per Key Information Document for each
Issuance.
About the Issuer:
(a) Overview and a brief summary of the business activities of the Issuer

Established in October 2016, and headquartered in the capital city of New Delhi, SATYA initiated
the course of its operational journey in January 2017. With the foremost and fundamental goal of
empowering rural women, both digitally and financially, SATYA has come a long way since its
incorporation. Since then, the company has registered an impressive growth by achieving an Assets
Under Management (AUM) is Rs. 4,836.29 crores and Cumulative Loan Disbursement of worth
more than Rs. 11,665.64 crores thus emerging as one of the fastest growing Highly Technology
driven Micro Finance Institutions in the country. The organization’s firm belief in modermn
technology and its potential to increase efficiency, reduce risks, and enhance overall customer
experience is apparent in its adoption of the most cutting-edge innovations to power its operations.
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SATYA has established its terrestrial footprints via an operational 500+ branches in near about
49,704 villages across 25 states.

At present, SATYA is furnishing its affordable micro credit services to 15 lakhs women
entrepreneurs from rural and semi-urban areas who are excluded from traditional banking channels
because of their low, irregular, and unpredictable income. The helm of SATYA’s accessible services
is to be a catalyst for the socio-economic upliftment of its clients via channelizing income growth
and income generation. SATY A is integrally concentrated towards building their financial capacity
and ability to grow to financial self-sufficiency. The taskforce of more than 6500 employees are
playing an intrinsic role in SATYA’s ongoing growth trajectory. In addition to yielding financial aid
to unbanked sections of the population, SATYA MicroCapital consistently associates with
institutions of the same wavelength to disseminate the importance of digital and financial literacy in
rural areas.

(b) Structure of the group:

‘ | Finance [ Equity & Debt
L0 | [homn | [Comioetoramin |
kgdt(omuumt

-[p—ul W]
| [ W} [ ] oo [egon] [ ]

g ‘ Adimin' & Cashiess Operationt ‘ Carporate Office, Branches & Adminkstration
A [ Merbeting & Commusications |
MD & CEO . CEO
R loy—l [ Sockil Performance Management |
D I Audit ]
l Human CapitaI‘] Hesource Planning, Recruitment & Hising Process
Oubosrding / HR MiS{ Payroll Management
Training & Deployment
| Information Technology | burdcusasticaienn
Credit [ Data Analytics 10
CCRO -
W] |
(© A brief summary of the business activities of the subsidiaries of the Issuer
Subsidiary details:

SATYA Micro Housing Finance Pvt. Ltd. (SMHFPL)(formally known as Baid Housing Finance Private
Limited) is a Housing Finance Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in exercise of the
powers conferred under the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. The Company was incorporated in 2008
under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office situated at 519,
5th Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020 and corporate office at 7th
Floor, Prius Heights, Noida, sector 125, Uttar Pradesh-201303.

SMHFPL is primarily focused on addressing the housing finance needs of self employed, Low and Middle
Income Families from semi urban and rural areas of India. SMHFPL strives to serve as a medium to fulfil the
dream of owning a house, of the under-served segment of the society. SMHFPL largely offers housing
finance products & services for the purchase and renovation / construction of homes, or commercial spaces.
It also provides loans against property for business or personal needs as well as working capital for business
expansion, having primarily focused services of affordable housing. As on current date, SMHFPL is a
Subsidiary of SATY A MicroCapital Limited.

As on September 30, 2023, SMHFPL have presence in 42 branches in operating in Delhi, Rajasthan,
Uttarakhand & Uttar Pradesh
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Details of branches or units where the Issuer carries on its business activities, if any

As on September 30, 2023, the company had presence in 523 branches in 316 Districts in 25
States with top 3 states i.e., UTTAR PRADESH (24.17%), BIHAR (19.52%), KARNATAKA
(7.08%) accounting for 50.77% of the total portfolio outstanding.

Odisha,

States are: Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Bihar, Chandigarh, Chhattisgarh, Delhi, Goa, Gujarat,
Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu & Kashmir, Jharkhand, Karnataka, Kerala, Madhya Pradesh,
Pondicherry, Punjab, Rajasthan, Tamil Nadu, Telangana, Tripura, Uttar Pradesh,
Uttarakhand, West Bengal

5.9

(©)

Not Applicable

Expenses of the Issue

Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding of new projects

S.NO

PARTICULARS

AMOUNT (INR)

PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL
ISSUE
EXPENSES

PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL
ISSUE SIZE

Lead Manager(s) fees

Not applicable as the
Debentures  under  this
General Information
Document are being issued
on private placement basis
under  Section 42  of
Companies Act, 2013, and
no lead manager has been
appointed for this issuance of
Debentures.

N. A

N. A

Underwriting
commission

Not applicable as the
Debentures under  this
General Information
Document are being issued
on private placement basis
under  Section 42  of
Companies Act, 2013, and
no underwriting commission
is being paid for this issuance
of Debentures.

Brokerage,

fees

selling
commission and upload

Not applicable as the
Debentures under  this
General Information
Document are being issued
on private placement basis
under  Section 42  of
Companies Act, 2013, and
no brokerage, selling
commission and upload fees
is being paid for this issuance
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of Debentures.

4. | Fees payable to the | Not applicable as the N. A N. A

registrars to the issue Debentures  under  this
General Information
Document are being issued
on private placement basis
under  Section 42  of
Companies Act, 2013, and
no registrar has been
appointed for this issuance of
Debentures.

5. | Fees payable to the | The Issuer is being advised N. A N. A
legal Advisors by its in-house legal and

compliance team.

6. | Advertising and | Not applicable as the N. A N. A
marketing expenses Debentures  under  this

General Information
Document are being issued
on private placement basis
under  Section 42  of
Companies Act, 2013, and
no advertising and marketing
expenses and upload fees is
being paid for this issuance
of Debentures.

7. | Fees payable to the | As specified in the respective | As specified in the | As specified in the
regulators including | Key Information Document respective Key respective Key
stock exchanges Information Information

Document Document

8. | Expenses incurred on | As specified in the respective | As specified in the | As specified in the
printing and distribution | Key Information Document respective Key respective Key
of issue stationary Information Information

Document Document

9. | Any other fees, | As specified in the respective | As specified in the | As specified in the
commission and | Key Information Document respective Key respective Key
payments under Information Information
whatever nomenclature Document Document

Issuer may remit Issue related expenses including but not limited to the fees/ charges / Incentives payable as
arrangers fees/ advisory fees/ brokerage / selling commission / marketing/ advertising fees, distribution fees/
any other miscellaneous fees directly or indirectly to any intermediary (ies) appointed by the Issuer or any
other representative/s / agent/s as may be appointed by the intermediary (ies) who may further utilize the
same, for marketing purposes, including distributor payouts, either in full or part. Such fees may be finalised
depending upon number of factors including but not limited to issue subscription, market conditions, terms of
the issue, nature and scope of assignment, profile of counter party etc.

5.10

(@)

Financial Information:

The audited financial statements (i.e. Profit & Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow
statement) both on a standalone and consolidated basis for a period of three completed years
which shall not be more than six months old from the date of the issue document or issue
opening date, as applicable. Such financial statements should be audited and certified by the
statutory auditor(s) who holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”)
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Please refer to Annexure III for the audited financial statements (i.e. Profit & Loss statement,
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) both on a standalone and consolidated basis for a period of
three completed years along with the auditor's report along with the requisite schedules, footnotes,
summary etc.

However, if the issuer, being a listed REIT/listed InvIT, has been in existence for a period less
than three completed years, and historical financial statements of such REIT/InvIT are not
available for some portion or the entire portion of the reporting period of three years and the
interim period, the combined financial statements shall be disclosed for the periods for which
such historical financial statements are not available.

N. A

(b) Listed issuers (whose debt securities or specified securities are listed on recognised stock
exchange(s)) in compliance with the listing regulations, may disclose unaudited financial
information for the interim period in the format as specified therein with limited review report
in the issue document, as filed with the stock exchanges, instead of audited financial statements
for the interim period, subject to making necessary disclosures in this regard in issue
document including risk factors.

Please refer to Annexure 111 for the financial statements for the financial year ending March 31, 2023
and quarter ended September 30, 2023.

(©) Issuers other than REITSs/ InvITs desirous of issuing debt securities on private placement basis
and who are in existence for less than three years may disclose financial statements mentioned
at (a) above for such period of existence, subject to the following conditions:

@) The issue is made on the Electronic Book Platform of the stock exchange, irrespective
of the issue size; and

(ii) In case of issue of securities on a private placement basis, the issue is open for
subscription only to qualified institutional buyers.

Not Applicable as the Issuer has been in existence for a period of more that 3 (three) years prior to
the date of this General Information Document.

(d) The above financial statements shall be accompanied with the Auditor’s Report along with the
requisite schedules, footnotes, summary etc.

Please refer to Annexure III for the audited financial statements (i.e. Profit & Loss statement,
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) both on a standalone and consolidated basis for a period of
three completed years along with the auditor's report along with the requisite schedules, footnotes,
summary etc.

(e) Key operational and financial parameters on consolidated and standalone basis:

Standalone Basis:

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, MARCH 31, MARCH 31, SEPTEMBER 30,
2021 (INR in 2022 (INR in 2023 (INR in 2023 (INR in
crores) crores) crores) crores)

Audited Audited Audited Unaudited

BALANCE SHEET

Assets

34




General Information Document
Date: November 29, 2023

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

Property, Plant and Equipment (It 7.66 12.09 77.20 90.43
Includes Intangible Assets & CWIP)

Financial Assets 1,546.42 2,834.47 4,526.05 5,630.62
Non-financial Assets excluding 33.26 40.70 54.96 52.66
property, plant and equipment

Total Assets 1,587.34 2,887.26 4,658.20 5,773.70
Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

-Derivative financial instruments - - 0.70 -
-Trade Payables - 8.25 10.14 11.84
-Debt Securities 285.14 528.55 1,036.07 1,004.05
-Borrowings (other than Debt 784.51 1,635.36 2,514.25 3,428.34
Securities)

-Subordinated liabilities 57.43 115.02 116.09 260.43
-Other financial liabilities 47.92 36.81 120.53 138.28
Non-Financial Liabilities - - - -
-Current tax liabilities (net) - - - 0.33
-Provisions 2.52 3.66 6.93 7.54
-Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - 4.90 0.21
-other non-financial liabilities 5.39 7.34 11.35 8.79
Equity (Equity Share Capital and 404.43 552.27 837.26 913.90
Other Equity)

Total Liabilities and Equity 1,587.34 2,887.26 4,658.20 5,773.70
PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue from operations 266.76 399.10 730.75 577.51
Other Income 0.45 2.44 5.30 7.45
Total Income 267.21 401.54 736.05 584.96
Total Expense 252.11 358.03 664.64 483.82
Profit after tax for the year 10.22 32.50 53.04 75.57
Other Comprehensive income (0.03) (0.07) (0.48) (0.31)
Total Comprehensive Income 10.19 32.43 52.56 75.26
Earnings per equity share (Basic)# 2.57 7.05 10.56 12.36
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 2.53 6.94 9.60 11.68
# EPS for the Half Year ended are

not annualised

Cash Flow

Net cash from/ used in (-) operating (301.42) (1,292.29) (1,286.89) (170.27)
activities

Net cash from/ used in (-) investing (5.96) (14.90) (239.95) (21.62)
activities

Net cash from/ used in (-) financing 429.12 1,266.12 1,618.99 1,026.57
activities

Net increase/decrease (-) in cash and 121.73 (41.07) 92.15 834.68
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as per 168.91 127.84 219.99 1,054.67

Cash Flow Statement as at the end of

Year/Half year
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Additional Information
Net Worth 404.43 552.27 837.26 913.90
Cash and cash equivalents 168.91 127.84 219.99 1,054.67
Loans 1,214.60 2,316.13 3,790.30 3,852.77
Loans (Principal Amount)
Total Debts to Total Assets 0.79 0.79 0.81
Interest Income 244.50 333.32 577.10 474.08
Interest Expense 127.81 171.11 297.22 236.77
Impairment on Financial Instruments 25.64 17.07 72.13 44.33
Bad Debts to Loans
% Stage 3 Loans on Loans 1.54% 3.33% 1.29% 1.58%
(GNPA)(On Exposure at Default)
% Net Stage 3 Loans on Loans 0.66% 2.53% 0.47% 0.96%
(NNPA)(On Exposure at Default)
Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 31.64% 19.52% 17.50% 18.64%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 2.98% 3.44% 1.73% 4.65%
Consolidated Basis:
g?RCIZJIOZI Q{?RCI;OZZ x?RCIZJIOB LA LS
PARTICULARS (INR in | INR in | INR in ?0, 2023 (INR
in crores)
crores) crores) crores)
Audited Audited Audited Unaudited
BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 12.09 77.28
Financial Assets 2,834.45 4,522.70
Non-ﬁnanmall Assets excluding property, 40.70 5027
plant and equipment
Total Assets 2,887.24 4,659.24
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Derivative financial instruments - 0.70
-Trade Payables 8.25 10.40
-Other Payables - -
-Debt Securities 528.55 1,036.07
-Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 1,635.36 2,514.25
-Deposits - -
-Subordinated liabilities 115.02 116.09
-Lease liabilities - -
-Other financial liabilities 36.81 120.59
Non-Financial Liabilities - -
-Current tax liabilities (net) - -
-Provisions 3.66 6.99
-Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 4.90
- Other non-financial liabilities 7.34 11.58
Equity (Equity Share Capital and Other 552.25 836.24
Equity)
Non-controlling interest - 1.46
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,887.24 4,659.24
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PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue from operations 399.10 732.90
Other Income 2.68 5.60
Total Income 401.78 738.50
Total Expenses 358.27 666.92
Profit after tax for the year 32.48 53.13
Other Comprehensive income (0.07) (0.48)
Total Comprehensive Income 32.41 52.65
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 7.05 10.57
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 6.94 9.61
Cash Flow

NeF .c.ash from/ used in (-) operating (1.292.31) (1319.51)
activities

Ne‘F .c.ash from/ used in (-) investing (14.88) (196.79)
activities

NeF .c.ash from/ used in (-) financing 1.266.12 1.619.04
activities

Net. increase/decrease (-) in cash and cash (41.07) 10275
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow

Statement as at the end of Half year 127.84 230.59
Additional Information

Net Worth 552.25 836.24
Cash and cash equivalents 127.84 230.59
Loans 2,316.13 3,823.16
Total Debts to Total Assets 0.79 0.79
Interest Income 333.32 579.25
Interest Expense 171.11 297.22
Impairment on Financial Instruments 17.07 72.21
Bad Debts to Loans

® Details of any other contingent liabilities of the Issuer, based on the latest audited financial

(2

5.11

(@)

statements including amount and nature of liability:

NIL

The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the Issuer along with details
of the counterparty (viz. name and nature of the counterparty, whether a subsidiary, joint
venture entity, group company etc.) on behalf of whom it has been issued.

Not Applicable.

A brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:

Details of Share Capital as at last quarter end (i.e., September 30, 2023):

Share Capital Amount (INR)
Authorised Share Capital

8,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 80,00,00,000
2,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 20,00,00,000
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TOTAL

1,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid- up Share Capital

Issued and Subscribed Share Capital

6,56,81,491 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 65,68,14,910
Paid Up Share Capital
6,06,81,491 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 60,68,14,910
50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 partly paid-up to the extent of Rs. | 3,75,00,000
7.5 paid per share
25,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10 | 25,00,000
partly paid-up to the extent of Re. 1/-
TOTAL 64,68,14,910
(b) Changes in its capital structure as at last quarter end (i.e., September 30, 2023) for the
preceding three financial years and current financial year:
Date of Change Particulars
(AGM/EGM)
27/01/2021 (EGM) Authorised Capital increased from 70 Cr to 100 Cr
(©) Details of the equity share capital for the preceding three financial years and current financial
year:
Date of Number Face |Issue|Consideration Nature of/Cumulative Remarks|
Allotment|of Equity Value|Price|(Cash, other|Allotment
Shares |(in |(in |than cash
INR) |Rs) |etc.)
Number |Equity |[Equity Share
of Equity|Share |[Premium
Shares Capital [(INR In
(INR in|Crore)
Crore)
27-01-22 |7,777,778|10 135 | Cash Private  |41,099,506|39.22 108.57
placement
01-02-22 (7,625,000{10 (201 | Cash Private  |48,724,506|46.85 254.21
placement
10-02-22 {2,500,000{10 |- Cash Private  |51,224,506|47.22 254.21
placement
21-03-22 (2,650,000{10 (201 | Cash Private  |53,874,506|49.87 304.82
placement
29-09-22 |1,500,000{10  |211 | Cash Private  |55,374,506|50.02 304.82
placement
29-09-22 (1,500,000{10 (211 | Cash Private  |56,874,506|50.17 304.82
placement
Cash(Call Private 50.37
money placement 304.82
29-09-22 2,000,000 211 |received 58,874,506
10 Rs.71)
Cash Call|Private 51.87
29-09-22 |2,500,000(10 75 |money placement |- 321.07
received @
Rs. 71/-
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Conversion Private 63,648,256(56.65 321.99

31-03-23 |4,773,750{10  |211 |CCPS placement
Cash(Call Private 57.62 -
money placement |-

31-03-23 [1,500,000{10  |211 |received
Rs.6.50)
Cash(Call Private 58.60 -
money placement |-

31-03-23 [1,500,000{10  |211 |received
Rs.6.50)
Cash(Call Private 59.90 -
money placement

31-03-23 (2,000,000{10  |211 |received -
Rs.6.50)

22-07-23 |4,338,257|10  |338.5|Conversion  (Private  [67,986,513|64.24
CCPS placement

22-07-23 (24,372 |10 338.5|Conversion  |Private 68,010,885/64.26 322.11
CCPS placement

22-07-23 |136,485 |10  |338.5|Conversion  |Private  |68,147,370(64.40
CCPS placement

22-07-23 (34,121 |10  |338.5|Conversion  |Private  |68,181,491(64.43
CCPS placement

Details of the preference share capital for the preceding three financial years and current financial year

Date of|Number |Face [Issue|Consideratio |Nature of|Cumulative Remark
Allotmen |of Valu |Pric |n (Cash,|Allotment J
t Preferenc (e (in|e (in|other than
e Shares |INR) |Rs) |cash etc.)
Number |Preferenc |Preferenc
of e Sharele Share
Preferenc |Capital |Premium
e Shares [(INR in{(INR In
Crore) Crore)
Conversio -
27-01-21 |7,777,778 |10 135 |NA n of CCPS|- -
23-03-22 |2,985,100 (10 201 |Cash Private 2985,100 {2.99 154.24
placement
10 Private
23-03-22 12,714,900 201 |Cash placement [5,700,000 |5.70 206.09
29-09-22 |2,500,000 (10 Cash(Call Private
211 |money placement (8,200,000 |5.95 206.09
received Re
1/-)
28-03-23 (4,450,000 (10 330 |Cash Private
placement [12,650,000{12.65 348.49
28-03-23 {200,000 |10 Cash Private
330 placement [12,850,000|12.85 354.89
31-03-23 |5,700,000 |10 240 |Conversion of|Private 7.15 -
CCPS placement |7,150,000
22-07-23 14,450,000 |10 338. |Conversion of|Private 2,700,000 | 2.70 -
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5 CCPS placement
10 338. |Conversion of|Private 2,500,000 | 2.50
22-07-23 {200,000 5 CCPS placement -
(d) Details of any acquisition of or amalgamation with any entity in the preceding one year:

During FY 2022-23, SATYA MicroCapital Limited acquired 100% stake in SATYA Micro Housing
Finance Private Limited (Formerly Baid Housing Finance Private Limited) on June 14, 2022.

(e) Details of any reorganization or reconstruction in the preceding one year:
Type of Event | Date of announcement | Date of Completion Details
NIL
® Details of the shareholding of the Company as at the latest quarter end (i.e., September 30,
2023), as per the format specified under the listing regulations:
e Equity Shares
Sr | Name of Shareholder Total No of Equity | No. of shares in | Total
No Shares demat form Shareholding as a
% of total no of
equity shares
A FULLY PAID-UP SHARES
1 Vivek Tiwari 11,725,200 11,725,200 17.85
2 Other Promoters 2,390,578 2,390,578 3.64
3 Gojo & Company Inc. 42,848,797 42,848,797 65.24
4 Satya Employee Welfare | 4,07,752 4,07,752 0.62
Trust
5 Others 3,309,164 3,58,680 5.04
Total (A) 60,681,491 5,77,31,007 92.39
B PARTLY PAID-UP SHARES
1. Vivek Tiwari (Rs. 7.5 per | 5,000,000 5,000,000 7.61
share)
Total (B) 5,000,000 5,000,000 7.61
Total (A+B) 65,681,491 6,27,31,007 100.00
e Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
Sr No | Name of CCPS Holder Total No of CCPS No. of CCPS in | Total
demat form Shareholding as
a % of total no
of CCPS
C PARTLY PAID UP CCPS
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1 Vivek Tiwari (Re.1 per | 25,00,000 25,00,000 100
share paid till date)
Total (C) 25,00,000 25,00,000 100
Total (A+B+C) 6,81,81,491 6,52,31,007 100
(2) List of top ten holders of equity shares of the Company as at the latest quarter end (i.e.,
September 30, 2023):
Sr. Name of the shareholders Total Number | Number of | Total
No. of Equity | shares in demat | shareholding as
shares form % of  total
number of equity
shares

1. GOJO & COMPANY INC. 42,848,797 42,848,797 62.85

2. VIVEK TIWARI 16,725,200 16,725,200 24.53

3. KOSHISH MARKETING | 2,147,085 2,147,085 315

SOLUTIONS PVT LTD. '
4 SATYA EMPLOYEE | 407,752 407,752 0.60
WELFARE TRUST )

5 SHEKHAR MAHAJAN 339,090 339,090 0.50

6 NEERAJ MAHESHWARI 156,000 156,000 0.23

7 VANDNA TIWARI 147,621 147,621 0.22

8 MAHABAL METALS PVT. | 125,000 125,000

0.18
LTD.
9 KOSHISH SUSTAINABLE | 117,367 117,367
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE 0.17
LIMITED
10 SUDHINDRA KUMAR | 110,000 110,000 016
SHARMA )
5.12  Following details regarding the directors of the Company:
(a) Details of the current directors of the Company:

S | Name of the | Ag | Address Date of | Details of other directorship

. | Directors/Desig | e appointment

N | nation/DIN

0.

1 | Mohan 67 | H. No. 1-]13-12-2022 1. Satya Micro Housing
Chandanathil yea | D/13, West Finance Private Limite
Pappachan Is Vellanikara 2. Vian Growth Capital
Director Nettissery Private Limited
DIN: 02661757 Thanikudam

Road Near
Govt.
Ayurveda
Hospital
Madakathara
PO
Mannuthy-
680651
2 | Deepali Pant | 66 | 54/14, Sardar | 24-09-2021 1. Ambadi Enterprises
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Joshi yea | Patel Marg, Limited
Director IS Civil Lines, Coromandel
DIN: 07139051 Allahabad International Limited
Uttar Kan and More Private
Pradesh- Limited
211001 Pahal Financial Services
Private Limited
Nabfins Limited
TVS Motor Company
Limited
3 | Vivek Tiwari 45 | A-406 Gaur | 18-02-2016 Satya Micro Housing
Managing yea | Grandeur Finance Private Limited
Director rs Sec-119, V&S Advisors (OPC)
DIN: 02174160 Parthala Private Limited
Khanjarpur, Koshish Sustainable
Gautam Solutions Private
Budh Nagar, Limited
UP- 201304 Satya Shakti Foundation
4 | Ratnesh Tiwari | 36 | HN-8, 28-10-2016 Satya Micro Housing
Director yea | Vijethua Finance Private Limited
DIN: 07131331 | rs Rajapur HDMR Healthcare
Anshik, Teh Private Limited
Kadipur, Medicall Services
Sultanpur, Private Limited
UP - 228161 Ld Educare Private
Limited
Koshish Marketing
Solutions Private
Limited
Satya Shakti Foundation
Credentia Finclusion
Private Limited
Koshish Sustainable
Solutions Private
Limited
5 | Sanjay Gandhi 57 | 2/7, Hamelia | 01-08-2018 LF Financial Services
Nominee yea | Street, Private Limited
Director rs Vatika City, Aviom India Housing
DIN: 02234298 Sector 49, Finance Private Limited
Gurgaon- Frame Technology
122018 Marketing Services
Private Limited
Ananya Finance for
Inclusive Growth
Private Limited
6 | Taejun Shin 42 | 5-10-49- 18-01-2021 Ananya Finance for
Nominee yea | 1210 Yashio, Inclusive Growth
Director Is Shinagawa, Private Limited
DIN: 08056236 Tokyo
1400003
Japan
7 | Naveen Surya 51 | A-233, 29-08-2019 Ditya Finance Private
Director yea | Kalptaru Limited
DIN: 00094514 | 1s horizon,SK Epilepsy Foundation
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ahire
Worli,
Mumbai-
400018

marg,

8 | Surekha 64
Marandi yea
Director IS
DIN: 06952573

401, Sun
Plazzo,
Senapati
Bapt Marg,
Lower Parel,
Mumbai-

400013

28-02-2020

2. Origo

1. SBFC Finance Limited
Commodities
India Private Limited

(b)

Details of change in directors in the preceding three financial years and the current year:

Name, Designation and DIN

Date
Appointment

oﬂDate

of Cessation,

applicable

if

Date

Resignation, i

applicable

offRemarks

Das,
Director

Vijayalakshmi
Independent
(DIN: 00624128)

08-02-2020

Due
death

to

Surekha
Independent
(DIN: 06952573)

Marandi,
Director

28-02-2020

Rahul Gupta, Independent
Director (DIN: 07478822)

08-01-2021

Taejun  Shin,  Nominee
Director (DIN: 08056236)

18-01-2021

Mukul Jaiswal, Independent
Director (DIN: 02696656)

21-09-2021

Saneesh Singh, Nominee
Director (DIN: 02254868)

11-07-2022

Deepali Pant Joshi,
Independent Director (DIN:
02696656)

24-09-2021

Chandanathil Pappachan
Mohan, Independent
Director (DIN: 02661757)

11-08-2022

Due to
completion
of tenure

Chandanathil Pappachan
Mohan, Independent
Director (DIN: 02661757)

13-12-2022

Re-
appointmen
t

(©

Details of directors’ remuneration, and such particulars of the nature and extent of their

interests in the issuer (during the current year and preceding three financial years):

)

Remuneration payable or paid to a director by the issuer, its subsidiary or associate

company; shareholding of the director in the company, its subsidiaries and associate
companies on a fully diluted basis

Sr.
No

Name of the
Director

Financia
1 Year

INR)

Remuneration payable or paid (in

Shareholding (on a fully diluted basis)
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by Issuer | by by in the| in the | in the
subsidiar | associate | Company | subsidiarie | associate
y compan s companie
y s
1. | Vivek 26,965,70 | - - 1,16,16,20 | - -
Tiwari 0 0 (23.89%)
2. Surekha 560,000 - - - - -
Marandi
3. | Mohan 620,000 - - - - -
Chandanathi
1 Pappachan
4. Naveen 610,000 - - - - -
Surya 2020-21
5. | Mukul 800,000 - - - - -
Jaiswal
6. Saneesh 810,000 - - - - -
Singh
7. | Sanjay 810,000 - - - - -
Gandhi
8. Ratnesh 450,000 - - 51,500 - -
Tiwari (0.11%)
9. Taejun Shin 62,500 - - - - -
10. | Rahul Gupta 380,000 - - - - -
Sr. | Name of the | Fina | Remuneration payable or paid (in | Shareholding (on a fully diluted
No | Director ncial | INR) basis)
Year
by Issuer by by in the | in the | in the
subsidiary associate | Company | subsidiaries | associate
company companies
1. | Vivek Tiwari 33,750,000 | - - 1,16,68,200 | - -
(21.46%)
2. | Surekha 900,000 - - - - -
Marandi
3. | Mohan 840,000 - - - - -
Chandanathil
Pappachan
4. | Naveen Surya 870,000 - - - - -
5. | Mukul Jaiswal | 2021 | 300,000 - - - - -
6. | Deepali Pant | -22 380,000 | - - - - -
Joshi
7. | Saneesh Singh 970,000 - - - - -
8. | Sanjay Gandhi 970,000 - - - - -
9. | Ratnesh 590,000 - - 51,500 - -
Tiwari (0.09%)
10. | Taejun Shin 702,484 - - - - -
Sr. | Name of the | Financi | Remuneration payable or paid (in | Shareholding (on a fully diluted basis)
No. | Director al Year | INR)
by Issuer | by by in the | in the | in the
subsidiar | associate | Company | subsidiarie | associate
y compan s companies
y
1. | Vivek Tiwari 42,199,992 | - - 1,91,80,200 | - -
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(28.08%)
2. Surekha 1,690,000 | - - - -
Marandi
3. | Mohan 1,170,000 | 70,000%* - 2,00,000 -
Chandanathil (0.48%)
Pappachan
4. | Naveen Surya | 2022- | 1,240,000 | - - - -
5. | Deepali Pant | 23 1,800,000 | - - - -
Joshi
6. Saneesh Singh 320,000 - - - -
7. Sanjay 1,620,000 | - - - -
Gandhi
8. | Ratnesh 1,220,000 | 40,000* 75,872 - -
Tiwari (0.11%)
9. Taejun Shin 1,036,068 | - - - -
Sr. | Name of the | Financial | Remuneration payable or paid (in | Shareholding (on a fully diluted
No. | Director Year INR) basis)
by Issuer by by in the | in the | in the
subsidiary | associate | Company | subsidiaries | associate
company companies
1. | Vivek 56,653,431 | - - 19225200 | - -
Tiwari (28.20%)
2. Surekha 940,000 | - - - - -
Marandi
3. | Mohan 940,000 | 3,60,000%* - 2,00,000
Chandanathil | Current (0.41%)
Pappachan FY
4. | Naveen (2023-24) 840,000 | - - - - -
Surya
5. Deepali Pant 1,030,000 | - - - - -
Joshi
6. Sanjay 850,000 - - - - -
Gandhi
7. | Ratnesh 850,000 | 2,90,000* | - 75,872 -
Tiwari (0.11%)
8. Taejun Shin 390,000 | - - - - -

*Remuneration Paid here means sitting fee(s) paid for the meetings attended by the Directors of the Company.

(i1) Appointment of any relatives to an office or place of profit of the issuer, its subsidiary
or associate company
Sr. Name of the Financial Year Appointment of any relatives to an office or place of
No. Director profit
in the Issuer in the subsidiary | in the associate
company
NA
(iii) Full particulars of the nature and extent of interest, if any, of every director:

A.

in the promotion of the Issuer:
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5.13

5.14

(@)

(b)

Nil
B.
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in any immoveable property acquired by the Issuer in the two years preceding
the date of the issue document or any immoveable property proposed to be
acquired by it:

None

where the interest of such a director consists in being a member of a firm or
company, the nature and extent of his interest in the firm or company, with a
statement of all sums paid or agreed to be paid to him or to the firm or
company in cash or shares or otherwise by any person either to induce him to
become, or to help him qualify as a director, or otherwise for services rendered
by him or by the firm or company, in connection with the promotion or
formation of the Issuer shall be disclosed

None
Contribution being made by the directors as part of the offer or separately in furtherance
of such objects.
None
Any financial or other material interest of the directors, promoters, key managerial personnel
or senior management in the offer and the effect of such interest in so far as it is different from
the interests of other persons.
None
Following details regarding the auditors of the Issuer:
Details of the auditor of the Issuer:
Name of the Address Date of
Auditor Appointment
S.N. Dhawan & | 51-52, Sector-18, Udyog Vihar, 24-09-2021
COLLP Phase-1V,
Gurugram, Haryana-122016
Details of change in auditors for preceding three financial years and current financial year:
Name of Address Date of Date of cessation, if Date of
the Appointment applicable resignation, if
Auditor applicable
S.R. Golf Corporate Tower-B, 01-04-2017 - 23-09-2021
Batliboi Sector-42, Sector Road,
& Gurugram 122002,
Associate Haryana
s LLP
S.N. 51-52, Sector-18, Udyog 24-09-2021 - -
Dhawan | Vihar, Phase-1V,
& CO Gurugram, Haryana-
LLP 122016
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Details of the following liabilities of the Issuer, as at the end of the preceding quarter (i.e.,

Type Amount gl;::)cl:ﬂ?l Repayme
Sanctione .| nt Date/ ., | Credit Asset
Name of of Outstandin Securit .. ] ]
a0, [ d Schedule Rating, if Classificatio
Lender Facilit . g A y -
(INR in . (Maturity applicable n
y Lakhs) (NRin - ) e
Lakhs)
IDFC FIRST
Bank Limited
(Capital First
Limited Term 01 March 110.00
merged) Loan 1,500.00 1,137.02 2025 % Bookdebt
Nabkisan 01
Finance Term February 110.00
Limited Loan 2,500.00 416.67 2024 % Bookdebt
State Bank of | Term 01 March 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
India Loan 5,000.00 1,055.05 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Nabsamruddhi
Finance Term 30 June 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 2,000.00 575.59 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Jana Small Term
Finance Bank | Loan 03 August | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited CGS 5,400.00 1,860.11 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Term
Capital Small | Loan 01 March | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Finance Bank | CGS 1,500.00 264.75 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Kotak Term 17
Mahindra Loan December | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Limited | CGS 4,980.00 375.00 2023 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Term 21
Loan September | 110.00 | [[CRA]BBB
Canara Bank CGS 5,000.00 1,859.98 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Suryoday Term
Small Finance | Loan 05 April 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Limited | CGS 1,500.00 395.39 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Special
Schem 10 August | 110.00 | [I[CRA]BBB
SIDBI e 3,000.00 1,100.00 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Term CRISIL
ICICI Bank Loan 05 October | 105.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Limited CGS 12,000.00 | 545.45 2023 % e Bookdebt
Term
Punjab Loan 31 October | 110.00 | [[CRA]BBB
National Bank | CGS 10,000.00 | 3,604.36 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Term
IDBI Bank Loan 01 October | 100.00 | [[CRA]BBB
Limited CGS 1,000.00 406.25 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Kotak Term 28 January | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Mahindra Loan - 1330.00 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
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Bank Limited | CGS
Term CRISIL
Loan 29 October | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Bank of India | CGS 2,000.00 787.79 2024 % e Bookdebt
Kissandhan
Agri Financial
Private Term 28 October | 110.00
Limited Loan 500.00 23.47 2023 % Bookdebt
Term
Loan 03 October | 100.00 | [I[CRA]BBB
HSBC CGS 5,000.00 238.10 2023 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
12
IDFC First Term December | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Limited | Loan 10,000.00 | 1,250.00 2023 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Profectus
Capital Pvt. Term 15 January | 110.00
Ltd. Loan 1,000.00 184.14 2024 % Bookdebt
Maanaveeya
Development
& Finance 31
Private Term December | 105.00
Limited Loan 3,000.00 375.00 2023 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 350.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 150.00 37.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 350.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 150.00 37.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 350.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 150.00 37.50 2024 % Bookdebt
Piramal
Enterprises Term 16 May 110.00
Limited Loan 2,500.00 833.33 2024 % Bookdebt
Nabfins Term 10 March 110.00
Limited Loan 1,000.00 278.51 2024 % Bookdebt
Kisetsu Saison 15
Finance Term February 110.00
(India) Private | Loan 3,000.00 750.00 2024 % Bookdebt
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Limited
Term 30 May 110.00
SBM Bank Loan 2,000.00 666.67 2024 % Bookdebt
Utkarsh Small 25 CRISIL
Finance Bank | Term February 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Limited Loan 2,475.00 515.63 2024 % e Bookdebt
Bandhan Bank | Term 11 March | 105.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 10,000.00 | 3,333.33 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Nabkisan
Finance Term 01 March 110.00
Limited Loan 2,000.00 1,000.00 2025 % Bookdebt
Vivriti Capital
Private Term 16 March 110.00
Limited Loan 500.00 125.00 2024 % Bookdebt
Vivriti Capital
Private Term 16 March 110.00
Limited Loan 500.00 125.00 2024 % Bookdebt
Vivriti Capital
Private Term 16 March 110.00
Limited Loan 500.00 125.00 2024 % Bookdebt
Vivriti Capital
Private Term 16 March 110.00
Limited Loan 600.00 150.00 2024 % Bookdebt
Term 16 March 120.00 | [ICRAIBBB
UCO Bank Loan 1,500.00 871.07 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Tata Capital
Financial
Services Term 15 March 110.00
Limited Loan 1,500.00 375.00 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 350.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 150.00 37.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 350.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 150.00 37.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 350.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 March 105.00
Limited Loan 150.00 37.50 2024 % Bookdebt
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Northern Arc

Capital Term 25 March | 110.00

Limited Loan 1,900.00 536.19 2024 % Bookdebt

Federal Bank | Term 29 March | 110.00 | [ICRAIBBB

Limited Loan 4,000.00 1,142.86 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Northern Arc

Capital Term 05 April 110.00

Limited Loan 3,100.00 1,022.21 2024 % Bookdebt

Jana Small

Finance Bank | Term 03 April 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Limited Loan 2,500.00 784.38 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Term 29 April 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

HSBC Loan 3,500.00 1,020.83 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

State Bank of | Term 01 May 125.00 | [ICRA]BBB

India Loan 5,000.00 2,847.53 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Term 26 August | 110.00

SBM Bank Loan 2,000.00 916.67 2024 % Bookdebt

01

Capital Small | Term September | 110.00 | [[CRA]BBB

Finance Bank | Loan 1,100.00 522.56 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 131.25 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 275.00 103.13 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 131.25 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 275.00 103.13 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 131.25 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 275.00 103.13 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 131.25 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 June 105.00

Limited Loan 275.00 103.13 2024 % Bookdebt

Mahindra & Term 01 July 110.00

Mahindra Loan 5,000.00 2,018.60 2024 % Bookdebt
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Financial

Services

Limited
30

Federal Bank | Term September [ICRA]BBB

Limited Loan 5,000.00 3,068.10 2027 0.00% | + (Stable) Bookdebt

Standard

Chartered Term 22 July 110.00 | [I[CRA]BBB

Bank Loan 4,000.00 2,000.00 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

National Skill

Development | Term 31 July 110.00

Corporation Loan 495.00 495.00 2023 % Bookdebt
02 CRISIL

Term November | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl

DBS Bank Loan 2,500.00 1,354.17 2024 % e Bookdebt

IDFC First Term 05 August | 110.00 | [I[CRAIBBB

Bank Limited | Loan 10,000.00 | 4,583.33 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
01

HSBC (ADB | Term September | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Guarantee) Loan 3,000.00 1,499.19 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Kisetsu Saison

Finance 15

(India) Private | Term September | 110.00

Limited Loan 2,500.00 1,250.00 2024 % Bookdebt

Kotak 27

Mahindra Term November | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Bank Limited | Loan 10,000.00 | 2,333.33 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term September | 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 175.00 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term September | 105.00

Limited Loan 150.00 75.00 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term September | 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 175.00 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term September | 105.00

Limited Loan 150.00 75.00 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term September | 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 175.00 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term September | 105.00

Limited Loan 150.00 75.00 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS 25

Financial Term September | 105.00

Services Loan 350.00 175.00 2024 % Bookdebt
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Limited

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term September | 105.00

Limited Loan 150.00 75.00 2024 % Bookdebt

CRISIL

ICICI Bank Term 10 October | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl

Limited Loan 25,000.00 | 5,000.00 2024 % e Bookdebt

Manappuram 30

Finance Term September | 110.00

Limited Loan 2,000.00 1,059.51 2024 % Bookdebt

Capri Global 15

Capital Term November | 110.00

Limited Loan 1,500.00 875.00 2024 % Bookdebt
10 CRISIL

ICICI Bank Term December | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl

Limited Loan 2,312.50 2024 % e Bookdebt

Tata Capital

Financial 15

Services Term November | 110.00

Limited Loan 1,500.00 875.00 2024 % Bookdebt

AU Small 03

Finance Bank | Term December | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Limited Loan 2,000.00 1,250.00 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term November | 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 204.17 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term November | 105.00

Limited Loan 150.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term November | 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 204.17 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term November | 105.00

Limited Loan 150.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term November | 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 204.17 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term November | 105.00

Limited Loan 150.00 87.50 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial 25

Services Term November | 105.00

Limited Loan 350.00 204.17 2024 % Bookdebt

MAS Term 25 105.00

Financial Loan 150.00 87.50 November | % Bookdebt
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Services 2024
Limited
01
Cholamandala | Term December | 110.00
m Finance Loan 1,000.00 786.70 2025 % Bookdebt
Equitas Small 05 IND
Finance Bank | Term December | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Limited Loan 1,500.00 937.50 2024 % e Bookdebt
Kotak 22
Mahindra Term February 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Limited | Loan 708.33 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Kissandhan
Agri Financial 26
Private Term December | 110.00
Limited Loan 1,000.00 654.94 2024 % Bookdebt
30 CRISIL
Dhanlaxmi Term December | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Bank Limited | Loan 2,500.00 1,875.00 2025 % e Bookdebt
Maanaveeya
Development
& Finance 31
Private Term December | 105.00
Limited Loan 3,000.00 2,318.18 2025 % Bookdebt
Oxyzo
Financial
Services
Private Term 01 July 110.00
Limited Loan 2,750.00 1,925.00 2025 % Bookdebt
31
Yes Bank Term December | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 5,000.00 3,125.00 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
10
Term December | 100.00 | [ICRA]BBB
SIDBI Loan 20,000.00 | 18,000.02 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
CRISIL
ICICI Bank Term 25 January | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Limited Loan 1,875.00 2025 % e Bookdebt
Fincare Small CRISIL
Finance Bank | Term 27 January | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,040.53 2025 % e Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 24 January | 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 250.00 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 24 January | 105.00
Limited Loan 250.00 166.67 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 24 January | 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 250.00 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS Term 24 January | 105.00
Financial Loan 250.00 166.67 2025 % Bookdebt
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Services

Limited

MAS

Financial

Services Term 24 January | 105.00

Limited Loan 375.00 250.00 2025 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 24 January | 105.00

Limited Loan 250.00 166.67 2025 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 24 January | 105.00

Limited Loan 375.00 250.00 2025 % Bookdebt

MAS

Financial

Services Term 24 January | 105.00

Limited Loan 250.00 166.67 2025 % Bookdebt

Nabsamruddhi

Finance Term 31 January | 110.00 | [[CRAIBBB

Limited Loan 2,075.00 1,678.21 2026 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Northern Arc 05

Capital Term February 110.00

Limited Loan 2,500.00 1,732.48 2025 % Bookdebt

CRISIL

ICICI Bank Term 10 March | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl

Limited Loan 600.00 2025 % e Bookdebt

Standard 16

Chartered Term February 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Bank Loan 3,500.00 1,250.00 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Standard 14

Chartered Term February 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Bank Loan 1,000.00 750.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Kisetsu Saison

Finance 21

(India) Private | Term February 110.00

Limited Loan 2,500.00 1,875.00 2025 % Bookdebt
21

Federal Bank | Term February 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Limited Loan 10,000.00 | 1,619.05 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Jana Small

Finance Bank | Term 03 March 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Limited Loan 5,500.00 4,125.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Vivriti Capital

Private Term 01 March | 110.00

Limited Loan 1,200.00 900.00 2025 % Bookdebt
04

Federal Bank | Term February 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Limited Loan 2,571.36 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
11

State Bank of | Term February 125.00 | [ICRA]BBB

India Loan 4,000.00 3,618.82 2026 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Suryoday Term 05 April 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Small Finance | Loan 2,500.00 2,029.82 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
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Bank Limited
IDFC First Term 17 March | 110.00 | [[CRAIBBB
Bank Limited | Loan 10,000.00 | 7,500.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Bandhan Bank | Term 18 March 105.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 10,000.00 | 9,047.62 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Incred Capital
Financial
Services Term 10 April 105.00
Limited Loan 1,475.00 1,301.94 2026 % Bookdebt
Oxyzo
Financial
Services
Private Term 05 October | 110.00
Limited Loan 1,300.00 1,083.33 2025 % Bookdebt
ESAF Small 28 IND
Finance Bank | Term February 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
Limited Loan 2,500.00 2,155.21 2025 % e Bookdebt
Aditya Birla 01
Finance Term September | 110.00
Limited Loan 2,500.00 1,666.67 2024 % Bookdebt

Re- 31 IND

Financ December | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
NABARD e 10,000.00 | 8,100.00 2025 % e Bookdebt
Kotak
Mahindra Term 30 May 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Limited | Loan 2,666.67 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
ShriRam
Finance Term 05 July 110.00
Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,253.82 2025 % Bookdebt
Manappuram 30
Finance Term September | 110.00
Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,236.90 2025 % Bookdebt
Standard
Chartered Term 25 April 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Loan 750.00 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Federal Bank | Term 27 April 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 2,261.90 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Federal Bank | Term 06 May 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 2,380.95 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Jana Small
Finance Bank | Term 03 June 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 1,200.00 1,050.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Standard
Chartered Term 23 May 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Loan 625.00 546.88 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Standard
Chartered Term 24 May 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Loan 625.00 468.75 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Ambit Finvest
Private Term 05 June 110.00
Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,332.64 2025 % Bookdebt
HSBC (ADB | Term 31 May 111.00 | [I[CRA]BBB
Guarantee) Loan 9,000.00 5,250.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
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Kotak
Mahindra Term 27 August | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Limited | Loan 1,725.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Oxyzo
Financial
Services
Private Term 05 January | 110.00
Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,400.00 2026 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 June 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 328.13 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 June 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 328.13 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 June 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 328.13 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 June 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 328.13 2025 % Bookdebt
CRISIL
Bank of Term 31 March 111.12 | BBB+/Stabl
Baroda Loan 2,500.00 2,275.00 2026 % e Bookdebt
Term 20 October | 110.00
SBM Bank Loan 2,000.00 2,000.00 2025 % Bookdebt
CRISIL
Term 25 October | 110.00 | BBB+/Stabl
DBS Bank Loan 5,000.00 5,000.00 2025 % e Bookdebt
Yes Bank Term 28 July 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Limited Loan 7,000.00 6,416.67 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Union Bank of | Term 17 August | 115.00 | [I[CRAIBBB
India Loan 2,000.00 2,000.00 2026 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Kotak
Mahindra Term 28 October | 110.00 | [I[CRA]BBB
Bank Limited | Loan 6,000.00 6,000.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Standard
Chartered Term 29 August | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Loan 703.13 703.13 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
Standard
Chartered Term 30 August | 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB
Bank Loan 1,031.25 1,031.25 2024 % + (Stable) Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 August | 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 359.38 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS
Financial
Services Term 25 August | 105.00
Limited Loan 375.00 359.38 2025 % Bookdebt
MAS Term 25 August | 105.00 Bookdebt
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Financial Loan 375.00 359.38 2025 %

Services

Limited

MAS

Financial

Services Term 25 August | 105.00

Limited Loan 375.00 359.38 2025 % Bookdebt
20

HSBC (ADB | Term September | 111.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Guarantee) Loan 2,700.00 2025 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Kisetsu Saison

Finance 15

(India) Private | Term September | 110.00

Limited Loan 3,000.00 3,000.00 2025 % Bookdebt

Nabsamruddhi

Finance Term 31 March 110.00 | [ICRA]BBB

Limited Loan 2,700.00 2,700.00 2026 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

A. K. Capital

Services Term 24 March | 110.00

Limited Loan 3,000.00 3,000.00 2026 % Bookdebt

Sumitomo

Mitsui

Banking Term 01 June 110.00

Corporation Loan 50,000.00 | 50,000.00 2026 % Bookdebt
25

Bank of Term September | 110.00 | [[CRA]BBB

Maharashtra Loan 7,500.00 7,500.00 2029 % + (Stable) Bookdebt

Northern ARC | Term 06 October | 110.00

Limited Loan 4,000.00 4,000.00 2025 % Bookdebt

Frankfurt

School

Financial

Services UK 30 March | 105.00

Limited ECB 3,294.80 3,294.80 2026 % Bookdebt

ResponsAbilit

y SICAV

(Lux)

Financial 31 May 110.00

Inclusion Fund | ECB 826.00 826.00 2029 % Bookdebt

ResponsAbilit

y SICAV

(Lux) Micro

and SME

Finance 31 May 110.00

Leaders ECB 2,065.00 2,065.00 2029 % Bookdebt

ResponsAbilit

y SICAV

(Lux) Micro

and SME

Finance Debt 31 May 110.00

Fund ECB 2,478.00 2,478.00 2029 % Bookdebt

BIB

Sustainable 11 August | 100.00

Finance ECB 2,215.50 2,215.50 2026 % Bookdebt
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(SICAV) ||
BANK IM
BISTUM
ESSEN eG
BIB
Sustainable
Finance
(SICAV) ||
BANK IM
BISTUM 11 August | 100.00
ESSEN eG ECB 3,101.70 3,101.70 2026 % Bookdebt
Finnish Fund
for Industrial
Cooperation 14 June 110.00
Limited ECB 8,210.00 8,210.00 2028 % Bookdebt
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited 30 June 105.00
(JAWEF) ECB 2,216.97 2,216.97 2026 % Bookdebt
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited 30 June 105.00
(BOMF) ECB 2,980.07 2,980.07 2026 % Bookdebt
15 June 110.00
Proparco ECB 16,375.00 | 16,375.00 2028 % Bookdebt
485,997.4 | 324,233.76
Total 1
(b) Details of outstanding unsecured loan facilities (as on September 30, 2023):
Principal
Amount Amount
Sanctioned | Outstanding A || Em
Type of (INR in (INR in Date/ Rating,
Name of Lender Facility Lakhs) Lakhs) Schedule if applicable
IDFC FIRST Bank [ICRAIBBB+
Limited Subordinated | 450.00 450.00 | Bullet (Stable)
IDFC FIRST Bank [ICRA]BBB+
Limited Subordinated | 500.00 500.00 | Bullet (Stable)
IDFC FIRST Bank [ICRA]BBB+
Limited Subordinated | 10,000.00 10,000.00 | Bullet (Stable)
Maanaveeya - Okio
Developmemt Subordinated | 2,000.00 2,000.00 | Bullet NA
Total 12,950.00 | 12,950.00
(©) Details of Outstanding Non-Convertible Securities (as on September 30, 2023):
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Teno Final
r/ Amount Redem
Series of Perio outstan ption | Secure
Non- d of ding Date / d/ Security
Convertible Mat | Cou | INRin | Date of Sched | Unsec (Asset
Securities ISIN urity | pon | Lakhs) | Allotment ule ured Cover)
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited
(BOMF) 2,250.00
Blue Orchard
Finance 30
Limited INE982X 12.4 30 March | March | Secure
(JAWEF) 07234 48 5% | 2,250.00 2022 2026 d 110.00%
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited
(BOMF) 2,250.00
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited INE982X 12.4 31 May |29 May | Secure
(MIFA) 07283 48 5% | 1,500.00 2022 2026 d 110.00%
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited INE982X 12.4 30 June | 30 June | Secure
(COVID) 07150 72 0% | 2,210.00 2021 2027 d 110.00%
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited INE982X 12.4 24 July 26 July | Secure
(JAWEF) 07093 48 0% | 3,450.00 2020 2024 d 110.00%
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited INE982X 12.4 2 July 02 July | Secure
(JAWEF) 07168 72 0% | 1,610.00 2021 2027 d 110.00%
Blue Orchard
Finance 22 22
Limited INE982X 12.3 February | Februa | Secure
(MIFA) 07127 60 0% | 2,600.00 2021 ry 2026 d 110.00%
Blue Orchard
Finance
Limited INE982X 12.4 5 July 05 May | Secure
(MIFA) 07143 58 0% | 1,610.00 2021 2026 d 110.00%
Creation
Investments | INE982X 15.2 27 June | 03 July | Unsecu
FPI, LLC 08083 60 5% | 2,500.00 2023 2028 red 0.00%
30
Creation Decem
Investments | INE982X 11.7 30 March ber Secure
FPI, LLC 07226 33 6% | 1,820.00 2022 2024 d 110.00%
DWM AFIF 2,030.00
DWM MMI | INE982X 12.8 31 May | O1 June | Secure
(Euro) 07382 36 0% | 1,227.00 2023 2026 d 100.00%
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DWMEF-T 2,030.00
14
INE982X 11.8 | 20,500.0 | 14 March | March | Secure
FMO 07374 60 5% 0 2023 2028 d 110.00%
15
Decem
Global Access | INE982X 11.4 15 June ber Secure
Fund LLP 07291 42 2% | 4,670.00 2022 2025 d 100.00%
GMO-Z.com
Payment
Gateway 27 26
India Credit | INE982X 12.0 February | Februa | Secure
Fund 07358 24 0% | 3,064.29 2023 ry 2025 d 110.00%
GMO-Z.com
Payment
Gateway 28 27
India Credit | INE982X 12.0 February | Februa | Secure
Fund 07366 24 0% | 2,250.00 2023 ry 2025 d 110.00%
Gojo
Company and | INE982X 11.7 3 June 02 June | Unsecu
Inc. 08075 36 5% | 6,100.00 2022 2025 red 0.00%
Hinduja
Leyland 29
Finance INE982X 11.8 30 May | Februa | Secure
Limited 07275 21 6% | 714.29 2022 ry 2024 d 110.00%
IFMR
Finance for
Freedom
Fund III with
IFMR
Flmpact Long
Term Credit | INE982X 15.7 29 March | 30 May | Unsecu
Fund 08018 74 5% | 2,000.00 2019 2025 red 0.00%
Karvy Capital | INE982X 8 July
Limited 08034 1,000.00 2019
Karvy Capital | INE982X 14.2 1 August | 08 July | Unsecu
Limited 08042 84 7% | 1,500.00 2019 2026 red 0.00%
Northern Arc
Capital 20 20
Limited INE982X 12.2 October | Octobe | Secure
(Series A) 07333 24 5% | 1,083.33 2022 r2024 d 110.00%
Northern Arc
Capital 20 20
Limited INE982X 13.0 October | Octobe | Secure
(Series B) 07341 36 0% | 1,736.11 2022 r 2025 d 110.00%
Northern Arc 28 31
Income INE982X 13.7 September | Octobe | Secure
Builder Fund 07325 24 5% | 1,500.00 2022 r 2024 d 110.00%
115% till
Northern Arc 30 04-06-
Income Septem 2022,
Builder Fund | INE982X 13.1 14 June ber Secure 130% till
(Series 1I) 07135 40 6% | 2,000.00 2021 2024 d 04-05-2023
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&
150% till
30-09-2024
Northern Arc 15
India Impact | INE982X 15.1 14 March | March | Unsecu
Trust / Fund 08067 60 5% | 3,000.00 2022 2027 red 0.00%
Northern Arc
Money 28 31
Market Alpha | INE982X 13.8 September | Octobe | Secure
Trust 07317 36 7% | 3,000.00 2022 r 2025 d 110.00%
ResponsAbilit
y India
Business
Advisors Pvt.
Ltd. (MEF) 3,700.00
ResponsAbilit
y India
Business
Advisors Pvt.
Ltd. (UTI 14 14
Wealth INE982X 124 January Januar | Secure
Creator) 07218 48 4% | 500.00 2022 y 2026 d 110.00%
ResponsAbilit
y India
Business
Advisors Pvt.
Ltd. (MEF) 2,000.00
ResponsAbilit
y India
Business
Advisors Pvt. 31
Ltd. (UTI Decem
Wealth INE982X 12.7 2 June ber Secure
Creator) 07267 54 0% | 2,000.00 2022 2026 d 110.00%
ResponsAbilit
y India
Business
Advisors Pvt. 22
Ltd. (UTI Novem
Wealth INE982X 13.3 23 August ber Secure
Creator) 07184 75 8% | 2,850.00 2019 2027 d 110.00%
ResponsAbilit
y India
Business
Advisors Pvt.
Ltd. (UTI 12
Wealth INE982X 12.3 12 August | August | Secure
Creator) 07176 72 8% | 8,000.00 2021 2027 d 110.00%
23
INE982X 11.8 23 May | Februa | Secure
Unifi AIF 07259 21 6% | 685.71 2022 ry 2024 d 110.00%
Vivriti India 18 18
Impact Bond | INE982X 13.7 December | Decem | Secure
Fund 07119 36 5% | 833.33 2020 ber d 110.00%
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2023
Vivriti India 22
Impact Bond | INE982X 14.7 October | 21 May | Unsecu
Fund 08059 67 5% | 3,000.00 2021 2027 red 0.00%
Yubi
Securities - 6 06
MAS+SK INE982X 10.2 September | March | Secure
Finance 07309 18 9% | 3,500.00 2022 2024 d 110.00%
110,524.
Total 06
(d) Details of commercial paper issuances as at the end of the last quarter (i.e., September 30,
2023) in the following format:
Series | ISI | Teno | Cou | Amount Date of | Redemption | Credit | Secur | Secur | Other
of Non- | N r/ pon | outstandi | allotme Date / Rating | ed/ ity details
Conver Perio ng (INR nt Schedule Unse viz.
tible d of in Crore) cured details
Securit Matu of
ies rity Issuing
and
Paying
Agent,
details
of
Credit
Rating
Agencie
s
N.A. N. | N.A. | N.A. | NA. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. | N.AA. | N.A.
A.
(e) List of top ten holders of non-convertible securities in terms of value (on a cumulative basis):
Holding as a % of
Face value of total outstanding
Sr. No. Name of holders Category of holder . non convertible
holding (Rs.) .e
securities of the
Issuer
1 | FMO FPI 100000 18.55%
ResonsAbility India
Business Advisors Pvt.
2 | Ltd. (UTI Wealth Creator) | FPI 1000000 12.08%
Blue Orchard Finance
3 | Limited JAWEF) FPI 1000000 6.61%
4 | Gojo Company and Inc. FPI 1000000 5.52%
Blue Orchard Finance
5 | Limited (MIFA) FPI 1000000 5.17%
6 | ResonsAbility India FPI 1000000 5.16%
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Business Advisors Pvt.
Ltd. (MEF)
GMO-Z.com Payment
Gateway India Credit
7 | Fund AIF 1000000 4.81%
8 | Global Access Fund LP FPI 100000 4.23%
Blue Orchard Finance
9 | Limited (BOMF) FPI 1000000 4.07%
Creation Investments FPI,
10 | LLC FPI 1000000 3.91%
Total 70.10%
® List of top ten holders of Commercial Paper in terms of value (in cumulative basis):
Sr. No. Name of holder Category | Face value of | Holding as a % of total
of holder | holding commercial paper
outstanding of the
Issuer
N.A. | N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
(2) Details of the bank fund based facilities/ rest of the borrowing (if any, including hybrid debt

like Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), Optionally Convertible Debentures/
Preference Shares) from financial institutions or financial creditors:

Name of Party (in case | Type of | Amount Principal | Date of | Credi | Secured | Secu
of facility) / Name of | facility /| sanctioned | Amount | Repayme |t / rity
Instrument Instrume | /issued outstandi | nt /| Ratin | Unsecu
nt ng Schedule | g red
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. | N.A. N.A.
5.16 The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the Issuer along with name
of the counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, joint venture entity, group company, etc.) on
behalf of whom it has been issued, contingent liability including debt service reserve account
guarantees/ any put option etc. (Details of any outstanding borrowings taken/ debt securities
issued for consideration other than cash). This information shall be disclosed whether such
borrowing/ debt securities have been taken/ issued:Nil
a) in whole or part,
(b) at a premium or discount, or
(c) in pursuance of an option or not
5.17 Where the Issuer is a non-banking finance company or housing finance company, the following

disclosures on Asset Liability Management (ALM) shall be provided for the latest audited
financials:

A. Details with regard to lending done out of the issue proceeds of earlier issuances of debt
securities (whether public issue or private placement) by the Issuer

(a) Lending Policy: Should contain overview of origination, risk management, monitoring and
collections:

Please refer to the lending policy set out in Annexure VII.

(b) Classification of Loans given to associate or entities related to Board, Key Managerial
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Personnel and Senior Management, promoters, etc.:
Refer Annexure VII

(c) Classification of loans according to type of loans, denomination of loan outstanding by loan
to value, sectors, denomination of loans outstanding by ticket size, geographical
classification of borrowers, maturity profile etc.:

Please refer to paragraph (J) below of this table below

(d) Aggregated exposure to the top 20 borrowers with respect to the concentration of
advances, exposures to be disclosed in the manner as prescribed by RBI in its stipulations
on Corporate Governance for NBFCs or HFCs, from time to time;

Refer Annexure VII

(e) Details of loans, overdue and classified as non-performing assets (NPA) in accordance with
RBI stipulations:

Please refer to paragraph (K) of this table below

B. Details of borrowings made by NBFC

(a) A portfolio summary with regard to industries/ sectors to which borrowings have been
made:

Please refer to paragraph (J) in this table below including sub-paragraph (c) therein.

(b)NPA exposures of the Issuer for the last three financial years (both gross and net
exposures) and provisioning made for the same as per the last audited financial statements
of the Issuer:

Please refer to paragraph (K) of this table below.

(c) Quantum and percentage of secured vis-a-vis unsecured borrowings made; and

Type of | Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 | %

Borrowings | (INR) (in Crore)

Secured 3487.56 95.12%
Borrowings

Unsecured 178.84 4.88%
Borrowings

Total 3666.40 100%

C. Details of change in shareholding

(a) Any change in promoters’ holdings during the last financial year beyond the threshold, as
prescribed by RBI:

There has been no change in the shareholding of the Issuer beyond the thresholds prescribed by
the RBI.

D. Disclosure of Assets Under Management

(a) Segment wise breakup:
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Please refer to sub-paragraph (c) of paragraph (J) in this table below.
(b) Type of Loans

Please refer to sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph (J) in this table below.

E. Details of borrowers

(a) Geographical location wise

Please refer to sub-paragraph (e) of paragraph (J) in this table below.

F. Details of Gross NPA

(a) Segment wise:

Please refer to sub-paragraph (c¢) of paragraph (K) in this table below.

G. Details of Assets and Liabilities

(a) Residual maturity profile wise into several bucket:

Please refer to paragraph (L) in this table below.

H. Additional details of loans made by the issuer where it is a Housing Finance Company

Given that the Issuer is not a housing finance company, this is not applicable.

I. Disclosure of latest ALM statements to stock exchange

Not Applicable

J. Classification of loans according to

(a) Type of | Details of types of loans

Loans:
SL. No. | Types of loans Rs. crore
1 Secured 36.26
2 Unsecured 3,796.05
Total assets under management | 3,832.30
(AUMM

*Information required at borrower level (and not by loan account as customer
may have multiple loan accounts); ™Issuer is also required to disclose off
balance sheet items,

(b) Denomination | Details of LTV
of loans
outstanding SI. No. | LTV (at the time of origination) Percentage of
by loan-to- AUM
value: 1 Upto 40% -
2 40-50% -
3 50-60% -
4 60-70% -
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5 70-80% -
6 80-90% -
7 >90% -
Total -
(c) Sector Details of sectoral exposure
Exposure
SI. No. | Segment-wise break-up of AUM Percentage of
AUM
1 Retail
A Mortgages (home loans and loans | -
against property)
B Gold loans -
C Vehicle finance -
D MFI 99.88%
E MSME 0.12%
F Capital market funding (loans against | -
shares, margin funding)
G Others -
2 Wholesale -
A Infrastructure -
B Real estate (including builder loans) | -
C Promoter funding -
D Any other sector (as applicable) -
E Others -
Total 100%
(d) Denomination | Details of outstanding loans category wise
of loans
outstanding SL No. | Ticket size (at the time of | Percentage of
by ticket origination) AUM
size*: 1 Upto Rs. 2 lakh 99.80%
2 Rs. 2-5 lakh 0.11%
3 Rs. 5 - 10 lakh 0.02%
4 Rs. 10 - 25 lakh 0.01%
5 Rs. 25 - 50 lakh 0.00%
6 Rs. 50 lakh - 1 crore 0.01%
7 Rs. 1 -5 crore 0.05%
8 Rs. 5 -25 crore -
9 Rs. 25 - 100 crore -
10 >Rs. 100 crore -
Total 100%
* Information required at the borrower level (and not by loan account as a
customer may have multiple loan accounts),
(e) Geographical | Top 5 states borrower wise
classification
of borrowers: SI. No. | Top S states Percentage of
AUM
1 UTTAR PRADESH 22.75%
2 BIHAR 18.95%
3 PUNJAB 7.71%
4 HARYANA 6.30%
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5 KARNATAKA 6.02%
Total 61.73
K. Details of loans, overdue and classified as non-performing assets (NPA) in accordance with
RBI stipulations
(a) Movement of
Gross NPA Movement of gross NPA* Rs. crore
Opening gross NPA 78.544
- Additions during the year 194.285
- Reductions during the year -223.135
Closing balance of gross NPA 49.694

*Please indicate the gross NPA recognition policy (Day’s Past Due): 90 days

(b) Movement of
provisions for
NPA

Movement of provisions for NPA

Rs. crore

Opening balance

19913

- Provisions made during the year

32.723

- Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions

-20.881

Closing balance

31.755

(c) Segment wise
gross NPA

SI. No.

Segment-wise gross NPA

Gross NPA (%)

Retail

>

Mortgages (home loans and loans
against property)

Gold loans

Vehicle finance

MFI

MSME

issllestiwli@)ier

Capital market funding (loans against
shares, margin funding)

Others

Wholesale

Infrastructure

Real estate (including builder loans)

Promoter funding

Any other sector (as applicable)

oo w > Q

Others

Total

1.29%

L. Residual maturity profile of assets and liabilities (in line with the RBI format):

Residual maturity profile of assets and liabilities

Category Up

30/31

to | >1

month

>2
months

>3
months

>6 >1
months | -

> 5
years

year | >3 Total

3 | years -
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days - 2| - 3 - 6 | -1 year | years 5
months | months | months years

Deposit

Advances

182.72 | 167.04 | 197.46 | 619.77 192339 | 1,692.99 | 10.59 6.58 | 3,800.55

Investments
(FD s)

3.14 2.28 2.28 6.84 41.69 54.75 1490 |47.45|173.34

Borrowings

144.63 | 146.04 | 131.18 | 511.74 | 809.47 | 1,427.91 | 462.98 3633.95

FCA*

FCL*

- - - - - 3245 |- - 32.45

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

*FCA — Foreign Currency Assets; FCL — Foreign Currency Liabilities,

Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any Kkind of term
loans, debt securities, commercial papers (including technical delay) and other financial
indebtedness including corporate guarantee or letters of comfort issued by the Issuer, in the
preceding three years and the current financial year:

Nil

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit quality
(e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, litigations resulting in
material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the time of Issue which may affect the
Issue or the investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest in the non-convertible
securities/commercial paper.

The Issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change on the
financials/credit quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax
litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the time of issue,
which may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest/ continue to invest in the debt
securities of the Issuer.

Any litigation or legal action pending or taken by a Government Department or a statutory
body during the last three years immediately preceding the year of the issue of the issue
document against the promoter of the Company;

None

Details of default and non-payment of statutory dues for the preceding three financial years
and current financial year.

None

Details of pending litigation involving the issuer, promoter, director, subsidiaries, group
companies or any other person, whose outcome could have material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Issuer, which may affect the issue or the investor’s decision to invest /

continue to invest in the debt securities and/ or non-convertible redeemable preference shares.

None

Details of pending proceedings initiated against the issuer for economic offences, if any.
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5.24 Related party transactions entered during the preceding three financial years and current
financial year with regard to loans made or, guarantees given or securities provided.
Please refer Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter for each issuance.

5.25 The issue document shall not include a statement purporting to be made by an expert unless
the expert is a person who is not, and has not been, engaged or interested in the formation or
promotion or management, of the company and has given his written consent to the issue of the
issue document and has not withdrawn such consent before the delivery of a copy of the issue
document to the Registrar (as applicable) for registration and a statement to that effect shall be
included in the issue document.

None

5.26 In case the issuer is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) and the objects of the issue
entail loan to any entity who is a ‘group company’ then disclosures shall be made in the
following format.

Not Applicable. The proceeds raised from the Issue will be used solely for the Purpose.
Sr. No. Name of the Borrower (A) Amount of Percentage of
Advances Exposure (C)=
/exposures to | B/Total Assets
such borrower | Under
(Group) (Rs. | Management
Crore) (B)
N.A. | N.A. N.A. N.A.

5.27 In order to allow investors to better assess the issue, the following additional disclosures shall
be made by the issuer in the issue documents:

1) A portfolio summary with regards to industries/ sectors to which borrowings have been
granted by NBFCs:
Please refer to the Section 5.17 of this Disclosure Document

(i1) Quantum and percentage of secured vis-a-vis unsecured borrowings granted by
NBFCs:
Please refer to the Section 5.17 of this Disclosure Document

(ii1) Any change in promoters’ holdings in NBFCs during the preceding financial year
beyond the threshold specified by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time:
None

5.28 Consent of directors, auditors, bankers to issue, trustees, solicitors or advocates to the issue,

legal advisors to the issue, lead managers to the issue, Registrar to the Issue, and lenders (if
required, as per the terms of the agreement) and experts.
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PARTICULARS CONSENT

Directors The consent of the directors of the Issuer, to the extent
required, have been or will be duly obtained.

Auditors The Issuer has received the consent from its auditors
for inclusion of their name(s) and the relevant audited
financial statements in this General Information
Document.

Bankers to issue Not applicable

Trustees The consent of the lenders of the Issuer, to the extent
required, have been or will be duly obtained.

Solicitors /Advocates Not applicable. The Issuer has been advised by its in-
house legal and compliance team.

Legal Advisors Not applicable. The Issuer has been advised by its in-
house legal and compliance team.

Lead Manager Not applicable

Registrar The consent of the Registrar, to the extent required,
have been or will be duly obtained.

Lenders The consent of the lenders of the Issuer, to the extent
required, have been or will be duly obtained.

Experts The consent of experts, to the extent required, have
been or will be duly obtained.

The names of the debenture trustee(s) shall be mentioned with a statement to the effect that
debenture trustee(s) has given its consent for appointment along with the copy of the consent
letter from the debenture trustee.

As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document of a similar
nature, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not contain the
detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of payment by
the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the issue document.

Not applicable.

Disclosure of cash flow with date of interest/dividend/ redemption payment as per day count
convention

(a) The day count convention for dates on which the payments in relation to the non-
convertible securities which need to be made, should be disclosed:

(1) Interest and all other charges shall accrue based on an actual/actual basis.

(i1) All payments in respect of the Debentures required to be made by the Issuer shall
be made on a Business Day.

(iii) If any Due Date on which any interest or additional interest is payable falls on a
day which is a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such
Due Date shall be made on the succeeding Business Day.

(iv) If any Due Date on which any Outstanding Principal Amounts are payable falls on
a day which is a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such
Due Date shall be made on the preceding Business Day.
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v) If the Final Redemption Date or any other date on which the Debentures are
redeemed in full (including in accordance with the provisions on early redemption
under the DTD (please refer to the section named "Early Redemption” in Section
5.37 (Issue Details) of the General Information Document)) falls on a day which is
a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment of any amounts in respect of the
Outstanding Principal Amounts to be made shall be made on the preceding
Business Day.

(vi) In the absence of anything to the contrary mentioned in the Debenture Trust Deed
and other Transaction Documents, if any day for performance of any acts under the
Transaction Documents (other than those set out in paragraph (iii) to paragraph (v)
above) falls on a day which is not a Business Day, such acts shall be performed
shall be made on the succeeding Business Day.

Procedure and time schedule for allotment and issue of securities should be disclosed:

Please refer to the column on “Issue Timing” under Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this
General Information Document; and

Cash flows emanating from the non-convertible securities shall be mentioned in the issue
document, by way of an illustration:

The cashflows emanating from the Debentures, by way of an illustration, are set out under
Annexure IV (lllustration of Bond Cashflows) of this General Information Document.

Other details:

Creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve (“DRR”) — relevant legislations and applicability:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Issuer hereby agrees and undertakes that, if required under Applicable Law, it will
create a debenture redemption reserve ("DRR") in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act (and the rules and regulations made thereunder) and the guidelines issued by
the relevant Governmental Authorities.

If during the tenor of the Debentures, any guidelines are formulated (or modified or revised)
by any Governmental Authority in respect of creation of the DRR, the Issuer shall abide by
such guidelines and shall do all such deeds, acts and things as may be required in accordance
with Applicable Law.

Where applicable, the Issuer shall submit to the Debenture Trustee a certificate duly certified
by a chartered accountant certifying that the Issuer has transferred the required amount to the
DRR at the end of each Financial Year.

In addition to the foregoing, to the extent required by Applicable Law, the Issuer shall invest
or deposit amounts up to such thresholds, and in such form and manner and within the time
periods, as may be prescribed by Applicable Law, in respect of any amounts of the
Debentures maturing in any Financial Year.

Issue / instrument specific regulations - relevant details (Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013),
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, etc.):

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act
including the relevant notified rules thereunder, the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, the SEBI Listed
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Debentures Circulars, the LODR Regulations, the NBFC Directions, and the applicable guidelines
and directions issued by the RBI and SEBI.

Default in payment:

The Issuer agrees to pay additional interest at 2% (two percent) per annum (compounded monthly)
over the Interest Rate in respect of the Debentures on the Outstanding Amounts from the date of the
occurrence of an Event of Default until such Event of Default is cured or the Secured Obligations are
repaid (whichever is earlier), on each Interest Payment Date occurring during the aforementioned
period by no later than 5:00 PM (Indian Standard Time) on the relevant Interest Payment Date.

Delay in listing:

In accordance with the SEBI NCS Regulations read together with the SEBI Listing Timelines
Requirements, the Issuer confirms that in the event there is any delay in listing of the Debentures
beyond 3 (three) Business Days from the date of bidding on the EBP Platform/Closure of Issue
period in respect to the issue for the Debentures, the Issuer will pay to the Debenture Holders, penal
interest of 1% (one percent) per annum over the Interest Rate, from the deemed date of allotment of
the Debentures until the listing of the Debentures is completed.

Delay in allotment of securities:

@) The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures are allotted to the respective Debenture Holders
within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI Listing Timelines Requirements.

(ii) If the Issuer fails to allot the Debentures to the Applicants within 60 (sixty) calendar days
from the date of receipt of the Application Money ("Allotment Period"), it shall repay the
Application Money to the Applicants within 15 (fifteen) calendar days from the expiry of the
Allotment Period ("Repayment Period").

(iii) If the Issuer fails to repay the Application Money within the Repayment Period, then the
Issuer shall be liable to repay the Application Money along with interest at 12% (twelve
percent) per annum, gross of withholding taxes, from the expiry of the Allotment Period.

Issue details: Please refer to Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information Document

Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in Section 8 of this General Information
Document.

Disclosure required under Form PAS-4 under Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities), Rules, 2014 but not contained in this schedule, if any:

All disclosures prescribed under PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities),
Rules, 2014 have been done and made a part of the Key Information Document.

Project details: gestation period of the project; extent of progress made in the project;
deadlines for completion of the project; the summary of the project appraisal report (if any),
schedule of implementation of the project:

Not applicable

The issue document shall include the following other matters and reports, namely:
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(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

If the proceeds, or any part of the proceeds, of the issue of the debt securities are or is to
be applied directly or indirectly:

(i) in the purchase of any business; or

(ii) in the purchase of an interest in any business and by reason of that purchase, or
anything to be done in consequence thereof, or in connection therewith,

the company shall become entitled to an interest in either the capital or profits and losses
or both, in such business exceeding fifty per cent. thereof, a report made by a chartered
accountant upon -

(A) the profits or losses of the business for each of the three financial years
immediately preceding the date of the issue of the issue document; and

(B) the assets and liabilities of the business as on the latest date to which the accounts
of the business were made up, being a date not more than one hundred and twenty
days before the date of the issue of the issue document.

The Issuer confirms that it will not use the proceeds from the Issue, directly or indirectly other than
the purpose as mentioned in clause 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information Document,

(b)

In purchase or acquisition of any immoveable property including indirect acquisition of
immoveable property for which advances have been paid to third parties, disclosures
regarding:

(1) the names, addresses, descriptions and occupations of the vendors;

(i1) the amount paid or payable in cash, to the vendor and where there is more than
one vendor, or the company is a sub-purchaser, the amount so paid or payable to
each vendor, specifying separately the amount, if any, paid or payable for
goodwill;

(iii) the nature of the title or interest in such property proposed to be acquired by the
company; and

(iv) the particulars of every transaction relating to the property completed within the
two preceding years, in which any vendor of the property or any person who is or
was at the time of the transaction, a promoter or a director or proposed director of
the company, had any interest, direct or indirect, specifying the date of the
transaction and the name of such promoter, director or proposed director and
stating the amount payable by or to such vendor, promoter, director or proposed
director in respect of the transaction:

Provided that if the number of vendors is more than five, then the disclosures as required
above shall be on an aggregated basis, specifying the immoveable property being acquired
on a contiguous basis with mention of the location/total area and the number of vendors
from whom it is being acquired and the aggregate value being paid. Details of minimum
amount, the maximum amount and the average amount paid/ payable should also be
disclosed for each immovable property

The Issuer confirms that it will not use the proceeds from the Issue, directly or indirectly, for
purchase or acquisition of any immovable property.
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(d)

(e)

®

(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

If:

@) the proceeds, or any part of the proceeds, of the issue of the debt securities are or
are to be applied directly or indirectly and in any manner resulting in the
acquisition by the company of shares in any other body corporate; and -

(i) by reason of that acquisition or anything to be done in consequence thereof or in
connection therewith, that body corporate shall become a subsidiary of the
company, a report shall be made by a Chartered Accountant (who shall be named
in the issue document) upon —

A. the profits or losses of the other body corporate for each of the three
financial years immediately preceding the issue of the issue document; and

B. the assets and liabilities of the other body corporate ffas on the latest date
to which its accounts were made up.

The Issuer confirms that it will not use the proceeds from the Issue, directly or indirectly, for
acquisition of securities of any other body corporate.

The said report shall:

(1) indicate how the profits or losses of the other body corporate dealt with by the

report would, in respect of the shares to be acquired, have concerned members of
the issuer company and what allowance would have been required to be made, in
relation to assets and liabilities so dealt with for the holders of the balance shares,
if the issuer company had at all material times held the shares proposed to be
acquired; and

(i1) where the other body corporate has subsidiaries, deal with the profits or losses and

the assets and liabilities of the body corporate and its subsidiaries in the manner as
provided in paragraph (c) (ii) above.

Not Applicable

The broad lending and borrowing policy including summary of the key terms and
conditions of the term loans such as re-scheduling, prepayment, penalty, default; and
where such lending or borrowing is between the issuer and its subsidiaries or
associates, matters relating to terms and conditions of the term loans including re-
scheduling, prepayment, penalty, default shall be disclosed.

Please refer Annexure VII of this Document.

The aggregate number of securities of the issuer company and its subsidiary companies
purchased or sold by the promoter group, and by the directors of the company which is
a promoter of the issuer company, and by the directors of the issuer company and their
relatives, within six months immediately preceding the date of filing the issue document
with the Registrar of Companies are as follows.

Not Applicable

(€3]

The matters relating to:
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The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried
on by the Company or entered into more than 2 (Two) years before the date of this General
Information Document, which are or may be deemed material, have been entered into by the

Company.
S. No. Nature of Contract
1 Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Issuer.
) Board Resolution dated February 27, 2023 authorizing the issue of Debentures
offered under the terms of this Disclosure Document.
3 Shareholders Resolution dated July 03, 2023 authorizing the issue of non-
convertible debentures by the Company.
4 Shareholder Resolutions dated July 03, 2023 authorizing the borrowing by the
Company and the creation of security.
5 Copies of Annual Reports of the Company for the last three financial years and
financials for quarter ended September 30, 2023.
6 Credit rating letter from the credit rating agency and rating rationale along with
detailed press release.
7 Letter from Debenture Trustee giving its consent to act as Debenture Trustee.
8 Letter for Register and Transfer Agent.
9 Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company.
10 Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the
Registrar & Transfer Agent and the NSDL/CDSL.
11 Copy of application made to BSE for grant of in-principle approval for listing of
Debentures.
12 Debenture Trustee Agreement to be executed by the Issuer and the Debenture
Trustee.
13 Debenture Trust Deed to be executed by the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.
14 Deed of Hypothecation to be executed by the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.
(i1) Time and place at which the contracts together with documents will be available for
inspection from the date of issue document until the date of closing of subscription list
The contracts and documents referred to hereunder as material to the Issue, may be inspected
at the Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am to 4.00 pm on working days.
(h) Reference to the relevant page number of the audit report which sets out the details of

the related party transactions entered during the three financial years immediately

preceding the issue of issue document.

Financial Year | Page number of the audit report

which sets out the details of the
related party transactions

2022-23 | 141

2021-22 | 148
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2020-21 | 118

(1) The summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in the
three financial years immediately preceding the year of issue of issue document, and of
their impact on the financial statements and financial position of the company, and the
corrective steps taken and proposed to be taken by the company for each of the said
reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks.

NIL

) The details of:
i. any inquiry, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under the
securities laws or Companies Act or any previous companies law,
ii. prosecutions filed, if any (whether pending or not); and
iii. fines imposed or offences compounded,
in the three years immediately preceding the year of issue of issue document in the case
of the issuer being a company and all of its subsidiaries.

The Company has paid below fines to BSE Limited on account of delayed response:

Financial Year Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
2022-23 1.21
(k) Details of acts of material frauds committed against the Issuer in the preceding three
financial years and current financial year, if any, and if so, the action taken by the
issuer.
NIL

5.34  Details of Debt Securities Sought to be Issued

Please refer Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of this General Information Document.
5.35  Issue Size

Please refer Key Information Document of each issuance.

5.36  Utilization of the Issue Proceeds

(a) The funds raised by the Issue shall be utilised by the Issuer for the purposes of onward
lending ("Purpose").

(b) The funds raised by the Issue shall be utilised by the Issuer solely for the Purpose and the

Issuer shall not use the proceeds of the Issue towards:

(i1) any capital market instrument such as equity, debt, debt linked, and equity linked
instruments or any other capital market related activities (whether directly or
indirectly);

(iii) any speculative purposes;
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(iv)

V)

(vi)

investment in the real estate sector/real estate business (including the
acquisition/purchase of land);

in contravention of Applicable Law (including without limitation, any guidelines,
orders, rules or regulations issued by the RBI, the SEBI, any judicial authorities
and/or any other Governmental Authorities); and

any purpose, that is not eligible for the providing of financing by banks to non-
banking financial companies for bank finance to non-banking financial companies,
or, which results in a breach of the RBI's master circular no.
DOR.CRE.REC.N0.07/21.04.172/2023-24 dated April 3, 2023 on "Bank Finance to
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs)".

PROVIDED THAT until the funds raised by the Issue are utilised for the Purpose, the Issuer
shall be entitled to temporarily invest the funds raised by the Issue in liquid mutual funds and
deposits held with banks.

5.37 Issue Details

Security Name (Name of the non-

convertible securities which includes As specified in the respective Key Information Document

(Coupon/ dividend, Issuer Name and
maturity year) e.g. 8.70% XXX 2015.

Issuer / Company

Satya MicroCapital Limited

Type of Instrument

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Nature of Instrument
(Secured or Unsecured)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Seniority (Senior or Subordinated) As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Mode of Issue

Private placement

Eligible Investors

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

a. The NCDs are proposed to be listed on the WDM of the
BSE. The NCDs shall be listed within 3 (Three) working
days from the Issue Closure Date (“Listing Period”).

b. The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures continue to be
listed on the wholesale debt market segment of the BSE.

Listing (including name of stock c. In the event there is any delay in listing of the Debentures
Exchange(s) where it will be listed and beyond the Listing Period, the Issuer will:

timeline for listing)

(i) pay to the Debenture Holders, a penal interest of 1%
(One Percent) p.a. over the applicable Coupon Rate
from the Deemed Date of Allotment until the listing
of the Debentures is completed; and

(i) be permitted to utilize the issue proceeds of its 2
(two) subsequent privately placed issuances of
securities only after receiving final listing approval
from the stock exchange(s).

Rating of the Instrument (Rating) As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Credit Rating Agency

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Issue Size

As specified in the respective Key Information Document
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Minimum Subscription

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Option to retain oversubscription
(Amount)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Objects of the Issue / Purpose for which
there is requirement of funds

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

In case the issuer is a NBFC and the
objects of the issue entail loan to any
entity who is a ‘group Issuer' then
disclosures shall be made in the
following format:

Not Applicable

Objects of the Issue / Purpose for which
there is requirement of funds

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Coupon Rate

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Step Up /Step Down Coupon Rate

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Coupon Payment Frequency

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Coupon Payment Date(s)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Cumulative / Non-Cumulative, in case
of dividend

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Coupon Type / Coupon Rate Paramter
(Fixed, floating or other structure)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Coupon Reset Process/ Spread Reset
Process (including rates, spread,
effective date, interest rate cap and floor
etc.).

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Day Count Basis (Actual/Actual)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Interest on Application Money

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Default Interest Rate/ Additional Interest
Rate

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Tenor

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Redemption Amount

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Redemption Date

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Redemption Premium/ Discount

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Issue price

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Discount at which security is issued and
the effective coupon as a result of such
discount.

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Put Option As specified in the respective Key Information Document
Put Option Date(s) As specified in the respective Key Information Document
Put Option Price As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Put Notification Time (Timelines by
which the investor need to intimate
Issuer before exercising the put)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Call Option

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Call Option Date(s)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document
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Call Option Price

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Call Notification Time (Timelines by
which the investor need to intimate
Issuer before exercising the call)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Face Value

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Minimum application and multiples of
Debt securities thereafter

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Issue Timing

1. Issue Opening Date

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

2. Issue Closing Date

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

3. Date of earliest closing of the issue, if
any.

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

4. Pay-in Date

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

5. Deemed Date of Allotment

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Settlement Mode of the Instrument

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Depository

NSDL and CDSL

Disclosure of Interest/Dividend/
redemption dates

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Record Date

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

All covenants of the Issue (including
side letters, accelerated payment clause
etc.)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Description regarding Security (where
applicable) including type of security
(movable/immovable/tangible etc.), type
of charge (pledge/ hypothecation/
mortgage etc.), date of creation of
security/ likely date of creation of
security, minimum security cover,
revaluation, replacement of security,
interest to the debenture holder over and
above the coupon rate as specified in the
Trust Deed and disclosed in the Offer
Document/ Placement Memorandum.

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Transaction Documents

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Conditions Precedent to Disbursement

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Conditions Subsequent to Disbursement

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Issuance mode of the Instrument

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Trading mode of the Instrument

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Event of Defaults (including manner of
voting /conditions of joining Inter
Creditor Agreement)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Provisions related to Cross Default
Clause

As specified in the respective Key Information Document
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Consequences Of Events Of Default

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Creation of recovery expense fund

The Issuer shall create a recovery expense fund in accordance
with the applicable SEBI regulations and inform the Debenture
Trustee of the same. The recovery expense fund shall be
utilised in such manner and for such purposes as is more
particularly provided under the said Regulations and
Applicable Law.

Conditions for breach of covenant (as
specified in the Debenture Trust Deed)

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Right to Re-purchase and Re-issue the
Debenture

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Role and Responsibilities of
Debenture Trustee

To oversee and monitor the overall transaction for and on
behalf of the Debenture Holder(s).

Risk Factors pertaining to the Issue

As mentioned in the General Information Document under
captioned “Risk Factors”

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

As specified in the respective Key Information Document

Note:

1. If there is any change in coupon rate pursuant to any event including lapse of certain time period or
downgrade in rating, then such new coupon rate and the events which lead to such change should be
disclosed.

2. The list of documents which has been executed in connection with the issue and subscription of debt
securities shall be annexed.

3. While the debt securities are secured to the extent of hundred per cent of the amount of principal and
interest amount or as per the terms of this General Information Document, in favour of Debenture
Trustee, it is the duty of the Debenture Trustee to monitor that the security is maintained.

4. The Issuer shall provide granular disclosures in this General Information Document, with regards to

the “Object of the Issue” including the percentage of the issue proceeds earmarked for each of the

“object of the issue”.
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SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

The following disclosures shall be made if the issuer or its promoter or director is declared wilful defaulter:

A) Name of the bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter: NIL

B) The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A

C) Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A
D) Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A

E) Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters: N.A

F) Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer in order to enable investors to take informed
decisions: N.A

G) Any other disclosure as specified by SEBI: N.A
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7.2

7.3

7.4
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SECTION 7: TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS AND KEY TERMS
TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS
The following documents shall be executed in relation to the Issue (“Transaction Documents”):

(a Debenture Trustee Agreement, for appointment of the Debenture Trustee (“Debenture
Trustee Agreement”);

(b) Debenture Trust Deed, which will set out the terms upon which the Debentures are being
issued and shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided
by the Issuer (“Debenture Trust Deed”);

©) Deed of Hypothecation whereby the Issuer will create an exclusive first charge by way of
hypothecation over the Hypothecated Property in favour of the Debenture Trustee to secure
its obligations in respect of the Debentures (“Deed of Hypothecation”); and

(d) Gurantee Deed (if Applicable) and

() Such other documents as agreed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE ISSUER

As per Key Information Document/Debenture Trust Deed of each issuance.

SCORES AUTHENTICATION

The Issuer has received the Securities and Exchange Board of India Complaints Redress System
(SCORES) authentication prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment.

COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER

As per Key Information Document of each issuance.

*Please note that any capitalised term used in this section, but not defined herein, shall have the meaning
as assigned to such term in the Debenture Trust Deed.
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SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Debentures being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the Act, the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this General Information Document, Application Form
and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction Documents.

8.1 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be entitled to
transfer the Debentures to a person who is not entitled to subscribe to the Debentures. The Debenture(s) shall
be transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and other applicable
laws. The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the
rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL and CDSL and the relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and
any other applicable laws and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the
transfer formalities are completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be
paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holders
maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In cases where the transfer
formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the transferees would need to be
settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal procedure followed for transfer of securities
held in dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of these Debentures held in dematerialised form.
The seller should give delivery instructions containing details of the buyer’s DP account to his DP.

8.2 Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the Debenture
Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by cheque/EFT/RTGS to those
Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent. The
names would be as per the R&T Agent’s records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All
such Debentures will be simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the relevant Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name and
account number, address, bank details and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T Agent to the
Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS to
the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

8.3 Debenture Trustee for the Debenture Holder(s)

The Debenture Trustee for the respective Debentures to be issued in terms of Key Information Document is
more particularly specified in the respective Key Information Document and the consent for appointment
along with the copy of the consent letter from the debenture trustee is annexed to the respective Key
Information Document.The Debenture Trustee will protect the interest of the Debenture Holder(s) in regard
to the repayment of principal and coupon thereon and they will take necessary action, subject to and in
accordance with the Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed, at the cost of the Issuer.
No Debenture Holder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer unless the Debenture Trustee,
having become so bound to proceed, fails to do so. The Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Debenture
Trust Deed shall more specifically set out the rights and remedies of the Debenture Holder(s) and the manner
of enforcement thereof.

8.4 Sharing of Information
The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange, share or

part with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available with the Issuer, with its
subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies, as
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may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for use
of the aforesaid information.

8.5 Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than those
available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture Holders the right to
receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of the shareholders of the Issuer.

8.6 Modification of Debentures

The Debenture Trustee and the Issuer will agree to make any modifications in the General Information
Document which, in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee, is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is to
correct a manifest error.

Any other change or modification to the terms of the Debentures shall require approval by the Majority
Debenture Holders.

8.7 Right to accept or reject Applications

The board of directors reserve its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application for
subscription to the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof.

8.8 Notices

Any notice in respect of the Debentures may be served by the Issuer upon the Debenture Trustee/Debenture
Holders in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents.

8.9 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder may apply for the Debentures by completing the Application
Form in the prescribed format in block letters in English as per the instructions contained therein. The
minimum number of Debentures that can be applied for and the multiples thereof shall be set out in the
Application Form. No application can be made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application Forms should be
duly completed in all respects and applications not completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected.
The name of the applicant’s bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the
applicant. This is required for the applicant’s own safety and these details will be printed on the refund
orders and /or redemptions warrants.

The Applicant should transfer payments required to be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS, to the bank
account as per the details mentioned in the Application Form.

The subscription to the Debentures shall be made by the Eligible Investors through the electronic book
mechanism as prescribed by SEBI under the EBP Requirements by placing bids on the EBP Platform during
the Issue period. The Issuer will make the bidding announcement on the EBP Platform at least 1 (one)
Business Day before initiating the bidding process in accordance with the EBP Requirements. In case the
Eligible Investors are not registered on the EBP Platform, they will have to register themselves as an
"investor" on the EBP Platform (as a one-time exercise) and also complete the required/prescribed "know
your customer” verification process. Eligible Investors should also refer to the operational guidelines of the
relevant EBP in this respect. The disclosures required pursuant to the EBP Requirements are set out
hereinbelow:

Details of size of issue and green shoe | As per Key Information Document for each issuance.
option, if any
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Provided that the green shoe portion

shall not exceed five times the base

issue size

Interest Rate Parament As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Bid opening and closing date As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Minimum Bid Lot As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Manner of bidding in the Issue As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Manner of allotment in the Issue As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Manner of settlement in the Issue Pay-in of funds through ICCL.
The pay-in of the Application Money for the
Debentures shall be made by way of transfer of funds
from the bank account(s) of the Eligible Investors
(whose bids have been accepted) as registered with the
Electronic Book Provider into the account of the
ICCL, as specified in this regard below.

Settlement Cycle As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Cut-off yield As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

Process flow of settlement (EBP):

The Eligible Investors whose bids have been accepted by the Issuer and to whom a signed copy of this
General Information Document along with the PPOA have been issued by the Issuer and who have
submitted/shall submit the Application Form ("Successful Bidders"), shall make the payments in respect of
the Application Money in respect of the Debentures towards the allocation made to them, into the bank
account of the ICCL, the details of which are as set out below:

Account I:
Name of the Bank HDFC Bank Limited
IFSC Code HDFC0000060
Account Number ICCLEB
Name of the beneficiary | Indian Clearing Corporation Ltd.

Account 2:

Name of the Bank YES BANK

IFSC Code YESBOCMS

NOC

Account Number ICCLEB

Name of the beneficiary | Indian Clearing Corporation Ltd.
Account 3:

Name of the Bank HDFC Bank

IFSC Code ICIC0000106

Account Number ICCLEB

Name of the beneficiary

Indian Clearing Corporation Ltd.

The pay-in of the Application Money by the Successful Bidders will be made only from the bank account(s),
which have been provided / updated by them in the EBP system. Any amount received from third party
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accounts or from accounts not specified in the EBP system will be refunded and no allotment will be made
against such payments. Upon the transfer of funds into the aforesaid account of ICCL and the Issuer
confirming its decision to proceed with the allotment of the Debentures in favour of the Successful Bidders
to the ICCL, the R&T Agent and the EBP and initiating the requisite corporate action for allotment of
Debentures and credit of the demat letter of allotment into the relevant demat account of the Successful
Bidders through the R&T Agent, the R&T Agent shall provide corporate action file along with all requisite
documents to the relevant Depositories by 12:00 hours and also intimate the EBP of the aforesaid actions.
Upon the Depositories confirming the allotment of the Debentures and the credit of the Debentures into the
demat account of the Successful Bidders to EBP, the subscription monies in respect of the Debentures from
the aforesaid account of ICCL shall be released into the Issuer’s bank account, the details of which are as set
out below:

Name of the beneficiary Satya MicroCapital Ltd Share A/c

Name of the Bank ICICI Bank Ltd

Branch Address: ICICI Bank Ltd, Krishna Apra Royal Plaza, D2, EACB, Alpha 1,
Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201306

IFSC Code ICIC0000254

Account Number 250605000070

It must be noted that all funds pay-in obligations need to be fulfilled in totality. Partial fund receipt against
any given obligation will be treated as a default and debarment penalties will be applicable as specified by
the EBP Requirements and other Applicable Law.

8.10  Application Procedure

Potential Investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the General
Information Document during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date (both
dates inclusive). The Issuer reserves the right to change the issue schedule including the Deemed Date of
Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any reasons. The Issue will be open for subscription during
the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the Issue Schedule and the procedure will be
subject to the EBP Requirements.

8.11 Fictitious Applications

All fictitious applications will be rejected. Each Eligible Investor shall provide a confirmation to the EBP
that it is not using any software, algorithm, "Bots" or other automation tools, which would give unfair access
for placing bids on the EBP Platform.

8.12  Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, the Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any application, in
part or in full, without assigning any reason. In case of over subscription, allotment shall be made on a "price
time priority basis" in accordance with the EBP Requirements. The investors will be required to remit the
funds in the account of the ICCL as well as submit the duly completed Application Form along with other
necessary documents to the Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

8.13  Payment Instructions (NON-EBP)
The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire amount per Debenture is payable along with

the making of an application. Applicants can remit the application amount on the Pay-in Date in the
following account:

BENEFICIARY NAME Satya MicroCapital Ltd Share A/c

BANK ACCOUNT NO. 250605000070
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SWIFT CODE ICICINBBXXX

IFSC CODE ICIC0000254

BANK NAME ICICI Bank Ltd

BRANCH ADDRESS ICICI Bank Ltd, Krishna Apra Royal Plaza, D2, EACB, Alpha 1, Greater
Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201306

8.14  Eligible Investors

The following categories of investors, when specifically approached and have been identified upfront, are
eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective investment
norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the relevant documents along
with the Application Form (“Eligible Investors”):

(a) Resident Individuals;

(b) Hindu Undivided Family;

(c) Trust;

(d) Limited Liability Partnerships, Partnership Firm(s);

(e) Portfolio Managers and Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) registered with SEBI;
(f) Association of Persons;

(g) Companies and Bodies Corporate including Public Sector Undertakings;
(h) Commercial Banks, Regional Rural Banks, Financial Institutions;

(i) Insurance Companies;

(G) Mutual Funds/ Alternative Investment Fund (AIF); and

(k) any other investor eligible to invest in these Debentures.

Investors, who are registered on the EBP Platform and are eligible to make bids for the Debentures of the
Issuer and to whom allocation is to be made by Issuer pursuant to selection under the electronic book
mechanism for issuance of securities on private placement basis in terms of the EBP Requirements and the
Electronic Book Providers shall be considered as "identified persons" for the purposes of Section 42(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to whom the Issuer shall make private placement of the Debentures and only such
"identified persons" shall receive a direct communication from the Issuer with offer to subscribe to the
Debentures and only such "identified persons" shall be entitled to subscribe to the Debentures.

Additionally, those arrangers/brokers/intermediaries etc. (as per the defined limits under the EBP
Requirements) specifically mapped by the Issuer on the EBP Platform are also eligible to bid/apply/invest for
this Issue.

All Eligible Investors are required to check and comply with Applicable Law(s) including the relevant rules /
regulations / guidelines applicable to them for investing in this Issue of Debentures and the Issuer, is not in
any way, directly or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is
the Issuer required to check or confirm the same.

Hosting of this General Information Document on the website of the BSE should not be construed as an offer
or an invitation to offer to subscribe to the Debentures and the same has been hosted only as it is stipulated
under the SEBI ILNCS Regulations read with the EBP Requirements. Eligible Investors should check their
eligibility before making any investment.

All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential investors in the Issue may be subject to statutory and/or regulatory
requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities by such categories of
persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all regulatory requirements
applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requirements. Applicants ought to seek
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independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.
8.15  Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

(a) The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DP’s of NSDL and CDSL
prior to making the application.

(b) The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number and DP -
ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form”.

() Debentures allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s respective beneficiary
account(s) with the DP.

(d) For subscribing to the Debentures, names in the Application Form should be identical to those
appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should necessarily be in
the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with the DP.

(e) Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by the Registrar
and Transfer Agent to the Issue.

® If incomplete/incorrect details are given under the heading “Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form” in the Application Form, it will be deemed to be an incomplete
application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the sole discretion of the Issuer.

(2) For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the applicant as
registered with his/her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the applicant. The applicant is
therefore responsible for the correctness of his/her demographic details given in the Application
Form vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer
would not be liable for the losses, if any.

(h) The redemption amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders whose names
appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date. In case
of those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not identified in the records of the R&T Agent
as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in abeyance the payment of the redemption amount or
other benefits, until such time that the beneficial owner is identified by the R&T Agent and
conveyed to the Issuer, whereupon the redemption amount and benefits will be paid to the
beneficiaries, as identified.

8.16  Depository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with CDSL and NSDL for issue and holding of Debentures in
dematerialised form.

8.17 List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each Record Date.
This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

8.18 Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with the
names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and the tax exemption
certificate/document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of the completed

88



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority should be notified to
the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es) as may be specified by the
Issuer from time to time through a suitable communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a certified
true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along with other
constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making the application,
failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application in
whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and specimen signatures of
all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed Application
Form.

8.19  Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be made in
respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund/venture capital fund registered with the SEBI and such
applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that the application made by the asset
management company/trustee/custodian clearly indicated their intention as to the scheme for which the
application has been made.

The Application Forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which
application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of:

(a) SEBI registration certificate
(b)  Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions
(c)  Specimen signature of authorized signatories

8.20 Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable:

(a) Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constitutional documents
(b) Resolution authorising investment

(©) Certified true copy of the Power of Attorney to custodian

(d) Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

(e) SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)
® Copy of PAN card
(2) Application Form (including EFT/RTGS details)

8.21  Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant and the
magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of redemption amount
and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through cheque/EFT/RTGS.

8.22  Succession

In the event of winding up of a Debenture Holder (being a company), the Issuer will recognise the legal
representative as having title to the Debenture(s). The Issuer shall not be bound to recognize such legal

representative as having title to the Debenture(s), unless they obtain legal representation, from a court in
India having jurisdiction over the matter.
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The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of such legal
representation, in order to recognise any person as being entitled to the Debenture(s) standing in the name of
the concerned Debenture Holder on the production of sufficient documentary proof and an indemnity.

8.23 Mode of Payment

All payments must be made through cheque(s) demand draft(s), EFT/RTGS as set out in the Application

Form.

8.24  Effect of Holidays

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

If any Due Date on which any interest or additional interest is payable falls on a day which is
a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made
on the succeeding Business Day.

If any Due Date on which any Outstanding Principal Amounts are payable falls on a day
which is a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall
be made on the preceding Business Day.

If the Final Redemption Date or any other date on which the Debentures are redeemed in full
(including in accordance with the provisions on early redemption under the DTD (please
refer to the section named "Early Redemption" in Section 5.37 (Issue Details) of the General
Information Document)) falls on a day which is a Sunday or is not a Business Day, the
payment of any amounts in respect of the Outstanding Principal Amounts to be made shall
be made on the preceding Business Day.

In the absence of anything to the contrary mentioned in the Debenture Trust Deed and other
Transaction Documents, if any day for performance of any acts under the Transaction
Documents (other than those set out in paragraph (i) to paragraph (iii) above) falls on a day
which is not a Business Day, such acts shall be performed shall be made on the succeeding
Business Day.

8.25 Tax Deduction at Source

1. Interest on NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue is subject to deduction of income tax under the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“IT Act”) or any other statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof, as applicable. NCD Holders desirous of claiming non-deduction or lower deduction of tax at
source under applicable laws, as the case may be, shall be required to submit the declaration/ certificates
as per format prescribed under applicable laws with the Issuer and the RTA at the below mentioned
address on or prior to the relevant Record Date for payment of interest on the NCDs:

Particulars Contact Details of the Issuer Contact Details of the RTA

Name

SATYA MICROCAPITAL | KFIN Technologies Limited
LIMITED

Correspondenc | 519, STH FLOOR, DLF PRIME | Selenium , Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,

e Address TOWERS, OKHLA | Financial District, Nanakramguda , Hyderabad ,
INDUSTRIAL AREA, PHASE- | Telangana
I, DELHI- 110020, INDIA

Contact Person | SANJAY GOEL Mr. SP Venugopal

Designation DEPUTY CHIEF FINANCIAL | GM — Corporate Registry

OFFICER
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E-mail ID sanjay.goel@satyamicrocapital.c | venu.sp@kfintech.com
om
Tel. No. +91 11 49724000 (040) 7961 1000
Fax No. +91-11-49724051 -
Link for online | - https://mfs.kfintech.com/onlinesubmissionform1
submission 5gh

2. In case of non-receipt of such prescribed declaration/ certificate from the NCD Holders claiming non-
deduction or lower deduction of tax at source under applicable laws, on or prior to the relevant Record
Date, the Issuer shall make TDS deductions in accordance with the prescribed rates prior to credit of
interest on NCDs.

3. Income Tax is deductible at source at the rate of 10% on interest on NCDs held by resident Indians in
accordance with Section 193 of the IT Act. In cases where interest is to be paid to an Individual or
hindu undivided family (“HUF”) (being the NCD Holder) is less than Rs. 5,000 and interest is to be
paid by way of account payee cheque then the relevant NCD Holder may seek non deduction of tax at
source on the interest on NCDs by submitting the prescribed declaration/certificates with the Issuer and
the RTA at the aforesaid address on or prior to the relevant Record Date.

4. In case of NCD Holder who is a resident Individual or resident HUF claiming non-deduction or lower
deduction of tax at source under section 193 of the IT Act, as the case may be, the NCD Holder should
furnish either (a) a declaration (in duplicate) in the prescribed form i.e. (i) Form 15H which can be
given by Individuals who are of the age of 60 years or more (ii) Form 15G which can be given by all
Debenture Holders (other than companies and firms), or (b) a certificate, from the Assessing Officer
which can be obtained by all Debenture Holders (including companies and firms) by making an
application in the prescribed form i.e. Form No. 13.

5. Debenture Holders may seek/ may be granted, as the case may be, non-deduction or lower deduction of
tax at source in following instances under the IT Act:

a) When the Assessing Officer issues a certificate on an application by a Debenture Holder on
satisfaction that the total income of the Debenture Holder justifies no/lower deduction of tax at
source as per the provisions of Section 197(1) of the IT Act; and that a valid certificate is filed by
the NCD Holder with the Company before the Record Date for payment of interest;

b) When the resident Debenture Holder with Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) (not being a
company or a firm) submits a declaration as per the provisions of section 197A(1A) of the IT Act
in the prescribed Form 15G verified in the prescribed manner to the effect that the tax on his
estimated total income of the financial year in which such income is to be included in computing
his total income will be NIL. However, under section 197A(1B) of the IT Act, Form 15G cannot
be submitted nor considered for exemption from tax deduction at source if the dividend income
referred to in section 194, interest on securities, interest, withdrawal from NSS and income from
units of mutual fund or of Unit Trust of India as the case may be or the aggregate of the amounts
of such incomes credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid during the financial year in which
such income is to be included exceeds the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income
tax;

c) Senior citizens, who are 60 or more years of age at any time during the financial year, enjoy the
special privilege to submit a self-declaration in the prescribed Form 15H for non-deduction of tax
at source in accordance with the provisions of section 197A(1C) of the IT Act even if the
aggregate income credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid exceeds the maximum amount
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not chargeable to tax, provided that the tax due on the estimated total income of the year concerned
will be NIL;

d) All mutual funds registered under Securities and Exchange Board of India are exempt from tax on
all their income, including income from investment in Debentures under the provisions of Section
10 (23D) of the IT Act in accordance with the provisions contained therein. Further, as per the
provisions of section 196 of the IT Act, no deduction of tax shall be made by any person from any
sums payable to mutual funds specified under Section 10(23D) of the IT Act, where such sum is
payable to it by way of interest or dividend in respect of any securities or shares owned by it or in
which it has full beneficial interest, or any other income accruing or arising to it;

e) For any NCDs held by Foreign Institutional Investors/ Foreign Portfolio Investors/ Qualified
Foreign Investors interest income earned by FIIs/FPIs should be chargeable to tax at the rate of
20% plus surcharge and education cess under section 115AD of the IT Act. Tax shall be deducted
u/s. 196D of the IT Act on such income at 20%. Where DTAA is applicable to the payee, the rate
of tax deduction shall be lower of rate as per DTAA or 20%, subject to the conditions prescribed
therein;

f) Interest payable to Life Insurance Corporation, General Insurance Corporation and any other
insurers are exempted from deductions of tax at source under Section 193 of the IT Act;

g) Interest payable to entities falling under the list of entities exempted from TDS by the circular no.
18/2017 by Central Board of Direct Taxes (whose income is unconditionally exempt under Section
10 of the IT Act and who are also statutorily not required to tile return of income as per Section
139 of the IT Act);

h) Any other specific exemption available to any other category of investors under the IT Act.

In case(s) where the NCD Holder(s) do not submit the declaration/ certificates as per format prescribed under
applicable laws with the Issuer and the RTA at the specified address on or prior to the relevant Record Date
for payment of interest on the NCDs, the Issuer shall not be liable to refund the applicable amount of tax
deducted at source and the NCD Holders would be required to directly take up with the tax authorities for
refund, if any

8.26  Letters of Allotment

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time, read together with the requirements in respect
of the timelines for listing of debt securities issued on a private placement basis prescribed in SEBI Listing

Timelines Requirements, the Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures are credited into the demat accounts of
the Debenture Holders of the Debentures within 2 (two) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

8.27 Deemed Date of Allotment

As per Key Information Document for each issuance.
8.28 Record Date

As per Key Information Document for each issuance.
8.29  Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be dispatched
within 7 (seven) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

92



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of the
application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the R&T Agent
shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys to the extent of
such excess, if any.

8.30  Interest on Application Money
As per Key Information Document for each issuance.
8.31 PAN Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) allotted under Income Tax Act,
1961, on the Application Form and attach a self-attested copy as evidence. Application forms without PAN
will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

8.32 Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s)/redemption warrant(s)/demand draft(s)/credit
through RTGS system/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list
of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the redemption amount by the Issuer on maturity
to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holder(s) on the
Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform NSDL and CDSL and accordingly the
account of the Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL and CDSL will be adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the liability of the
Issuer shall stand extinguished.

Disclaimer: Please note that only those persons to whom this General Information Document has been
specifically addressed are eligible to apply. However, an application, even if complete in all respects, is
liable to be rejected without assigning any reason for the same. The list of documents provided above
is only indicative, and an investor is required to provide all those documents / authorizations /
information, which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but is not bound to, revert
to any investor for any additional documents / information, and can accept or reject an application as
it deems fit. Provisions in respect of investment by investors falling in the categories mentioned above
are merely indicative and the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to invest as per extant
laws, regulations, etc. Each of the above categories of investors is required to check and comply with
extant rules/regulations/ guidelines, etc. governing or regulating their investments as applicable to
them and the Issuer is not, in any way, directly or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or
regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer required to check or confirm the same.
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SECTION 9: UNDERTAKING

UNDERTAKINGS IN RELATION TO THE ISSUER BEING ELIGIBLE UNDER THE SEBI
ILNCS REGULATIONS

The Issuer hereby undertakes and confirms that the following (as set out in Regulation 5 of the SEBI
ILNCS Regulations) are not applicable to the Issuer as on the date of this General Information
Document:

(a) the Issuer, any of its promoters, promoter group or directors are debarred from accessing the
securities market or dealing in securities by the Board,

(b) any of the promoters or directors of the Issuer is a promoter or director of another company
which is debarred from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities by the Board;

(© the Issuer or any of its promoters or directors is a wilful defaulter;

(d) any of the promoters or whole-time directors of the issuer is a promoter or whole-time
director of another company which is a wilful defaulter;

(e) any of its promoters or directors is a fugitive economic offender; or

® any fine or penalties levied by the Board /Stock Exchanges is pending to be paid by the
Issuer at the time of filing this General Information Document.

UNDERTAKING ON CREATION OF SECURITY PURSUANT TO REGULATION 48(2)
OF THE SEBI ILNCS REGULATIONS

The Issuer hereby undertakes that the assets on which charge is proposed to be created as security for
the Debentures are free from any encumbrances. The Issuer further undertakes that the charge
proposed to be created is a first ranking exclusive charge and therefore no permission or consent to
create a second or pari-passu charge on the assets of the Issuer is required to be obtained from any
creditor (whether or not existing) of the Issuer.

UNDERTAKING PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 3.3.35 of SCHEDULE 1 OF THE SEBI
ILNCS REGULATIONS

The Issuer undertakes and states as follows:

i. investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in
this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the Issuer and the offer including the risks involved. The securities have not been recommended
or approved by the any regulatory authority in India, including SEBI nor does SEBI guarantee
the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Specific attention of investors is invited to the
statement of ‘Risk factors’ under the section ‘GENERAL RISKS AND RISKS IN RELATION
TO THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES’;

ii.  the Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for, and confirms that
this issue document contains all information with regard to the issuer and the issue, that the
information contained in this issue document is true and correct in all material aspects and is not
misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are
honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which make this document as a
whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions
misleading in any material respect; and
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iii.  the Issuer has no side letter with any debt securities holder except the one(s) disclosed in this
issue document/General Information Document. Any covenants later added shall be disclosed
on the stock exchange website where the debt is listed.

“4) DECLARATION/STATEMENT PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 3.3.36(c) of SCHEDULE I
OF THE SEBI ILNCS REGULATIONS

The Issuer declares that nothing in the issue document/General Information Document is contrary to
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013), the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(42 of 1956) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (15 of 1992) and the rules
and regulations made thereunder.

4) DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO CHAPTER II (DUE DILIGENCE BY DEBENTURE
TRUSTEES) OF THE SEBI DEBENTURE TRUSTEES MASTER CIRCULAR

(a) Details of assets, movable property and immovable property on which charge is
proposed to be created

As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

(b) Title deeds (original/ certified true copy by issuers/ certified true copy by existing
charge holders, as available) or title reports issued by a legal counsel/ advocates, copies
of the relevant agreements/ Memorandum of Understanding

As per Key Information Document for each issuance.

(© Copy of evidence of registration with Sub-registrar, Registrar of Companies, Central
Registry of Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest (CERSAI) etc

The details of the charge created over the movable assets comprising receivables from loans
provided by the Issuer over which security is proposed to be created by the Issuer under the
Deed of Hypothecation will be reported to the relevant registrar of companies and the
Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest (CERSAI)
within the timelines prescribed under Applicable Law. As the charge is being created over
movable assets, no filings are required to be made with any sub-registrar.

(d) For unencumbered assets, an undertaking that the assets on which charge is proposed
to be created are free from any encumbrances

As per Key Information Document for each issuance.
(e) In case securities (equity shares etc.) are being offered as security then a holding

statement from the depository participant along-with an undertaking that these
securities shall be pledged in favour of debenture trustee(s) in the depository system:

Not Applicable

® Details of any other form of security being offered viz. Debt Service Reserve Account
etc.: N. A.

(2) Any other information, documents or records required by debenture trustee with

regard to creation of security and perfection of security: Not applicable.

(h) Declaration: The Issuer declares that debt securities shall be considered as secured only if
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)

(m)
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the charged asset is registered with Sub-registrar and Registrar of Companies or CERSAI or
Depository etc., as applicable, or is independently verifiable by the debenture trustee.

Terms and conditions of debenture trustee agreement including fees charged by
debenture trustees(s): Please refer the consent letter of the Debenture Trustee for terms and
conditions of the appointment of the Debenture Trustee and fee of the Debenture Trustee.

Details of security to be created: Please refer section named "Security (Including
description, type of security, type of charge, likely date of creation of security, minimum
security cover, revaluation, replacement of security)" in Section 5.37 (Issue Details).

Process of due diligence carried out by the debenture trustee: The Debenture Trustee has
carried out due diligence in accordance with the manner prescribed in Chapter II (Due
Diligence by Debenture Trustees) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular. The due
diligence broadly includes the following:

)] A chartered accountant appointed by the Debenture Trustee will be conducting an
independent due diligence as per scope provided by the Debenture Trustee and the
information provided by the Issuer in respect of the security being provided by the
Issuer in respect of the Debentures.

(i1) The chartered accountant will verify and ensure that the assets provided by the
Issuer for creation of security are free from any encumbrances or necessary
permission or consent has been obtained from existing charge holders.

(iii) Periodical due diligence will be carried out by the Debenture Trustee in accordance
with the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 and the relevant circulars
issued by SEBI from time to time (including the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master
Circular) as per the nature of security provided by the Issuer in respect of the
Debentures.

(iv) The Debenture Trustee will issue such necessary certificate(s) in relation to the due
diligence carried out by it and such certificate(s) will be available on Stock
Exchanges from time to time for information of the Debenture Holders.

Even though the Debentures are to be secured to the extent of at least 100% of the principal
and interest amount or as per the terms of this General Information Document, in favor of
the Debenture Trustee, the recovery of 100% of the amount shall depend on the market
scenario prevalent at the time of enforcement of the security.

Due diligence will be carried out for maintenance of the prescribed security cover depending
on information provided by the Issuer and the chartered accountant appointed by the
Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Trustee will not be responsible for misinformation
provided by Issuer.

Due diligence certificate as per the format specified in Annexure IIA: The Certificate, to
the extent required, have been or will be duly obtained.

Due diligence certificate as per the format specified in Schedule IV of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021: The Certificate, to the extent required, have been or will be duly
obtained..

(6) OTHER UNDERTAKINGS
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The Issuer hereby confirms that:

(a) the Issuer is eligible and in compliance with SEBI NCS Regulations, as amended from time
to time, to make the private placement of debt instruments;

(b) (to the extent applicable) the Issuer or its promoters or whole-time directors are not in
violation of the provisions of Regulation 24 of the SEBI Delisting Regulations, 2009,

(c) neither the Issuer nor any of its promoters or directors 1s a willful defaulter as defined under
Reguiation 2 {1} {ss) of the SEBI NCS Regulations; and

{d) the Issuer, ifs promoters, its directors are not in violation of the restrictions imposed by SEBI
under SEBI circutar no. SEBYHO/ MRD/DSA/CIR/P/2017/92 dated August 01, 2017,

-

N
Authorised Signatory |

Name: Sanjay Goel

Titte: Deputy Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Dell

Date: November 29, 2023
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SECTION 10; DECEARATION BY THE DIRECTORS
Fach of the directors of the Company hereby confirms and declare that:
A, the Issuer is in compliance with the provisions of Secunities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (42 of

1956) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (15 of 1992), Companies Act, 2013
(18 of 2013) and the rules ang regulations made thereunder;

B, the compliance with the Acts and the rules and regulations does not imply that payment of dividend
or interest or repayment of non-convertible securities, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central
Government;

C the monies received under the [ssue shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in this

General Information Document; and

D. whatever 15 stated in this General Information Document and in the attachments thereto is true,
correct and complete and no infoermation material to the subject matter of this General Information
Decument bas been suppressed or concealed and 18 as per the original records mantained by the
promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association.

General Risk

Ivestment in non-convertible securities iy risky and investors should not invest any fimds in such
securities unless they can afford 1o take the risk artached ro such investments. Investors are
advised to rake an informed decision and 10 vead the risk factors carefilly before investing in this
effering, For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue
including the risks involved in i1, Specific attention of investors is invited 1o statement of risk
Jactors contained under Section 3 of this Creneral Information Document. These risks are nol,
and are not interded fo be, a complete list of all risks and considerations relevant to the non-
convertible securities or invesior’s decision o purchase such securities.

I am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number 07 dated February
27,2023 of the Board of directors of the Company to sign this General Information Document and declare
that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject
matter of this General Information Document and maiters incidental thereto have been complied with.

I is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and
legibly attached to this form.

For SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIAMEYED

Title: Managing Direstor, CEQO & CIO0
Date: November 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE I: TERM SHEET

As provided in Section 5.377 above.
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ANNEXURE II: APPLICATION FORM

#) SAT YA MicroCapital Ltd.

A private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: May 18, 1995
Registered Office: 519, 5th floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, Delhi- 110020
Telephone No.: +91-11 49724000
Website: www.satyamicrocapital.com

| DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORMSERIALNO. | | [ [ [ [ [ [ | |

Issue of Listed, Rated, Unsecured/Subordinated/Secured, Transferable, Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures, to be issued on a private placement basis (the “Issue”).

DEBENTURE SERIES APPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures: In words:
Amount INR

/-In words Indian Rupees :

Only

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:

Cheque / Demand Draft / RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transferred to [.]
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) INR /- (In words) Only

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS)

SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS

ADDRESS

STREET

CITY

PIN PHONE

FAX

APPLICANT’S PAN/GIR NO.

IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

I AM/ WE ARE () COMPANY () OTHERS ( ) SPECIFY
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We have read and understood the Terms and Conditions of the issue of Debentures including the Risk
Factors described in the general information document dated [.] ("General Information Document") issued
by the Issuer and have considered these in making our decision to apply. We bind ourselves to these Terms
and Conditions and wish to apply for allotment of these Debentures. We request you to please place our
name(s) on the Register of Debenture Holders.

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)

Applicant’s Signature:

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form. Details
of my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL/CDSL
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME
DP-ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft /
Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS /
NEFT/RTGS/other permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

We understand and confirm that the information provided in the General Information Document is provided
by the Issuer and the same has not been verified by any legal advisors to the Issuer, and other intermediaries
and their agents and advisors associated with this Issue. We confirm that we have for the purpose of
investing in these Debentures carried out our own due diligence and made our own decisions with respect to
investment in these Debentures and have not relied on any representations made by anyone other than the
Issuer, if any.

We understand that: i) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned above
would get credited to the extent of allotted Debentures, ii) we must ensure that the sequence of names as
mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our Depository Participant, iii)
if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also not in the same order as the
Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository Participant or if the Debentures cannot be
credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason whatsoever, the Company shall be entitled at its sole
discretion to reject the application or issue the Debentures in physical form.
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Applicant’s
Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note : Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

(TEAR HERE)
ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP
| (To be filled in by Applicant) SERIAL NO. | ‘ | | ‘ ‘ | | | \

Received from

Address

Cheque/Draft/UTR  # Drawn on for
INR on account of application of Debenture
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INSTRUCTIONS

1. Application form must be completed in full, IN ENGLISH.

2. Signatures must be made in English or in any of the Indian languages. Thumb Impressions must be
attested by an authorized official of the Bank or by a Magistrate/Notary Public under his/her official
seal.

3. Application form, duly completed in all respects, must be submitted with the respective Collecting
Bankers. The payment is required to be made to the following account:

Beneficiary A/C Name: Satya MicroCapital Ltd Share A/c

Bank Account No. 250605000070

IFSC CODE: ICIC0000254

Bank Name ICICI Bank Ltd

Branch Address: ICICI Bank Ltd, Krishna Apra Royal Plaza, D2,
EACB, Alpha 1, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh
201306

The Company undertakes that the application money deposited in the above-mentioned bank account
shall not be utilized for any purpose other than

a) for adjustment against allotment of securities; or

b) for the repayment of monies where the company is unable to allot securities.

4. Receipt of applicants will be acknowledged by the Company in the “Acknowledgement Slip”
appearing below the application form. No separate receipt will be issued.

5. All applicants should mention their Permanent Account No. or their GIR No. allotted under Income
Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Tax Circle/Ward/District. In case where neither the PAN nor the GIR
No. has been allotted, the fact of non-allotment should be mentioned in the application form in the
space provided. Income Tax as applicable will be deducted at source at the time of payment of
interest including interest payable on application money.

6. The application would be accepted as per the terms of the manner outlined in the transaction
documents for the private placement.
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ANNEXURE III: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ALONG WITH CASH-FLOW FOR THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS AND FOR THE
QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

2" Floor, 51-52, Sector-18,
S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP Phas: I:.-', Udyog Vihar, Gurugram,
Chartered Accountants i e

Tel: 401 124 481 4444
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Satya MicroCapital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Satya MicroCapital Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as "the
Group”) and its associate, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies (“the
consolidated financial statements”). i

In our opinion and to the: best of our informatior and according to the explanations giv-n to us an7 based
on the ennsideration of reports of other auditers on separate financial statements of the subsidiey referred
to in the Other Matter section below, the aforesaid consclidated financial statements give the infe -ation
requi 2d by ine companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") In the manner so 1equired and give a true and fair view i
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March
31, 2023, of conisclidated profit, consolidated totai comprehensive income, consolidated changes i =guity
and itz conso..dated cash flows for the year the: ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in aciordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) <pecified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Staidards are further described in th Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements section of our report. "Ne are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordarica with the Code of Ethics issued by the Insiitute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“th2 ICAI") tugether with the ethical requirements that are re'zvznt to
our audit of the consolidated 7inancial statements under the provisions of the #ct and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilied our cther ethical responsibilities in acecrdance with these requirements
and the ICA! s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainea and the auaii ovidence
obtained L the other auditors in terms of their reports referi2d to in para of the Other Matters paragraph
below is sufficient 2nd appropriate to provide a basis for our opirorn.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consclidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.N. Dhawan & CO LLP is registered with limited liabllity with identffication number A&H-1125 and Hs registered ofice is 108, Marcantile House, 15 Kapturia Gandhi Marg
Maw Dalid 110001, India
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\We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report,

| Key Audit Matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Impairment of financial instruments (including provision for expected credit losses) (as
described in note 3A(e) and note 7 of the consolidated financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Group to provide for | Our audit procedures included, among others,
impairment of its loan receivables (financial
instruments) using the Expected Credit Loss |« Read and assessed the Group's accounting

(ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation of policies for impairment of loan receivables,
probability-weighted loss on financial instruments assessing compliance with the policies in terms
over their life, considering reasonable and of Ind AS 109 and the governance framework
supportable information about past events, approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to
current conditions, and forecasts of future Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI') guidelines.

economic conditions which could impact the

i ity up' nd advances.
credit quality of the Group's loans and advay e Evaluated the reasonableness of the

In the process, a significant degree of judgement Management estimates by understanding the
has been applied by the management for; process of ECL estimaton and related
assumptions and tested the controls g;0und data
a} Defining qualitative/ quantitative thresholds extraction and validation.
for 'significant increase in credit risk’ (*"SICR™)
and 'default’. s Tested the assumptions used by the Group for
staging of loan portfolio into various categories
b} Grouping of loan portfolio under homogenous and default buckets for determining the
pools to determine probability of default on a Probability of Default ("PD") and Loss Given
collective basis. Default {"LGD") rates.
¢) Estimating recoveries to determine loss given |«  Tested the operating effectiveness of the
default on a colliactive basis for loans that controls for staging of loans based on their past-
have defaulted. due staius. Tested samples of performing (stag2
1) loans to assess whether any loss indicators
d) Determining effect of less hegquent past were present requiring them i be classified
events on fufure probability of default. under stage 2 or stage 3.

« Tested the input data used for determining the
PD and LGD rates and compared the data with
the underlying books of account and records.

e Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL pravision performed by the Group in
spreadsheets.

e Compared the disclosures included in the
consclidated financial statements in respect of
expected credit losses with the requirements of
Ind AS 107 and 109.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Cempany's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report therson.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial staterments does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conglusion theraon

P/

/-

A )
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our respensibility is to read the other
information, compare with the audited financial statements of subsidiary furnished to us, to the extent to
which it related to that entity and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiary, is traced from
audited financial statements.

if based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this 'Other
information’ we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

I The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these

: consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act, that give a true and fair view of

I the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated cash flows and consclidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including
its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequzte
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
iol preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenarce of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of praparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associate to continue as a going concein, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and
using the going concern basis of accountisig unless Management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic atternative but to do so.

The respeciive Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skapticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
avidence that is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contrel
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit precedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are alse responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adeguate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Mzinagament.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associate to express an npinion on the censolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the ofher entities or business activities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supemsmn and performance of the audits carried
out by them, Ve remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

\We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
wera of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
trerefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs, 443.07 million as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of Rs. 22.31 million and net cash inflows
amounting to Rs, 105.58 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion an the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, 1s based solely
on the reperts of the other auditors
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The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss after tax of Rs. 0.06 million
for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of
an associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements are
unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this entity is based
solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according fo the information and
explanztions given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the
consideration of the Order reports issued by us and by the respective other auditcr as mentioned in
Other matter paragraph above, of company included in the consolidated financial statements and
covered under the Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the
respective Order reports of such company.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary and
associate, as noted in the 'Other Matter' paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that'

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accnunt as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examinaton of those
hroks and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity deait with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary, none of the directors of the Group companies, is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

{f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexurs
A

g

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

I aur opinion and to the bast of our infermation and accarding to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 1970f the Act

th)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditar's Report in accordance with Ruls 11
of the Companies (Audil and Auditor's) Rules, 2044, ' amended in our opinion and to the best of

‘4
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our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial

i

V.

information of the subsidiary as noted in the 'Other matter’ paragraph:

There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial position of the
Group.

i. Provision has been made in the consolidated finzncial statements, as required under the

applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 51(iv) to the consolidated financial
statements in respect of such items as it relates to the Group and its associate.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary.

{a). The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, whese financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiary that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Holding Company or any such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiary ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b). The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, whose financial
statements have been sudited uncer the Act, have represented to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiary that, fo the bes! of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary, directly or indirectly, lend cr invest in other
persoris or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or previde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultlimate
Beneficiaries.

{c). Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors’
notice that has caused us or other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause
{i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

The intenim dividend declared and paid by the Holding Company and its subsidiary, during the year
and until the date of this audit report is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act.
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vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is applicable for
the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in India, only w.e.f.
April 01, 2023, therefore, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, is not applicable.

For 8.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

" e

Vinesh Jain

Partner

Membership no: 087701

UDIN: 230877C1BGWNJB5161

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 24, 2023
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Satya MicroCapital
Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Independent Auditor's report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the interna! financial controls with reference to financial statements
of Satya MicroCapital Limited (herzinafter referred to as the "Helding Company”) and its subsidiary as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial control with reference
to financial statements criteria as established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal financial Controls over
financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence
to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of the company’s assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controle Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") and the
Standards on Auditing, ‘ssued by iCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAIL. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require inat we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obizin reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial cantrols system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statemenlts, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud cr error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reperts referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial cantrols system with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary as aforesaid.

—, )
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail; accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of confrols, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not he detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary have, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
re’zrence to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
firnancial control with reference to financial staternents criteria as established by the Holding Com:gany
considering the essential compeonents of internal control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Interna:
financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to the subsidiary, is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such company incorporated in India.

ror S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain

Partner

Membership no; 087701 !
UDIN: 23087701BGWNJB5161

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 24, 2623
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Satys MicroCapital Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(2 in million uniess athenwise staied)

3 As at As at
Titioninrg e March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 4 2,305.90 1,278 44
Bank halangcs otier Wiin cash and cash equivalents 5 2,092.55 3,214.89
Trade reecivables 6 106.48 7340
Loan patiolio 7 38,231.59 23.161.34
Investiment 8§ 1,261 30 4614
Other financial asscts 9 122917 37026
Total financisl asscts o o4s226y 2834447
Non-financiat nsseis
| Current lax asscts (n21) 1 141 44 46.17
Deiferred fax ussels (net) 8] 1.29 64.45
! Property, plant and cquipment 12A 16C.45 120,56
J Capital work-in-progiess 128 612,42 -
Goodwill 3044 -
Intangible assets 12C 0.20 0.33
Other non-! al nssets 13 410.50 296.39
Tota! non-fnsacial psyels 1,363.44 527,90
Tolal asscis N Cd6ARA 3587237
LIABILITIES AND FQUITY
y Liabilities
l Finuncial linhilities
Derivative linencial instruments 14 (PR} -
I3
(i} tolal owstnding Gues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises 0.53 -
(i2) 105l 0 cs ol creditors other than micro enterprises and 103,46 824
sl enterprises
Debt secusitics 16 10,360.69 5.285.46
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 25,142.47 16.336.56
Subordinated liabilitics 16 1,160.89 1,150.23
Other linancial liabilitics 17 1.205.86 385.20
“Total financial Babilities M= _3'{.‘)_@0.8} =23 23.239.94
Non-financial Jiabilitics
Provisions 8 .85 36.58
Delerred tax Habilitics (net) 11 48.95 -
Otier non-financiat liabilitics 19 115.84 73.40
Total non-fisancial labilities 234.04 109.98
Equity
Equity share capital 20 593.20 490.64
Instruments entircly cquily in nature 21 49.00 29.85
Other equity 22 7,720.16 5,001.96
Lquity attributable to equity holders of the holding company 8,362.36 5,522.45
Non-controlling interest 14,58 -
“Total equity 8,376.94 5,522,435
Totul liabilitics and equity 46,592.43 28,872.37
The accompanying notes are integral part of lidated fi ial 1t
As per our reporl of even date
For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants SATYA MicroCapital Limited
r

Firm Registration No.: 000050N/NS00045

w"&

inesh Jain
Partner
Memhership No.: 087701

/ W

Vivel Tiwari Ratnesh Tiwari
Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director

DlN:0217_4)|60 DIN: 07131331 v)_k
ol B

o o

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 24, 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date; May 24, 2023
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Satya MicroCupital Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for tie Year Ended Marck 31, 2023
(¥ in million wiless atherwise stated)

Vor year ended For year ended

Partic \
DT Nates March 31,2023 areh 31, 2022 ‘
Revenne from operations o |
Inietest incoawe 23 579252 3,345 88
Fee and conunission income 24 491 88 29122
: A e Py R
Net gain on of under amorised eost 2 1044 64 36657
calegory A Ao |
Total revenue fram operations 7.329.04 4,003,607
Ottier income % 5600 1413 [
Totul income 7,385.14 34,017.50
Expinses |
Finance cost 27 297221 170007 |
Net Toss ou fii value changes 28 6.95 - ‘
Trapaicment on financial instruments 29 722.03 170.7) |
Employee benetits experises 20 203940 1,169.87
Depreciation and amottizasion 31 7731 3747
Other expenses 32 85139 A9
Total expenses RG] ISSET
Trofit before share of the p floss) of I far uising the equity method 71587 42509
Share of net profits/(lasses) of associates accaunted for using the cquity method {0.06) (022
Profit belore tax 715,81 434.87
Tux expense: 33
Current year tax 6993 1021
Deferred tax chagei(credit) 114 60 195
Income-tax expense 18455 11006
Profit for the year 531.28 32481
Other compreliensive income
Ttems that will not be reelassified subzequently to profit or Inss
Re-measunsment gains/(losses) on defined benefit pluns (646) (099)
Income (ax effect 1.63 025
Other compreheusive income (4.83) (1.74)
Total comprehensive incume for the year 52643 T 32407 3
Net profit after tax attributable to:
Owners of the iolding Company 53125 324 81
Noa-controlling interesl 003 .
Other comprebiensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company {483) (974)
Non-controlling interest ’ .
Total P ive income witvibutable to:
Owners of the Holdmg Company 52642 324.07
Non-controlling interest 003 -
Earnings per equity shave (EPS) (face value of T 10 per equity share)
Computed on the basis of total profic for the year
Basic (EPS) (amount in T) 24 1057 7.05
Diluted (DEPS) (anount in T) 34 961 6.94

d financial

‘The accompanving notes are intemal pait of

As per our report of even date

Fot S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountunts
Firm Registation No.: 000050N/N500043

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
SATVA MicroCapital Limited

¥

ViV ward
Managing Director, CEQ & CIO
DIN: 02174160

esh Jain
Parmer
Mentbeeship No ; 087701

O P

D netz Z:
Company Scerctary & Chief Compliance officer
M.No F7437

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 24,2023

(tnszeet

Ratresh Tiwaed
Director
DIN: 07131331

iV
N
andita

Kanl
Chief Financial OfSicer

Place: Gurugrum
Date: May 24. 2023
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Sutys MicroUnpital Limited
Congalidated Statement pf Cash Oow o the yesn ended Murch 35,2023

(2 10 million unless wihienvise stated)

i For year eniled Far year enderl
fofang e Mareh 31, 2023 Marei 31,2012
Cash flow from operating activities
Prolit befose tax 71581 434 87
Adjustments fur;

Depreciution und mnatisition [DREY LR
Diepreciation of nght-ofuse asset 790 13.04
Share based paymient (o employces 10613 D24
lierest espense for leasing an angenicnts 204 2:29
hopaivmens of naneinl inskoments 72205 17671
Net dozs o far value chunges 695 -
Loss o of pregerty plant and equipment 141 {88
Wel ynn o i ol fnunciuks i 5 under amortised cost crlegony (3,044.64) [366.57)
Operating profit before working capital chinages 496,80 308.87
Novements in woslking eapitals
Tnerenseuleengise) m trade payahle and other finavcial lnbilities 84328 (33 66);
1 A ) in olhe financial Habilitics 4244 2458
Increnseddecredses) in provisions 3327 1235
(Incrense Veleerease i bank bulinces othes than cash and cash eguivalunts 112234 11,844,03)
seddecrease in rade receivables [33.08) 34.02
Yelecrease i loan portfolic {15,792 30 (11,180.11)]
{Increase)docr case  olher financial assels 38573 4079
{Increase Ydecrease in olher non-financial assets (124,19) (147.83))
Cash nsed in operations (13,025.71), 112,793,02)
Tacome-tax paid (169 44) [RERTR]
Net cash wsed ju operiting activitied (A) (13,195.05)) (12,911,93)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase uf property, plant and and capital work-in-progs {75381) (92 .09)
Purchase of intanguble asscts » @.15)
Proceeds fiom derecagnition of property, plaut and equipment 1.08 0.89
Purchase of nvestment (1,258 20)| (47.14)
Proceeds from mvestment 430 1.00
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,967.89)| (137.49))
Cash flow from financing activitdes
I'racecds from issuc of share capital (inchuding premium and net of issue expenses) 2,308 71 1,14491
Net proceeds fiom bosyowingst 13391.82 11,502.45
Payment of lease [ibilitics (10.13) (864)
Net cash firom finpucing netivities {C) 16,190.40 12,638,72
Nt increase / (decrense) in cash and cash equivilents (A = B+ C) 1,027.46 (410.70)
Caash and cash eqnivalents at the beginning of the yeu 1,278 44 1,689 14
Cash and eash equivalents at Ow end of the year 2,305.90 1,278.44
Components of cash nnd ensh equivalents as at the end of the year
Casl on hand 1727 291
Balonce with banks - o curvent accounts 228863 765.49
Ecposits with anginal matority of less than 3 months - 51004
Total cash and cash equivalents 2.305.90 1,278.44

#R net p:

05 (other than dehit

Y and sul

PETT

ds from debt ities, b

For discloswre of ing aud fi

The mpany ing notes are integal pare of d financial statemesits

that do not require the use of gash wul casl equivalents, vefer note 46

Ag pec our report of even date

For SN, Dhawan & CO LLP
! Chastered Acgountants
Firm Regigiation No. 000050N/NS00045

| Vinesh Jain
Pautner
Membership No @ 087701

Place: Gurugzam
Date; May 24, 2023

For and oh hehalf of the Boaril of Divectors of
SATYA MicroCupital Linited
)

(e 22l

Rutnesh Tiwari
Ditectol

DIN: 07131331 , 2
&‘,)& =
wndita Kavl

Chief Financisl Officer

Managing Direetor, CEQ & CIO
DIN: 02174160

Compuny Seeretary & Chicf Complinnee officer
MNo F7437

Place: Crurugram
Date: May 24, 2623
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S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 2* Floor, 51-52, Sector-18,

Phete IV, Udyoy Vihar, Gurugram,

Chartered Accountants Haryana 122018, India
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Tel: 481 124 481 444
To the Members of
Satya MicroCapital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Satya MicroCapital Limited ("the GCompany"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow for the
year |hen ended, and noles fo the standalone financial statements, including 3 summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In aur opinion and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financlal statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [ndian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepled in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAS’) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Campany in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("the ICAI") fogether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Caode of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls
far our apinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide & separale opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matiers described below to be the key audit matiers to be communicated in our

eport. 00 O 00—
Key Audit Matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter ‘

Impairment of financial instruments [includlﬁpm\ns!on Tor expected credit fosses} (as
described in note 3A(e) and note 7 of the standalone financlal statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for | Our audit procedures included, amand others,
impairment of its loan receivables (financial
instruments) using the Expected Credit Loss | Read and assessed the Company's accounting

(ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation of policies for impairment of loan receivables,
probability-weighted loss on financial instruments assessing compliance with the policies in terms
over their life, considering reasonable and of Ind AS 109 and the governance framework
supportable Information about past events, approved by the Board of Directors pursuanit 1o

current  conditions, and forecasts of fulure
aconomic conditions which could impact the
credit quallty of the Company's loans and
advances.

Reserve Bank of India ('RBI") guidelines.

s.Nmmrerﬁmﬂmm_nﬁ”w 7 ; )—'—_"mmdulliﬁ'im"—-_nwm =SSR
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[ey Audit Matter ______

In the process, a signicant degree of judgement
has been applied by the management for:

a) Defining qualitative/ quantifative thresholds
for ‘significant increase in cre dit risk’ ("SICR")
and 'default.

b} Grouping of laan portfolio under homogenous
paols to determine probability of defauli on @
collective basis.

¢) Eslimating recoverles lo determine loss given
default on a collective basis for loans that
have defaulted.

d) Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of defaull

|
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T How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Evaluated fthe reasonableness of the
Management estimates by understanding the
process of ECL estimation and refated
assumptions and lested the controls around data
axiraction and validation.

Tested the assumptions used by the Company
for staging of loan portfolio into  various
categories and defaull buckets for determining
the Probabllity of Default ('PD") and Loss Given
Default (‘LGD") rates.

Tested the operating effectiveness of the
cantrols for staging of loans based on their past-
due status. Tested samples of performing {stage
1) loans lo assess whether any loss indicators
were present requiring them to be classified
under stage 2 or stage 3.

Tested the input data used for determining the
PD and LGD rates and compared the data with
the underlying books of account and records,

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by ihe Company in
spreadsheets.

Compared the disclosures included in the
standalone financial statements In respect of
expected credit losses with the requirements of
Ind AS 107 and 108.

Information Other than the Standalone Einanciat Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ather information, The other information c
ssion and Analysis and Boar
Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and consolidated

the information included in the Mana:

t Discu

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial s
information and, in doing so, consider whether the ather information is mate
standalone !inanclal statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

materially misstated

If, based on the work we have performed, we ¢onel
Information’ we are required to report the fact. We have

ude that there is material misstatement of this 'Cther

nothing to report in this regard,

Management's Responsibility for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This respo
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
of the Company and for preverting and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates \hat are reasonable and prudent; and

OIMprises
d's Report including

do not

{atements, our respongibility is to read the other
rially inconsistent with the
otherwise appears fo be

Act with
and fair view of the

nsibility also includes maintenance
safeguarding of the assets
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design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management |s responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, o has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and lo issue an auditor’s report
fhat Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluste the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concemn basis of accounting and,
pased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
{o the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our apinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a golng concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies In intemnal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determina those matters that
wej of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
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therefare the key audit matters, We describe these mattere in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure abaut the matter o when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our repart because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interes! benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Audttor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Ceniral
Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (11} of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A,
2 staterment on the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and oblained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{¢) The Standalone Balance Shest, the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

{d)  In our apinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

{e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financlal gontrols with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B".

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

{hy  \With respect to the other malters o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position-
Refar Note 54(jii) to the standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable iaw or Indian Accounting
Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracte including derivative
contracts - Refer Note 14 to the standalone financlal statemants.

ii. There were no amounts which were required fo be trahsferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company- Refer Nots §4(v) to the standalone financial statements.

i, (a).The Management has represented lhal, to the best of it's knowledge and bellef, as
disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements, no funds (which are material
aither individually or in the agaregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company ("Ulimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
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the like on behalf of the Utlimate Beneficiaries. Refer Note 57(vii) to the standalone financial
statements.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed In the notes fo the standalone financial statements no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Refer Note 57(viil) to the standalone financial statements

(¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have peen considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
pelieve that the representations under sub-clause (I) and (i) of Rule 11(e) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

Interim dividend declared and paid on non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference
shares by the Company during the year, is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act (Refer
Note No, 22 to the standalone financial stalements).

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is applicable
for the Company only w.e.f. April 01, 2023, therefore, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, is not applicable.

For S.N. Dhawan & GO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.! 000050N/N500045

5

Vinesh Jain
Partner ey}
Membership No,: 087701 N
UDIN; 23087701BGWNIZ6326

Place; Gurugram
Date; May 24, 2023
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(Annexure A, referred 1o In paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requi rements’
section of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Satya MicroCapital
Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and Tor the year ended March 31, 2023

Ui

{in

(i)

(@

(b)

1G]

(d)

(e

(a)

(b)

@

®)

(¢

(&) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative detals and situation of property. plant and equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has malntalned proper rea_:ids showing full particulars of intangible assels.

The property, plantand equipment and right-of-use assets have bean physically verifiad by the
Management during Ihe year and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no material discreparicies were noticed on such verification, In our opinian, the frequency of
verification of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

According to the information and explanations glven fo us and based on the examination of the
registered sale dead / transfer deed  conveyance deed provided 1o us, we report that, the title
deeds of all the immavable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company
is the lessea and the lease agreements are duly executed In favour of the Company) are held
in the name of the Company as 2t the balance sheet date.

The Company has notrevalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets)
and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(I)(d) of the Order
are not applicable.

There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

Tha Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly; the provisions of clause 3(i)(a) of the
Order arg not applicable.

According ta the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from
banks on the hasis of security of fixed deposits kept as margin money with banks. As
represented by the Company, na quarterly returns or statements are required to be filed
by the Company with such banks.

Ta the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, tha Company's
principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(lli)(a) of the Order
are not applicable.

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC'), registered under provisions of
RBI Act, 1934, In our opinion and according to the infermation and explanations given to us,
the Investments made, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans provided are not prejudicial to the Company's Interest. During
the year, the Company has not provided any guarantees. '

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, granted by the Company as parl of its
business of providing microfinance loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Refer notes 7 to the financial statements
for summarised details of such loans/advances which are not repaid by borrowers as per
stipulations. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable
to furnish entity-wise details of amount due, due date for repayment or receipt and ihe extent
of delay.

Summary of loan assets categorized as cradit impaired (Stage 3) and loan assats Categorized
as those where credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition (stage 2) as ate
the balance sheel date is as under: 000 4
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~ Category of loan | stage2 | Stage 3
Rs. In miltions

Joint llability group loans ~ q77.35|  492.83
Individual loans 2.67 4.05
Further, except for those Instances where there are delays or defaulls in repayment of
principal and / or Interest as al the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Gornpany has
disclosed asset classification in note 7 to the standalone financial statements in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular
in payment of interest, as applicable, excepl for some delays.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more
than ninety days as at March 31, 2023 and the details of the number of such cases, as
dizelosed in note 7 of the standalone financial statements, are as under. In such instances,
in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the
avardue amount of principal and interest.

(d

=

Category of loan No. of Principal Interest Total
Cases | Amount overdue overdue aoverdue
{Re. in Milllon} | (Rs.in Million) (Rs. in
Million)
Joint liability group 19,010 468.54 24,35 492 .89
loans
Individual loans 95 .91 0.14 4.05 |

To the best of our information and according to the sxplanations given to us, the Company's
principal business is lo give loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause a(jii){e) of the Order
are not applicable.

(e

—

{f According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances In the nature
of loans which are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, mada investments or provided guarantees in contravention of the provisions of
sections 185 and 186(1) of the Act, the other provision of the section 186 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither aceepled any
deposits nor the amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and further the Company
had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 ta 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's
services, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(a) In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, the Campany is
regular in depositing undispuled statutory dues including goods and services tax, pravident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, to the appropriate authorities, during the year. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for 2 period of more than six
manths from the date they became payable. During the year the operation of the Company
does not give rise the llability of sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and
yalue added tax,
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{b]  According to the information and explanations given to vs, there are no statutary dues referred
to in sub-clause (&) that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, Here are no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded mcome that were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) Inaur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Comparny has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any landar,

{b) According lo the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not
been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
governmant authority.

{e) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the term loans
were applied for the purposes for which the loans were ablained,

{d) According to the information and explanations given fo us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on a ghort-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to Us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has naither taken any funds
from any entity or person during the year, nor it has ralsed funds through issue of shares or
borrowings on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not
ralsed loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

{a) According to the information and explanations glven to us, the Company did not raise moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt insiruments} during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made private
placement of equity shares and non-cumulative eompulsory convertible preference shares
during the year. In respact of the same, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the
requirerment of Section 42 and Sectlion 62 of the Act and the Rules framed there under. Further,
in our opinion, the amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised.

{a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations glven to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reparted during the peried
coverad by our audit, except few cases identifed by the management relating to cash
embezzlement amounting to Rs. 2.58 million as stated under Note 47(f) to the standalone
financial statements. As informed to us, the Company has inltistad legal action for recovery.

{b) No repori under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribad under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended) with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the dale of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, the Gompany is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii){a)-(c) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all trangactions with the
retated parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the raquisite
details have bean disclosed in the financial statements eic., as required by the applicable accounting
glandards. ) )
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(xvi)

{xvil)

(evii)

(oxix)

{0q

(o)

{a) In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the Intetnal audit reports of the Company issued lill date, for the period
under audit

In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected
with them cavered under Section 192 of the Act.

{a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Agt,
1934 and such regisiration has been obtained by the Company.

{b) The Company has nol conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance aclivities
without a valid Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI} as per the RBI
Act, 1934,

(et The Company is not a Core Investment Company ("CIC”) as defined In the regulations made by
the Ressrve Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not
applicable,

(d) The Group has no CIC which are part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred any cash lossas in the current financial year and in the immediately
praceding financial year,

There has been no resignation of the stalulory auditors during the year.

According fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of reallzation of financial assets and paymeant of financlal liabllities, other
Information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nathing has come lo our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its llabilities axisting at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pariod of one year from the balance shest date.
Ve, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we nesither give any
guaraniee nor any essurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of ane year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(@) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects raquiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act in compliance with the
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 136 of the said Act.

(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibllity (CSR) on ongoing projects
requiring a transfer lo a special account in compliance with provision of sub-section (6) of Section
135 of the said Act,

The reparting under clauss 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financlal Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this raport.

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045,

Vinesh Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 087701

UDIN: 23087701BGWNIZE326
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 24, 2023
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Annexure B referred to in paragraph 2{f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Satya
MicroCapital Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standaione financial statements of Satya
MicroCapital Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunclion with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that dale.

Management’s Responsibility for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls
based on the internal contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential companents of intermal contro! stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of the Company's business, Including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and ervors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial Information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financlal Contrels Over Financlal Reporting (the *Guidance Note®) and
the Siandards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chantered Accountanis of India (“the ICAI") and
deemed 1o be prescribed undeér seclion 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 1o an audit of internal
financial controts, both applicable to an audit of internal Financial Conirole and, both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
refaranceto standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
sffectively In all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
financial controls system with reference fo siandalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial siatements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal corttrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selectsd depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standatone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believa that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s infernal financial conlrols system with reference to standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designad to provide reasonable assuranca regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statemeants
includes those policies and procedures that (1) perain (o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detall, accurately and fairy refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable asaurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financlal statements in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company ars being made only In accordance with authorisations of
Management and directors of the Company, and (2} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, ovdrspnsitlon oﬂhg Cumpany s agsels that could have
a material effsct on the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference lo standalone financlal
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due (o error or fraud may oceur and not be detectsd. Also, prajections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
fo the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statsments may become
inadequale because of changes in conditions, or that the degres of compliance with the policies or
procedures may dateriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all materlal respects, adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal finencial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by tha ICAL

For 8.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 087701
UDIN: 23087701BGWNIZE326

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 24, 2023
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Satva Micraaplitnl Limited
Stantalone Bakance Sheel as 4t Mareh 31, 2023

{2 i million unless othenvise suiied)

Parficulars

Motes

ASSETS
Finaneinl assets
Crash and cash equivalens

Buask holances uther than cash and cagh equivalents

Trude receivables

Loen porfolio

Investnenis

Other financinl assors
‘TCotat financial asseis

Non-linancial assets
Cyrrent 1ax assats (ner)
Dreferred lax assels (Y
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-ia-progmess
Intangible msels
Dler non-financial assets
Total non-financial ngses

LIARILITIES AND EQUITY
Lishilitics
Financial labilities
Derivative financial instraments
Trade payables

® o Gtn B

14

11
1ZA
128
12C

13

Total assets

14
15

) toval eutstanding dues of micre enterprizes and small enterprises
(it} total ontstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and

small anleprises
Dbt securities
Borgwings (other than debi securities)
Subiosdinated liabilities
Creher foancial Habilities
Total financial abilities

Mon-finaneinl abilithos
Provisions
Deferrad tax lisbilities frel)
Criier non-firancial liabilities
Total nop=Anancial inbilkiies

Equity
Eequily shore capital
strunents entirely equity in nalure
Other equity

Total equity

le
16
16
17

L8
1
19

21
22

Total Kabilitics and cquity

The sceom antes are ine
As por our report of evan date

For 8.N. Dhawan & CO LLY

Chartered Accountunts

Finm Registration No : 000050 004,
Vinesh Jain

Parlner

tMembership Mo.: 087701

Phace: Gurugram
Thale; May 24, 2023

of stendstone Anancial statemants

Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31,2022
2.190.03 1.278.44
2,092,585 321480
106,48 7340
37,902.04 3,161 34
1,753.40 4535
1,225.08 570.24
A5, 260,48 LRI
139.53 4517
. 64.43
150,65 120,56
612,12 .
20 K]
410.06 206,19
1,321.56 S2T.90
46,581.04 18,872.59
5.25 -
.53
100,84 B2.49
10,360.69 3,2B5 40
45,142.47 16,336.56
1,160.89 1,150.23
1.2045.30 38520
3T,577.67 pERECLT]
69.34 36 5B
18,95 .
113.49 7340
3178 10958
593.20 490 64
49.00 2985
7,720,139 5,02, 18
§,372,59 5,522.67
46,582.04 218,872.59

For and on belealf of the Board of Divectors of
SATYA MicroCapital Limiied

r

L

Vivek Tiwari Ratuesh Tiwari
Mannging Director, CED & CIO Director
DIN: 02174160

G

Choudhary Rapveer Kelshania

. DIN: 07131331 \P))

-~
"
ditn Kaul

Chief Financial Offlcer

Ploce; Gurugram:
Diate: May 24, 2023
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Sutya MicroCapital Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended Mareh 31, 2023

(¥ i owillion wriless otherwise stated)

; For year emded For year eaded
Purtieslars Ntk March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revente from operatinns

Inlerest income 23 377097 3,345 88
Fee and comumnizsion income 24 401 kg 29122
‘l:ﬂ gain on derecapnition of finaneial insiruments under amortized cost 23 104464 16557
Total revenne from aperitions 7740 400367
Other income 26 5297 11.74

Total income 7,360.46 401541

Expenses
Finance cost g 2497221 1,711,05
el loss on file voloe changes 18 6.95 -
Impaitment oo finsncial instroments il .35 170,71
Employee benefils expenses 30 202358 1,167,894
Deprecistivn 2nd amorisation k1| 76.9% 5746
Other expenses 32 84531 47311

Tolal cxpenses 664635 58031
Profit before tax 7i4.11 43500
Tax expense: 33

Current year 1ax b8.64 10211
Duferred lax charge 115.03 7.9%

Income-inX sEpease 18367 110.06
Profit for the year 530.44 33503
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not he veclassified subseiquenty to profit ow Joss

Re-measurarment gaina{lasses) on defined bensfit pluns (6.45) {0.99)
Income lax elTect 163 0.25

Tatsl comprehensive income Jor the year 525,61 324.29

Earnings per equily shore (EPS) (face value of 2 10 per equity share)
Computed an the basis of talal profit for the year
Basic {EPS] (amount in T} 3 156 7.05
Dituted (DEPS) (amount m ¥} 34 D60 6.94

The aceompanying votes are inlegral part of standalonc financial

As per our repact of even date

Tor 5.M, Dhawan & COLLP For and an behall of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Acoointants SATYA MicroCapilal Limited

Firm Registration No.: 000050N/MN500043 )

X / @&
Vinesh Jain Vivek Tiwari Ratnesh Tiwari
Partner Managing Director, CEC & C10 Director
Membership No.: 087701 DIN: 02174160 DIM: 07131331 V‘J/

e AR
o) &ﬁ Fd
Choudhary It Krish Vandita Kaul
Company Secretary & Chief Compl officer Chief Financtal Dffioer
M.No. F7437

Place; Gurugram
Diale: May 24, 2023

Place: Guragram
Date: May 24, 2023
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Satyn MicroCapiial Limited
Stundalone Statement of Cash flaw for the year ewded March 3§, 2023

= e (% i million unless otherwise staked)
For year cnded For g
Parficnlars = Mnrzh 31,2023 Mirﬁlslll:gl:;g
Cosh NMow om opaating activities =
Profil before tax 71441 43509
Adjustments fors
Dreprecialion and smorlsation G508 4441
Depreciation of night-of-uge sszer 790 13.04
Share based payment o employess 1613 b7 1)
Inierest expense for leaging amangements .04 229
Impairment of finansial nstrurmcnis 7213 17071
Nl Loss on fair value changes [ :
1,055 on sale of property plant and equipmens 141 088
el gain on d son of fi fals i under ied cosh calcEony (1.044.54) (366.5T)
Operating proft before working capital chunges 43430 30209
Movements in worling coplial:
Increasei{decreasa) in irade pavable and vther Gnancinl lailitics 40180 (34.66)
X (d } in ottier ial liakilil 4008 2458
I f{ul ) ) provisi 26.30 10.35
|(trtereavohidecrease in bank halances pilier than cash and cash cquivalents 112234 (1.8494.00)
{1 Wb in teade receivabl (33.08) 02
(Increase)/decrease in loan porifalio (15,463.01) (11, 186.11)
(nerense)/d in olher (uancial sssess 199.82 4979
(h e in other non-financial asscts (121.75) {147.83)
(Cash used in operations {12,706.59) {12.792.80)
Income-tex paid (1462.00) (118.21)
el cash sl in sperating activities (A} (12,568.8%) {1220 1.71)
Caugh flow from investing activitics
Purchase of property, plant and cguip i and capatal veork-in-progr (713,54} (92.00)
Porchase of inrangiblc assuts - (0.15)]
Praceeds [com dorceognition of propedy, plant and cquipment |.C8 0.89
Purchase of mvestment (1,730.08) 4736
Procesds [rom invesiment 43 100
et cash wsed in investing activities (B) {2 199.50) (137.71)
Cash flvw fram financing activittes
Proceeds from isswe of share capital {incloding premium and net of issue expenses) 2308.19 114491
Net pracecds from bomowirgsi 13,891 82 1150245
| Payment of Teas= lighitities (10.13) (8.04)
MNet cash from finaevimg aelivities {C) 16,189.88 12.636.72
MNet incresse / {decvease) lw cash and cush equivalenie{d + D + O 921.49 (410,70
Cagh and cash oquevienis ol the heginning of the year 127804 1,679.14
Cash and cash eqguivalours atthe ead of (e year 2,199.93 127844
Components of cash and cash squivalenis as at the cod of the year
Cash on hand 16.63 281
Balance with hanks - on currtal Lecounts ZIR130 76549
Deposits with arigmal maturity of less than 3 munths . 510.04
Tota! cash and cash qquivalents 2,199.93 127844
# Rey net p ds from debt ithes, | ings (otler than debi ) and suliordinoted liabilit
For disel afi ing and fi i

The ccompanying nutes wre integral pant of standalone fi i

that do not requies the use of cash and cash cquivalznis, refer vote 46,

As per owr report of even date

Fot SN Dhawan & CO LLP

For and on behslf of the Board of Directors of

Chariered Acrountanis SATYA MicroCapltal Limited

Pim Registration Ne.; 000050N/NSO004S_ ’ d
& 3 / lz /,M-g

Vinesl Jain Viveh Tiwari Ralnesh Tiwart

Parinet Managing Direcler, CEO & C10 Divector

Membership MNo.: 087701 DN 07131331

DiN; 02174160
=

v&r‘}& -

Choudharg Rupveer Krishanan la Kaul
Company Secrelary & Chiel Coppifigntz p ire ‘Chicf Finanoial OfTicer
Mo, F7437 A

Place: Gurigiam Place: Gurugmm

Date: May 24, 2023 Dale: Way 24, 2023
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Gurugram, Haryana 122016, India

Chartered Accountants Tel: +31 124 481 4444

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Results of the Company pursuant
to the Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended

To
The Board of Directors of
Satya MicroCapital Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Results

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial results of Satya MicroCapital Limited (“the Holding
Company") and its Subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group"), and its share of net loss after tax and total comprehensive loss of its associate for the year
ended 31 March 2022 included in the accompanying ‘Statement of Financial Results for the year ended
31 March 2022' (‘the Statement’), being submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the
requirement of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘the Listing Regulations").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial results:

i.  Includes the financial results of the following entities;

Holding Company
a. Satya MicroCapital Limited

Subsidiary
a. Credentia Finclusion Private Limited (Incorporated on 25 October, 2021 and disposed-off on

16 February, 2022)

Associate
a, Baid Housing Finance Private Limited

ii. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations in
this regard; and

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down
in applicable Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 ("the Act”) read with relevant rules issued thereunder, RBI guidelines and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated net profit and total comprehensive
income and other financial information of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results

These consolidated financial results which have been included in the Statement, have been prepared
on the basis of the consolidated annual financial statements. The Holding Company's Board of Directors

S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP is registered with mited labilizy vath idenlification number AAH-1 125 and its registered cffca is 108. Mercantiie House,
New Dethi 110001, Indla
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are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial results that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated net profit and consolidated total comprehensive income and other
financial information of the Group and its associate in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations
The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group and of its associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial centrols, that were operaling effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial results that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial results by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial results, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respeclive Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and its associate.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial results as
a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditer's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial results, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial results
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and ifs associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial results,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial results represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial information of
the enlities within the Group and its associate fo exprass an opinion on the consolidated financial
results. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial
information of such entities included in the consolidated financial results of which we are the
independent auditors,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial results of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit financial statements of the subsidiary, whose financial results reflect total assets of Rs.
Nil as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of Rs. Nil, total net loss after tax of Rs. 2.38 million and net
cash outflows/(inflows) amounting to Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial results. The consolidated financial results also includes the Group’s share of loss
after tax of Rs. 0.22 million and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 0.22 million in respect of associate. The
financial results of the subsidiary and associate is unaudited and has been approved and furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial results, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and associate is based solely on
such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, the said financial results of the subsidiary and associate is not material
to the Group.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

5
Vinesh Jain
Partner

Membership No.: 087701
UDIN: 22087701AJGEEI1532

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2022
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Satya MicroCapital Limited
Consolidated Dalaoce Sheet as ai March 31, 2022

(€ in million unless otherwise stated)

As al
oo Nates Morch 31, 2012
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash ond cash cquivalents 4 1,278.44
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis 5 321489
Trade receivables 6 73.40
Loan penfolio 7 ZS,I:;:::
Investment ] 3
Other financial assets 9 570.26
Total financial ascets &J 1
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 19 4617
Deferred lax assets (net) n 64.45
Property, plant and equipment 12A 120.56
Intangible assets 128 033
Other non-finaeial assets 13 296.39
Total noo-financial assets 527.90
Total aset — Y 17
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial fiabilitics
Trade Payable 14
(i) towl ding dues of mi ises and small enterprises *
(01) total ding dues of ather than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 8249
Debl securilies 15 5,285.46
Borrowings (other than debt secunitics) 15 16,353.64
Subordinated liabilities 15 1,15023
Other financeal liabilitiss 16 368.12
Total financial labifities 23,239.94
Noo-financial abilifies
Provisions 17 16.58
Other non-fmancial liabilities 18 73.40
Totsl non-financial [abilities 109.98
Equity
Equity share capital 19 49064
Instruments entirely equity in nature 20 29.85
Other equity 11 5,001.96
Totzl equity 5,522.45
Tatal liabilitics and equity ga E 3=1

The accompanying nndes are integral pan of

As per our report of even date

Vivek Tiwari
Managing Director, CEQ & CIO
DIN: 02174160
{ pifee
Choudhary Runveer Krishanan
S y & Chiel C

M.No, F7437

Place: Gurugram

Date: Moy 19, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SATYA MicroCapital Limited

Lhsnect

Ratnesh Tiwari
Director
DIN: 07131331

P
andita Kaul
officer Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mauritius
Date: May 19, 2022
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Satya MicroCapital Limited

Caonsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Yeor Ended March 31, 2022

(2 in million unless otherwise stated)

rticul For year ended
e Fiwa March 31,2022
Revenue from operatinns
Interest income 17 333322
Fee and cammission income 3 29122
Net gain on derecognition of financials i wisder omortised gost 24 166.57
HE T
Total revenoe from eperations 3.991.01
Other income 25 26.79
Total income 4,017.80
Expenses
Finance cost 6 1,711.07
Impairment on financial instruments 27 170.71
Employee benefits expenses 28 1,169.87
Depreciation and amortization 12C 57.47
Other expenses 29 473.59
Total expenses 358271
Profit before share of the profit/(toss) of associates acconnted
for using the equity method 435.09
Share of net profits{(losses) of associates acoounted for using the
equity method (0.22)
Profit before tax 434.87
Tax expense: 30
Current year tax 102.11
Deferred tax chargef{eredit) 7.95
Income-tnx expense 110.06
Profit for the year 32481
Other comprehensive income
Items that will net be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.99)
Incame tax effect 025
Total comprehensive income for the year 324.07
Earuings per equity share (EPS) (face valoe of T 10 per equity share)
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year
Basic (EPS) (zmount in T) 31 7.05
Dituted (DEPS) (amount in ¥) kL 6.94
" The ing notes are i of consalidated financial sizlements
As per our repornt of even date
For S.N. Dbawan & CO LLFP 5 For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
SATYA MicroCapital Limited
/
@e/ rpect
A\ wari Ratnesh Tiwari
Mznagzing Director, CEO & CI1O Director
DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331 wﬂ/
7= 58V
Choudhary R Krish andita Kaul
Company S y & Cluef Compli officer  Chief Financial Officer
M Mo F7437

Place: Gurugram
Date. May 19,2022

Place: Mauritius
Darte: May 19, 2022
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o
Satya MicroCapital Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Year Ended March 31, 2022
(% in million un bess atherwise stated)
Particalars For year ended
March }1, 1022
Cash flow from operating sctivitics
Profit befare tax 434 87
Adjustmeats for:
Depreciation and amartization 4441
Depreciation of right-0f-use assct 1104
Share based payment 1o employees 924
Interest expense for lcasing arangements 129
Impag of financial i nis 170.71
Lossi(profit} on sale of prapeny plant and equipment 088
Net gain on d af fi ials i under ised cost categary (166.57)
Operating profit before working capital changes 10887
Movements in working capital:
1 fid in other il liabilities (33.66)
L A in ather al liabilitics 2458
" it ‘_in — 1035
( in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis (1,844.03)
l“ \id in trade B H0m
n Al in loan portfols (10,819.54)
(I ds in other financial assels (325.78)
(L Iy in other fi ial assels [159.04)
Cash osed in operations (12,304.23)
Income-tax paid (118.91)
Net eash used in operating aetivities (A) (12,923.14))
(Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment (103.35)
Purchase of intangible assets 0.15)
Proceeds from ition of p y. plamt and equy, 0.89
Purchase of invesiment (47.14)
Proceeds from sale of investment 1.00
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (148.75)
Cash flow from fimancing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital (including premium and net of issue expenses) 1,14491
Net proceeds from borrowings# 1151628
Net cash from (inancing activities (C) 12,661.19
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents (A + B+ C) (410.70)
(Cash and cash equivalents o the beginning of the year 1.689.14
Cash and cash equivateats at the ead of the year 1,178.44
Components of eash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
Cash on hand 291
Balance with banks - on current accoants 765.49
chﬁmnﬂmig’nﬂmﬂudtyﬂlmﬂm]mmms 51004
Total cash and cash equival 1278.44
# Represents net proceeds from debt securities, bamowings (ather than debi sccuritics) and subordinated lisbilities.
Far discl of i ing and fi i ions that do nol require the use of cash and cash equivalents, refer note 43
The ing potes are intcoral of consolidated financial statements
I
As per aur repon of even dale
For §.N. Dhawan & CO LLF For and on behail of the Board of Directors of
Chartercd Accourtants SATYA MicroCapital Limited
Firm Regisiration No_ 000050N/M . / 2 //
Vinesh Jain T R Vivek Tiwari Ratoesh Tiwari
Pertner Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director
Membership No.: 087701 DIN: 02174160 DIN;OT\JI}J\I{)I_(L
oL L
= O
Chowdhary Ronveer Krishanan Vandita Kaul
Company Secretary & Chiel Compliance officer Chief Financial Officer
M No. F7437
Place: Grrugram Place: Mauntius

Date May 19, 2022 Date: May 19, 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial Results of the Company pursuant to
the Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended

To
The Board of Directors of
Satya MicroCapital Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial results of Satya MicroCapital Limited (“the Company”) for
the year ended 31 March 2022 included in the accompanying ‘Statement of Financial Results for the
quarter and year ended 31 March 2022’ (“the Statement’), being submitted by the Company pursuant
to the requirement of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘the Listing Regulations”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial results:

i. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations in
this regard; and

ii. gives atrue and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down
in applicable Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”) read with relevant rules issued thereunder, RBI guidelines and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit and total comprehensive income and other
financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("the ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

These standalone financial results which have been included in the Statement, have been prepared on
the basis of the standalone annual financial statements. The Company's Board of Directors are
responsible for the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial results that give a true
and fair view of the net profit and total comprehensive income and other financial information of the
Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
and in compliance with Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Financial Results that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP is registered with limited liability vith identifcation number AAH-1128 and its registersd office Is 108, Mercadfi
Mew Dolhi 110001, India
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In preparing the standalone financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial results as a
whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial results, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
Internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant deubt on the ability of the Company to continue as
a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial results or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Results,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Results represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Other Matters

1. The Standalone Financial Results include the results for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 being
the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the
published unaudited year to date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year which
were subject to limited review by us.

2. The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 were
audited by predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial
statements on 21 May 2021.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 087701
UDIN: 22087701AJGDXJ2780

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2022
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Sotya MicroCapital Limited

@ Standstooe Batsnce Sbeet a3 at Marvh 31,2022

(€ in milion unless otherivse stated)

Arat As at
Eatieshrs Hoses March31,2022 __ Mureh 31, 2021
ASSETS
Financial assaty
Cuth ond cash oquivalents 4 1278.44 1.689.14
Bank batances othér thtm eash end cash equivalonts 5 121489 137085
Trude receivabies & n4a ([ 2773
Loan portfotio 7 23,161 34 12,146.00
lvestmenl (] 4636 =
Other financial asscts 9 57026 ﬁ
Total Nlosacial asets b
Noo-{lasecta! sety
Curront tax assets (oet) 10 %1 2938
Deforred tax essets (oet) " 6445 T2
Propeny, plant ead equipment 12A 12056 75.74
{atang bic ex5ets 128 033 087
Other noo-financial &3¢t 13 296.39 13735
Total voo-foancial assety 527,90 31548
Total ussrls 18372.59 ECER
LIABILITIES AND EQINTY
Liabilitiey
Financia) lnbifittes
Trade Paysble 14
wtal docs of micro ises and small enterprises -
!%mmmauorm than micro enterprises and
small onterprises 8249 4582
Dbt socailics 15 528546 285139
Bamowings (other than debi seourities) 15 1635164 7,845,090
Subordinated i 15 1,15023 57428
Other (inancial liebilities 16 :m; 435.45
Tatal fisancia! Gabilities ——t 11,755.03
Noa-{inzncie] Habilities
Provisions 17 3658 2524
Otber noa-frmncial hisbilities " 7340 48.82
Tota! non-financisl Eabfities 109.98 74.06
Equity share capital 19 490,64 45850
lostnunents entirely equity in aature 20 2985 -
Other 21 500218 3.585.19
Total ity e prrecy
Toal Nt and ey ELY/E0 ERE
The wpanying motes are integral part of sumdalone financial etstements
As per our repart of even date
Far S.N. Dhawao & CO LLP For and on behalf of tbe Board of Dirvctors of
Acoauntants SATVYA MicroCapital Limbted
Firm Registration No.: 0000 ' l
& V@‘O‘L/ 4 ),e/w
Vioesh Jain Tiwari Ratoesh Tiwari
Partoer Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director
Memberstrip No.: 087701 DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331
,__p/" Q y -
o~
Choudhary Ruavetr Krishansn andita Kaut
Sccrelary & Chief Compliance officey Chiief Finaneial Officer
M.No. F7437
Place: Place: Mavritios
Date: May 19, 2022 Dare: Moy 19, 2022

139



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

~ '
’
i

Satya MicreCapital Limited ’
Standslone Statemvent of Profit end Loss for the Year Ended March 31,2022

¢ ju million unless otherwise stated
= For year ended For year cnded
Eapiatn Mt March31,2022  March 31,2021
Revenue from operations
Inlerest income 2 33Bn 244499
Fec and commission income 23 291.22 11464
Net gain on d goition of fnancial: under ised 24 366.57 103.01
cost calegery
Total reveave from operafions 3,991.010 2,667.64
Other income 25 24.40 4.54
Total income 401541 2,672.18
Expenses
Fimance cost 26 1,700.05 127812
Impairment on financial i 27 170.71 25636
Employee benefits expenses 28 1,167.99 687.48
Deprecintion and amortization 12¢ 5746 27.46
Other expenses 29 473.11 271.70
Total cxpenses 3,5%0.32 2,521.12
Profit befare tax = 15106
Tax expense: 30
Current year tax 102.10 75.62
Delerred tax charge/(credit) 795 26,73
locome-4ax expease 110.06 “j;'
Profit for the year 3= T0Z17
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified sutsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) an defined benefit plans (0.99) (039)
Income tax effect 0.25 0.10
Totsl compreheasive mcome for the year 37439 10138

Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face valoe of ¥ 10 per equity share)
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year

Basic (EPS) (emount in ¥) El} 2.05 257
Diluted (DEPS) (amaunt in T) 3 6.94 253
The sccom g rotes are integral part of standatone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and oo behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
SATVA MicraCapital Limited
A%
%Ql 4 @at//&é/
Vivek Tiwari Ratncsh Thvari
Meanaging Director, CEQ & CiO Dircctor
DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331
’ /
= RaSs
o »
Choodhary Runveer Krishanao Vandita Kaal
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance officer Chief Financiel Officer
M.No. F7437
Place: Gurugram Place: Mauritius
Date: Mey 19, 2022 Dale: May 19,2022
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Satya MicroCapita! Limited

Standalone Stateraent of Cosh Flow for the Vear Ended March )1, 2022 .
(¢ in miltvon untess othenvise stated)
For year ended For year ended
Particolars Mareh 31, 2022 Mageh 31, 2021
Cash flow from operating setivities
Profit befare (s 435.09 151.0%
| Adjustmeoty (or:
| Deprociation and amontization “ua 25.10
Deprociation of nght-<ofuse assct 1304 236
Share based paymen! to employees 924 9.59
Interest expense for keasing amengaments 229 0.43
Impairment of financial instruments 17071 256.36
Less/(profit) on ssle of property plant end equipment 0.88 (025)
Net gain on derecognition of financials i cest eateory (166.57) (108.01)
|Operatiog profit before working capita! cbanges 0.9 1664
M n workiag capital;
i other fimancial liabiliti 03,66 41865
i oher il fizhilith 2458 40,86
Increasel{decreases) m provisions 1035 11.45
(Increasc)/decrease @ bank balances other than cach and cash equivalents (1,844.03) (495.41)
( in trode. e (25,13)
{Increase)/decrease in loan portfalio (10,819.54), (3.121.85)
(g in other ial assets 325.78) 6925
(Increasc)/dearcase in other non-financial assets (159.04)) {110.71)
Cash oxed in operstiom (12,804.01) (2,936.25),
Income-tnx paid (11891 (42.08)|
Net cash osed o operating activities (A) (12,922.92) (L978.33)
Cash fow from lovestiog sctivities
Purchase of property, plat end equipment (103.35) 159.24)
Purchase of intangible assets (0.15)] (0.45)
Proceeds from derecognition of propesty, plam and equipment 0.89 039
Purchase of mvesiment (47.36), -
|Procceds from sale of investments 1.00 -
Net cash osed in investiog activities (B) (148.97) (59.30)
(Cash Mow (row finsaciog eetivities
|Procceds from issus of share capital (including premium asd net of issuc expenses) 114491 221514
Net proceeds from berowingsd 1151628 2,039.80
Net cash from insndng adtivities (C) 12661.19 425454
Net inorease / (decrease) io cash and cash equivaleats (A + B+ C) (410.70)) 2173
(Cash end cash equivalenis at the beginning of the yoar 1,689.14 471.83
Cash and cash equivaleats at the end of the year 1,278.44 1,689.14
Componeats of cash and cash equivalents as ot dhe end of the your
Cash oo hand 291 442
" |Batance with banks - on current accounts 765.49 1,454.70
Im‘ with original maturity of less than 3 menths 510.04 2002
Total cash aad cash equival 1278.44 1,689.14
i Rep et p ds from debt itics, b ings (other than debt scourities) and subordinated linbilities.
For disck e img and (manci ions that do nat require the use of cash end cash equivalents, refer note 43
The ing notes are inl nrmndalm; financial statements
As per o report of even date
For S.N. Dirawae & CO LLP For snd oo bebalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Chartesed Accountants SATYA MicroCapital Limited -
Firm Registration No.. 0000SON/N. 1
o G 6;7\@1/ @z% 3
Vigesh Jain Yivek Tiwari Ratoesh Tiwari
Pastner _ Managing Director, CEO & CIO Direstor
Membership No.: 087701 DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331
- - B / -
Choadhary Runveey Krithansa andita Kaul
Company Secretary & Chicl Complisnce offices Chief Financial Officer
M.No. F1437
Place. Guugram RES
Place: Mauritius
Daic May 19,2022 g Mo 18, 2
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Bth Floor — "A” Block

S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP T e b4,
Chartered Accountants Taramani, Chennai - 800 113, India

Tel: +91 44 6117 9000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Satya MicroCapital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Satya MicroCapital Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive
income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the 'Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 46(A) of the financial statements which describes the continuing impact of economic
and social consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company's business and financial metrics
particularly the Company's estimates of impairment of loans to customers which continue to be dependent on
uncertain future developments. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of financial instruments (including provision for expected credit losses) (as described
in note 3(e) of the Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to | e Our audit procedures included considering the

provide for impairment of its loan Company's accounting policies for impairment of loan

receivables (financial assets) using the receivables and assessing compliance with the policies
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL in terms of Ind AS 109.
involves an estimation of probability-

i "" _—— SA. Batliool & Associates LLP. aLimited Lisbliity Partnership with LLP identity No. AAB-4235
e Aagd. Office : 22, Camac Straet. Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

weighted loss on financial assets over their
life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company's loans
and advances.

In this process, judgement has been applied
by the management for:

a) Defining qualitative/  quantitative
thresholds for ‘significant increase in
credit risk’ (“SICR") and ‘default’.

b) Grouping of loan portfolio under
homogenous pools to determine
probability of default on a collective
basis.

c) Determining effect of less frequent
past events on future probability of
default.

Additional considerations on account of
CoVID-19

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI") circular dated March 27, 2020
(“RBI circular”) allowing lending
institutions to offer a moratorium to
customers on payment of instalments
falling due between March 1, 2020 and May
31, 2020 read with advisory issued by the
Microfinance Institutions Network dated
March 30, 2020 (“MFIN advisory™), the
Company has extended a moratorium to its
borrower in accordance with its Board
approved policy as described in Note 7.1.

As per the guidance from ICAI, extension of
the moratorium to borrowers by itself is not
considered to result in a SICR for a
borrower. Further, in accordance with
various stimulus packages announced by
Government of India (“GOI") other than
moratorium, the Company has restructured
loans during the year. The Company in the
future will need to evaluate from time to
time whether to whom moratorium was
granted or loans restructured under the
packages announced by GOl will be regular.
The  Company has recorded a
macroeconomic overlay as part of its ECL,
to reflect among other things an increased
risk of deterioration in macro-economic
factors caused by Novel Coronavirus
(CoVID-19) pandemic. Given the unique
nature and scale of the economic impact of
this pandemic and no reliable data being
available regarding the impact of various
regulatory packages, the macroeconomic
overlay estimate is based on various highly
uncertain and unobservable factors. In
accordance with the guidance in Ind AS
109, the macroeconomic overlay estimate
takes into account reasonably and

Tested the assumptions used by the Company for
grouping and staging of loan portfolio into various
categories and default buckets for determining the PD
and LGD rates.

Tested the operating effectiveness of the controls for
staging of loans based on their past-due status. Tested
a sample of performing (stage 1) loans to assess
whether any loss indicators were present requiring them
to be classified under stage 2 or 3.

Tested the input data used for determining the PD and
LGD rates and agreed the data with the underlying
books of accounts and records.

Performed inquiries with the Company's management
and its risk management function to assess the impact
of lock-down on the business activities of the Company.

Assessed the Company's policy with respect to
moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular and tested the
implementation of such policy on a sample basis.

Assessed the additional considerations applied by the
management for staging of loans as SICR/ default in
view of Company's policy on moratorium and
reschedulement/restructuring of loans in accordance
with the regulations issued in this respect.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic factors
(including CoVID-19 pandemic) in accordance with the
governance framework approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of India guidelines
issued on March 13, 2020.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL
provision performed by the Company in spreadsheets.

Compared the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected credit losses
with the requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109. Reviewed
specific disclosures made in the Ind AS financial
statements with regards to the impact of CoVID-19 on
ECL estimation and other disclosures as prescribed by
RBI  relating to  moratorium  granted  or
reschedulement/restructuring of loans.

Ysmte—
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

supportable information without incurring
significant cost. The actual credit losses for
the next 12 months could be significantly
different than the ECL estimates prepared
by the Company depending upon the impact
and duration of the pandemic and various
regulatory and policy measures announced
by the Government.

Given the high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL,
accentuated by the considerations for
CoVID-19 related developments, it is a key
audit matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and to comply with the relevant
applicable requirements of the standard on auditing for auditor’s responsibility in relation to other information
in documents containing audited financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for sateguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

ot
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to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

) ) -
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(t

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this
report;

(g) Inour opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid/ provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

iil.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 10104SW/E300004

ot

per BharathN S
Partner
Membership Number: 210934

UDIN: 21210934AAAACI6758
Chennai
May 21, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on other legal and regulat ory requirements'
of our report of even date

Re: Satya MicroCapital Limited

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification .

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us. the title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are
held in the name of the company.

(i) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause 3
(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a),
(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) Tothe best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the
Company.

(vii

-

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in
afew cases in deposit of Tax deduction at source and Professional tax.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for aperiod of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax,
service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or dues to debenture
holders.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which those
were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were gainfully
invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the company or no material fraud on the company by the officers and employees
of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

147



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied with
provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment or private
placement of shares during the year. According to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered as
required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

[T

per BharathN S
Partner
Membership Number: 210934

UDIN: 21210934AAAACI6758
Chennai
May 21, 2021

148



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Satya MicroCapital
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obt aining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these [standalone] financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
Because of theinherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to therisk that the internal financial control

e
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with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

@-»M_;‘ib.'
per BharathN S
Partner
Membership Number: 210934

UDIN: 21210934AAAACIE758
Chennai
May 21, 2021
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Nitcs As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 4 1,689.14 471.83
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 1,477.19 981.78
Trade receivables 6 107.42 2229
Loan portfolio 7 12,146.00 9,172.52
Other financial assets 8 44.45 113.70
Total financial assets 15,464.20 10,762.12
Non-financial asscts
Current tax assets (nef) 9 29.38 62.92
Deforred tax assets (net) 10 72,14 4531
Property, plant and equipment 11 7574 43.76
Intangible assets 1 087 0.75
Other non-financial assets 12 231.05 120.34
Total non-financial assets 409.18 273.08
Total assets 15,873.38 11,035.20
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Debt securities 13 2,851.39 2,425.84
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 13 7,845.09 6,678.97
Subordinated liabilitics 13 574.28 125.72
Other financial liabilities 14 479.19 60.54
Total financial liabilitics 11,749.95 9,291.07
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 15 2524 13.40
Other non-financial liabilities 16 53.90 13.04
Total non-financial liabilities 79.14 26.44
EQUITY
Equity share capital 17 458.50 304.47
Other equity 18 3,585.79 1,413.22
Total equity 4,044.29 1,717.69
Total liabilities and equity 15,873.38 11,035.20
S ry of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number : 101049W/E300004

24__.,.. B 4 > il

per Bharath N 8
Partner
Membership No.210934

Place: Chennai
Date: May 21, 2021

o

-

Company Secretary
M. No. : F3923

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Satya MicroCapital Limited

Ratnesh Tiwari
Managing Director, CEO & CIO  Director

DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331

hindra Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 21, 2021
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Not For year ended For year ended
U March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Revenuce from operations

Tnterest income 19 2,444 99 1973.52

Fee and commission income 20 114.64 1496

Net gain on d ition of fi jals il under amortised cost 21 108.01 96.56

category
Total revenue from operations 2,667.64 2,085.04

Other income 22 454 1.09
Total income 2,672.18 2,086.13
Expenses

Finance cost 23 1278.12 1,159.04

Impai on financial i 24 256.36 9527

Employee benefits expense 25 68748 473.16

Depreciation and amortization expense 1l 27.46 2643

Other expenses 26 27170 21726
Total expenses 2,521.12 1,975.16
Profit before tax 151,06 110.97
Tax expense: 27

Current year tax 75.62 4478

Earlier year tax - 032

Deferred tax (26.73) (9.42)
Income-tax expense 48.89 35.68
Profit for the year 102.17 75.29
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified snbsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.39) (1.26)

Income tax effect 0.10 037
Total comprehensive income for the year 101.88 74.40
Larnings per share (equity share, face value of Rs.10 each)

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year

Basic (Rs ) (EPS) 28 257 248

Diluted (Rs.) (DPS) 28 253 243

Nominal value 10.00 10.00

y of significant accounting polici 3

The accompanying notes aré an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even datc
For S R, Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAJ Firm registratsion number @ 101049W/E300004

Yt

per Bharath N §
Partner
Membership No 210934

Place: Chennai
Date. May 21, 202]

For and on behalf of the Board of Dicectors of
Satya MicroCapital Limited

Gt/
Vitck Tiwari

Managing Director, CEO & CIO
DIN: 02174160

a

Ao
Angider
Company Secretary
M. No. : F3923

Y

Ratnesh ‘Tiwari
Director
DIN: 07131331

RAfa Sharma

Chief Fingncial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 21, 2021
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Cash Flow Starement for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Rupees in millions unless othenwise slatod

For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 202¢
Cash flow from uperating aetivitics
Piofil befare tax 15106 11097
Adjustments for:
Dspesciation and amortization 2748 2643
Share based payment to cmployees 9359 143
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 1184 718
Re-mensurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0 39) (1.26)
Impairment of financial instruments 199 58 90,50
Net gain on d ition of financials under d cost category (1o8.01) {56 56)
Inierest income: (2,444 99) (2,97352)
Inteces! expense 127812 1,13544
(875.74) (685.39)
Operating cash Nows on account of:
[(nderest income 2,19506 177629
Inferest expense (1,308 83) (1,174.65)
Lease rental reversed upon implementaion of Ind AS 116 (4 83) (5370
Operating profit before warking capital changes 2.66 (89.12)
Mavements in working capital:
[nerense/{decrease) in other financial liabifities 41865 (91 48)
Increasef{decreases) in sther noa-financial liahilites 40 36 (1269)
(Inereasedeorease in bank halances ather than cash and eash squivalents 49341 84916
lncreasc in rade receivabies (#5.13) (8 74y
Inerease in loan portfolia (2.87414) (2,567 92)
Deorcasci{Inerense) in other Bnancial sssets 6925 (628)
laerease in other non-financial sssets (5869 (43 94)
Cnsh used in operations {2.071.98) (2,371.01)
Income-tax g _(42.28) (8867)
Net cash uned in operating sctivities (A) LJ)I)_N,D) (25459.6”
Cash Now [rom investing activities
Purchose of property, plant and equijment {59.24) (9039)
Puschase of inlangible assets (04s) {057
Net cash used in investing activities (B) ’59.69! (40.96)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceads fram issue of equity sharea (inoluding securities premum)* 153263 39037
Issua af compuisorily convertible preference shares (ineluding securities pramium) 682 50 16750
Net proceeds from borrowings# 2076 10 1,84340
Net cash from fnancing activities () 4,291.23 2.610,27
Net incrense / {decrease) in onsh sed cash equivalents (A + B+ €) 1,217.31 109.63
Cash and cash equivalents at Lhe begnning of the year 47183 36220
Cash and cush equivalents ¢ the end of the yeur (refer note 4) 1,689.14 471.2_
Components of ensh and cash equivalents as at the end of period
Cash on hand 1442 281
Balance with banks = on current sccount 145470 46052
Dreposits with original maturily of fess than or equal to 7 months 22002 250
‘Total cash and cash cquivalents 1,689.14 471.83
* Net of amount recoverable from Satya Employee Welfare Trust
# Represents net proceeds fram debt securities, b (other than debl i and d liabylities

For disclosure of investing and linancing activities that do nol requue the wse of cash ond cash equivalents, refer note 40

Summary of significant accounting golicies !
The accompanyiag notes ace nn inteeral part of the finencial statoments

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S R Badlibot & Associotes LLP Satya MicroCapil Limited

Ghartered Accauntants V3
ICAI Firm registration number - 101049W/E300004 (P’o’ / @<

por Bharath NS gr»"‘—/‘pb.,/ Videl Tiwarl Ratnesh Tiwuri

Partner Munagstg Director, CEO & CI0 Directer
Membership No 210034 DIN 02174160 DIN; 0713133)
\ '
" .
At ra Sharma
Company Searetary Ch anciul Officer

M No 'F3923

Place Chennu
Date: May 21, 2021

Place New Delli
Date: May 21,2021
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2™ Floor, 51-52, Sector-18,
S'N' Dhawan & co LLP Phasgc:rv, Udyog \?iﬁar, Gurugram,

Haryana 122016, India

Chartered Accountants
Tel: +91 124 481 4444
independent Auditor's Limited Review Report on the unaudited quarterly and year to date
Financial Results of Satya MicroCapital Limited, pursuant to the Regulation 52 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

To
The Board of Directors
Satya MicroCapital Limited

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited financial results of Satya MicroCapital
Limited (“the Company”) for the quarter ended September 30, 2023 and year to date results for the
period April 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 (‘the Statement’), being submitted by the Company
pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“the
SEBI") (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

2. This Statement which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and approved by the
Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34 ‘interim Financial Reporting’ (‘Ind AS 34'),
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) read with relevant Rules issued
thereunder, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India and in compliance with Regulation 52 of the listing regulations. Our responsibility is to express
a conclusion on the Statement based on our review.

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements
(SRE) 2410, 'Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the aforesaid Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including the manner in
which itis to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement or that it has not been prepared
in accordance with the relevant prudential norms issued by the RBI in respect of income recognition,
assets classification, provisioning and other related matters.

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

o
O
S
Vinesh Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 087701
UDIN: 2308F 70/ BGWNRYX [Y7F<

Place: New Delhi
Date: November 02, 2023

S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP s registarad with limited iabdity with idenl#ication number AAH-1125 and its registered office fs 108, Mercantile House, 15 Kasturba Gandhi Marg
New Dethi 110001, India
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#£) SATYA MicroCapital Ltd.

e e gl
CIN : UT4899DL1995PLCOGSGSS

Registered office : 519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers , Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020
Website: www. i ital.com; E-mail: ¢s@ i ital.com ; Phone: 011-49724000

Statement of financial results for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2023

(¥ in million except EPS)

Quarter ended Half vear ended Year ended
Sino, |Particulars September 30, 20231 June 30,2023 | September 30, 2022| September 30, 2023 | September 30, 2022]  March 31, 2023
(Un-audited) (Un-audited) (Un-sudited) (Un-andited (Un-audited) (Audited) |

1 wnﬂcnuc from eperations

Interest income 232328 241749 137594 474077 262808 577097

Fees and commission meome 261.30 140.68 816 40204 10.86 49188

Net gain on fair value changes 5388 - - 19.04 - -

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 35836 25481 34516 61320 387.55 1,044 64

under amarntised cost category

Total revenue from operations 2,996.88 2513.m 1,729.26 577508 3,026.49 730749
2 |Other income 53.06 2148 12.00 74.54 2465 5297
3 [Total income (1+2) 304994 283449 1,741.26 584959 305114 7.360.46
4 |Expenses

Finunce costs 1.267.18 110048 700,02 236766 1.329.63 297221

Net loss on fair value changes - 3484 - - . 6.95

Impai of financial J 169.12 27421 238.56 44333 29673 72131

Employce benefits expenses 745.55 681.48 46042 1427.03 865,65 2,023.58

D i and 53t P 2848 1959 1846 4507 3152 76.99

Other expenses 331,13 2102 200.18 $52.18 34251 84531

Total expenses 254146 233162 1,617.64 4838.24 2.866.04 6,646.35
5 |Profit before tax (3-4) 508,48 50287 123,62 101135 185.10 T
6 [Tax expense:

Current tax 10570 195.72 392 30142 6261 68.64

Deferred tax charpe/(credit) 22858 (68.65), 12.06); (15.80) {15.26) 11503

Total tax expense 128.55 127.07 3186 25562 4733 183,67
7 |Net profit after tax (5-6) 37993 37580 91.76 758,73 137,78 £30.44
8 |Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.36) {1,78), 0.11 (4.14)] (0.18)) {6.46))

Income tax relsting to items that will not be 0.59 045 (0.02) 1.1 0.04 163

reclassified to profit or loss

Tatal other comprehensive incone (177N (1.33) 0.09 (3.10) (0,10) {4.83)
% |Total comprehensive income (748) 378.16 37447 91.8§ 752.63 137.65 525.61
10 [Paid-up equity share capital (face value of 2 10| 59320

per cquity share)
11 |Instruments entirely equity in nature £9.00
12 [Other equity 773039
13 |Earning per share (EPS) (face value of 210 per

equity share)

- Baxic (amount in 2) 6.04 633 1.87 12.36 230 10.56

- Diluted (amount in 2) 588 381 1.68 11.68 238 260

(EPS for the quarter aud half year ended are not

annualised)

Registered and Corporate Office

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1, New Delhi - 10020, India
E-mail : info@satyamicrocapital.com | Web : www.satyamicrocapital.com
CIN: U74899DL1995PLCO68688 | Fax: (+91-11) 49724051 | Phone : (+91-T1) 4972 4000
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D), SAT.YA MicroCapital Ltd.

SATYA MicroCapital Limited
CIN : U74899DL1995PLCO6SGSS
Registered office : 519, Sth Floor, DLF Prime Towers , Okhla Industrial Arca, Phase-l, New Dethi-110020
Website: www, i pital.com; E-mail: csa i ital.com ; Phone; 011-49724000
Statement of assets and liabilities as at September 30, 2023
@ in million)
Asat Asat
Particulars September 30,2023 |  March 31,2023
(Un-audited) (Audited) |
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 10,546.69 2,19993
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1457 89 209255
Dervative financial instauments 1209 -
Trade receivables 14541 106 48
Loan portfolia 38,5277 3790304
Tnvestments 148775 173340
Other financal assets 1,148 64 122508
£6.306.18 45.260.48
Non-financial ussets
Current tax assets {net) - 13953
Property, plant and equipiment 220.55 159.65
(Capital work-in-progress 683.54 61212
Intangible assets 0.17 020
Other non-financinl asscts 526.59 410,06
[Total non-financial assets 1,430,858 1,321.56
TOTAL ASSETS 57,737.03 46,582.04
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Linbilities
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 695
Tradde payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterpnises and small caterprises - 053
(1) total owstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 184t 100.84
Debt securities 1004047 10.360.69
Borvowings (other than debt securities) 34,283.42 25,14247
Subordinated liabilines 2,604.30 1,160.89
Other financial liabilities 1,382 80 1,205 30
48.429.40 37,977.67
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax labilities (net) 326 -
Provisions 7541 69.34
Deferred tax labilities (net) 21 4895
Other nen-financial labilities 8789 11349
168,67 23178
LEquity
Equity share capital 64024 $93.20
| Instruments entirely equity in nature 250 49.00
Other equity 849622 7.730.39
9,138.96 837259
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 57,737.03 %ﬁg

Registered and Corporate Office
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SATYA MicroCapital Limited
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Website: www.satyami ital.com; E-mail i pital.com ; Phone:011-49724000

Statement of Cash flows for the half year ended September 30, 2023

#) SATYA MicroCa
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pital Ltd.

(€ in mitlion)
For half year ended | For half year ended
Particulars September 30, 2023 | S ber 30, 2022
(Un-audited) (Un-audited) |
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 101135 185.10
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 4514 2787
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 293 3.63
Share based payment to employees 6.08 289
Interest expense for leasing arrangements 101 1.09
Impairment of financial instruments 44360 296,73
Net gain on fair value changes (19.04) -
Loss/(Profit) on sale of property plant and equipment (0.51) 10.25)
Net gain on d ion of fi jals i under amortised cost category (613.20) (387.55)
Operating profit before working capital changes 877.36 129.53
Muoyements in working capital:
Increase (decrease) in trade payable and other financial fabilitics 19314 7131
Increase/(d in other it 1al liabili (25.60) {3330)
Increase/(decreases) in provisions 6.07 448
( Increase)/decrense in bunk balances other than cash and cash equivalents (2.345.34) 1,099.95
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (38.93) 33.66
( Increase ydeercase in loan portfolio (779.74) (2411.26)
[l d in other il asscts 689.63 156 89
(Increase)decrease in other non-financial assets (116.53) (136.31)
Cash used in operations (1,539.93) (1,085.05)
Income-tax paid (162.76) (127.27)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (1,702.69) (1212.32)
Cash Mow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (185.75) (617 48)
Proceeds from derecognition of property, plant and equipment 12.16 045
Purchase of investment (250.00) (194.98)
Proceeds from investment 207.39 -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (216.20) (812.00)
Cash flow from financing activitics
Proceeds from issuc of share capital {including premium and net of 1ssue expenses) 7.66 73436
Proceeds from debt securities 663,01 3,142.00
Repayment of debt securitics (985.24) (922.62)
Proceeds from borrowings other than debt securities 1748728 7,553.07
Repayment of borrowings other than debt sceuritics (8,346.532) (6,419.77)
Proceeds from subordinated lLiabilities 1,450.00 10.57
Repuyment of subordinated ligbilitics (6.59), -
Payment of lease liabilities (6.15) (4.84)
Net cash from financing activities () 1026365 4,092.77
Net inerease / (decrease) in cash und cash equivalents (A + B+ () 8.346.76 2,008.45
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 2,199.93 1,278 44
Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the year 10,546.69 3,346.89
Components of cash and cash equivalents ay at the end of the year
Cash on hand 2848 ™67
Belance with banks - on current accounts 331546 2,366.83
Degostts with oniginal maturity of less than 3 months 7202.75 90039
ITotal cash and cask equivalents 10,546,69 3.346.89

Registered and Corporate Office

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1, New Delhi - 110020, India
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ANNEXURE 1V: ILLUSTRATION OF BOND CASH FLOWS

Illustration of Bond Cash Flows

Company Satya Microcapital Limited

Face Value (per security) As per Key Information Document of each issue.
Issue Date / Date of Allotment As per Key Information Document of each issue.
Redemption Date / Maturity Date As per Key Information Document of each issue.
Coupon Rate As per Key Information Document of each issue.
Frequency of the Coupon Payment with | As per Key Information Document of each issue.
specified dates

Day Count Convention Actual/Actual
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ANNEXURE V: TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE AGREEMENT

As per the Key Information document of each issuance.
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ANNEXURE VI: IN-PRINCIPLE APPROVAL RECEIVED FROM BSE

BSE®

TAS AN 0f Vi

DESICOMP/ANIP-PPOY353/23-24 Nowermber 19, 2023

Satya Microcapital Limited

519, 5th thoor, CLF Prime Towers,
Dkhla Industriad Area,

Phase-1, Delh-110020

Dear Sir/Madam
Redeemable, Non-Convertibie Debentures {tha *Issue”),

We acknowledge receipt of your spplicstion on the online postal on November 29, 2002 seeking -
principle approval for i55ue of captionsd securky, In s régard, the Bxchange is pleasad to grant i
principle appeoval for Ssting of captivosd secunty subject 16 fuffilling the following conditices at the
time of seeking Stng!

L. Filing of fsting application,

2. Payment of fees 35 may be prescribed from Bme to time

3. Complance with SEBI {Issue and Listing of Non Canvortible Securities) Regulations, 2023 read with
SEBI Circular No SEBIHO/DOHS/P/UR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and orculars issued
thereunder and also Compliance with provisions of Companies act 2013,

4 Receipt of Statutory & oiber approvals & compkance of gudelines issued by tho statutory
authorities including SEBI, AR, DCA &1, 45 mary be applicable,

5. Comaliance with change in the guldeiines, regulataons, directions, circulars of the Excharge, SE81 ar
any uther statutory avtharities, documentary requirements from time to time.

& Campliance with below mentioned cicufar deted June 20, 2020 issued by B5E before opening of
the issue 10 the investors

attos:/Awww baeedio.comyfmarkets/Marketnfo/DisphewNoticesCirculars. asax?pege=20200620. 31

7. Issuers, far whom use of ESP isnot marntatary, specfic attention is drawn towards comaliance with
Chapgar XY of SE& Crrcufar No SEBYHO/DOHSP/CIR/2021/613 dated Mugust 10, 2021 and BSE
Cocutar No 20210515-25 dated May 19, 2021, Accordingly, tssuers of privatedy placed debt securitios
in terms of SEBI (Issue and Listing of NonCanvertible Securities) Regulatans, 2021 ar ILOM
flegulations far whom accessing the electronic hook platform (EB9) is not mandatary shall uptoad
details of the tssue with arey one of the £8P within one working diy of such issuance. The details can

be uwphloaded using the following links ke _lssuance - _Exchange Limited

[bsein

Rogicrorss OMce BEE Lissfiol, Fray (% % ) Yoot ol Dt Martas 400 DO% reti T3 450 29 2277 1200711 | 0 000 2w hbsie s 0
W baeirelacaa | CLpoaie P e |1 LMAOUO (v
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BSE®

Phar Doamds of U

2. It Is achvized that Face Value of NCDs issue thraugh pavate placement basis should he kept a5 per
Chapaee ¥ of SEBI Circular No SEBYHO/DDNS/P/CIRS2021/613 dated August 10, 2021

9. fssuery are heveby advised to comply with signing of og with both the depositories os
per Regulation 7 of SEBT {lsswe ond Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 read with
SEBI Civeufar No SEBI/HO/DONS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021.

10. Company Is further requested to comply with SEB! Clrcular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-
RACPODI/CIR/P/2023/56 duted Apeil 13, 2023, [if opplicoble) reod olong with BSE Circuior
bottps:/f wwew. Sseindio, corm/ntarke s/ Maketinfo/ CixpNexNoticesSirculnrs asox2poge=202 20328+
18 ond ensure compliance of the some,

This in-Principle Approvel is vabd For o pericd of 1 year from the date of issus of this letter o penod
of 1 year from the date of opening of the first offer of debt securities under the General information
Dotument, which ever spplicabile. The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw s In-principle approval
3t any later stage o the Information submiited to the Excharge is found (0 be incomplete/
Incorrect/misleadirg/false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the
Exchange, SE8I (lssue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 cead with 5661
Circusiar No SEBIS/HOJODRS/P/CIR/I021 /613 dated August 10, 2024 and Grculars issued thereunder,
SESI (Usting Ohbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013, Guidelines/Regalations
Issued by the statutory authorities etc Further, it s subgect 1o payment of all applicadl charges lovied
by the Exchange for usage of any system, software or similar such facliities praviied by 8SE which the
Compary shall avail to process the application af securities for which approval is given wide this letter

Yours faithfully,
For BSE Liméted
J
A
Prasad Bhide Akshay Arolicr
Senior Manager Deputy Manager
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ANNEXURE VII: LENDING POLICY

Details with regard to the lending done by the Issuer out of the issue proceeds of debt securities
in last three years, including details regarding the following:

1.1.1. Lending policy: Should contain overview of origination, risk management, monitoring
and collections:

Lending Policy: Should contain overview of origination, risk management, monitoring and collections:

SATYA has chosen Group Lending (GL) Product through its leadership expertise and based on this
model’s appreciable characteristics:

»  Group Lending Model ensures better credit appraisal, and it also helps in reducing transactional cost

* This model compliments SATYA’s essence of TRUST. Group Lending unites the economically
active section with each other and enhances their trustworthiness towards their financial institution
and between group members.

*  On a common platform, Group Lending Model appraises TRANSPARENCY; they all take the loan
collectively and then together they repay it. All through, right from the process of village selection
to client selection to loan disbursal Satya staff sticks to transparency (one of organization’s five core
values) by sharing to clients with full clarity the various features of product and terms and
conditions of repayment

»  Through Group TRAINING and Meetings, together SATYA staff share with clients their social
experiences and educate them on relevant topics such as financial literacy (income, expenditure,
saving, Investment, etc.) and raise awareness about socially uplifting topics like Nasha Bandi and
sanitation and hygiene (Swachh Bharat movement).

In India, Microfinance has the main practice of Joint Liability Group (JLG), wherein borrowers come
together to form a group and take the responsibility of repaying the loan of each other member in case
of default by any of the members in the group. In such a scenario, the responsibility of the financially
disciplined members is extended to a large extent in case the group has few clients who are intentional
defaulters. This puts additional financial pressure on the disciplined clients and at times, such good
clients also default in repayment due to extended financial obligations. So, the existing JLG model has
this limitation that good clients face pressure due to few deliberate defaulting clients in the group.

Satya has adopted Joint Liability Group model of microfinance with Limited Liability suiting the local
context. In Satya, Joint Liability Group Loan is hereinafter referred as Limited Liability Group Loan
(LLG).

1.1.2. Classification of loans/ advances given to associates, entities/ person relating to board,
senior management, promoters, others, etc.:

SI. | Name Transaction Type (Loan Given/ | Rs. Crore
No. Loan Taken)

Associate

Board

Senior management Choudhary Runveer Krishanan 0.18
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Promoters

0.18
Total

1.1.3. Aggregated exposure to the top 20 borrowers with respect to the concentration of
advances, exposures to be disclosed in the manner as prescribed by RBI in its
stipulations on Corporate Governance for NBFCs or HFCs, from time to time:

Sl. No. Particulars As on 31.03.2023-
1. 8.78

Total advances to twenty largest

borrowers / customer

2. 0.23%
Percentage of Advances to twenty
largest  borrowers to  Total
Advances of the applicable NBFC

Total
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ANNEXURE VIII: BOARD RESOLUTION
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¥

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) HELD ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY
27, 2023, AT 01:00 P.M. AT PULLMAN, AEROCITY, IGI ROAD, AIRPORT.NEW DELHI
110037, INDIA

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

"RESOLVED THAT in suppression to the previous resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on May 19, 2022 and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company their
Annual General Meeting held on July 06, 2022 and from time to time, in terms of the provisions of
Sections 23, 26, 42, 71, 179(3)(c), 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force (the "Act"), the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, (as
amended from time to time), rules, regulations, guidelines, notific ations, clarifications
and circulars, if any, prescribed by the Govermnment of India, all applicable regulations,
directions, guidelines, circulars and notifications of the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI"), the
Securities and Exchange Board of Indi a ("SEBI"), including the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021, asamended, or any other regulatory authonty, whether in India or
abroad, and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association
of the Company and the listing agreements entered into with the stock exchanges (the "Stock
Exchanges") where the secunties of the Company may be listed and subject to such approvals,
consents, p ermissions and sanctions as may be required from any statutory/regulatory
authority, the approval of the Board be and is hereby accorded for;

(a) 1ssue and allotment of non-convertible debentures ((i) listed or unlisted, (ii) senior secured, (ii1)
senior unsecured, (iv) unsecured, (v) subordinated, (vi) any others (including market linked
debentures), as may be determined, and which may or may not be rated (as may be determuined),
of such face value as may be determined up to the aggregate amount of INR 1000,00,00,000
{Indian Rupees One Thousand Crores) ("Debentures”) in one or more tranches/issues
("Tranches/Issues"), at such interest rate as may be determined, payable at such frequency as
may be determined, subject to deduction of taxes at source in accordance with applicable law,
with or without gross up, and for such maturity (subject to applicable law) as may be
determined, by away of private placement/public issue to eligible investors (including without
limitation, any banks, financial institutions, mutual funds, foreign portfolio investors,
individuals, or any other persons/entities in accordance with applicable law) ("Investors") for
raising debt for such purposes as may be determined; and

®) collateralizing/securing the amounts to be raised pursuant to the issue of the Debentures or any
Tranche/Issue together with all interest and other charges thereon (up to such limits and security
cover as may be agreed and within such timelines as may be agreed) by one or more of the
following (1) hypothecation of certain identified loans/book debts, and/or any other assets of
the Company and/or (i) charge over specified immovable property of the Company and/or (i)
such other security or contractual comfort (including personal and/or corporate guarantees) as
may be required in terms of the issuance of the Debentures or any Trancheflssue (the
"Transaction Security")."

Registered and Corporate Office

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1, New Delhi - 110020, India

E-mail : info@satyamicrocapital.com | Web : www.satyamicrocapital.com
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SAT YA MicroCapital Ltd.
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the working committee of the board of directors ("Committee") is
hereby empowered (in addition to any powers that the Committee presently has or may have from ume
to ttme), within the overall ambit of the resolutions set out herein, to (@) consider and approve the
particular terms of the Debentures and/or cach Tranche/Issue to more effectively implement any of the
resolutions of the Board set out herein, (b) consider and approve any terms or modifications thereof for
the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures, (c) to approve and finalize consolidated and
standalone reformatted financial statements, wherever appiicable, (d) direct any officers of the
Compauny to do such things and to take such actions as the Company is entitled to do or take (as the
case may be) in terms of the resolutions set out herein, (¢) allot the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of
the Debentures, (f) to submit/file/approve any return/document/prospectus or any other document as
required for the issuance of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures, and (g) generally
do or to take any other action, deed, or things, as may be necessary to remove any difficulties or
impediments in the effective implementation of the resolutions set out herein."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vivek Tiwari, Managing Director, CEO & C10 and Mr. Sanjay
Goel, Deputy Chief Finaneial Officer of the Company (collectively, the "Authorised Persons") be and
are hereby severally authorised to do such acts, deeds and things as they deem necessary or desirable
in connection with the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the

Debentures, including, without limitation the following;

(a) seeking, if required, any approval, consent or waiver from any/all concerned governmental and
regulatory authonties, and/or any other approvals, consent or waivers that may be required in
connection with the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the
Debentures;

(b} executing the term sheet in relation to the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures,

(c) negotiating, approving and deciding the terms of the tssue, offer and allotment of the
Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and all other related matters (including but
not limited to, the amounts proposed to be raised, the Transaction Secunity propoesed to be
provided by the Company. the rate of interest, the terms of repayment and the end use);

(d) if required by the holders of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debemtures (the
"Debenture Holders"), seeking the listing of any of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of
the Debentures on any Stock Exchange, submitting the listing application and taking all actions
that may be necessary in connection with obtaining such listing,

(e) (if so required) issuing the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the Debentures through the
electronic book mechanism process pursuant to the guidelines and circulars issued by the SEBI
in this respect, and taking all such action and steps as may be required for the purposes of
complying with relevant guidelines, including making all relevant disclosures to the "electronic
book provider”,

[£h) (if 80 required) creating and maintaining a recovery expense fund with the relevant Stock
Exchanges in  accordance with the requirements of the circular no.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22, 2020 on "Contribution by
Issuers of listed or proposed to be listed debt securities towards creation of “Recovery Expense
Fund™ issued by SEBI,

() (if so required) providing such information or documents lo the debenture trustee in accordance
with the requirements of the arcular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/218 dated
November 3, 2020 on "Creation of Securnity in issuance of listed debt securities and 'due
diligence' by debenture trustee(s)” issued by SEBI;

(n) (if so required) providing such information/disclosures in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021
and the requirements of the circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10,
2021 on "Operational Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised
Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial Paper” issued
by SEBI,

() preparing and finalising the Disclosure Documents (including amending, varying or modifying
such documents, as may be considered desirable or expedient), in accordance with alloa (>

~E\
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apphcable laws, lugmlﬂloﬂ's and guidelines, and approving the Disclosure Documents

(ncluding any amendments, variations or modifications of such documents, as may be

considered desirable or expedient);

to submit/file the Disclosure Documents with the relevant Stock Exchange(s) and any other

governmental authority (if so be required),

finahising the terms and conditions of the appointment of an arranger (if so required), a

debenture trustee, a registrar and transfer agent, a credit rating agency, legal counsel, a

depository and such other intermediaries including their successors and their agents, as may be

required 1n relation to the issue, offer and allotment of Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the

Debentures,

finalising the terms of the 1ssue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of

the Debentures,

entering into arrangements with the depository in connection with the issue, offer and allotment

of Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures (n dematerialised form,

creating and perfecting the Transaction Security as required in accordance with the terms of the

Transaction Documents (as defined below) in relation to the issue, offer and allotment of the

Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures;,

deciding/finalising the closing date for receiving application amounts and the deemed date of

allotment/date of allocation of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and

allotting Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures on such deemed date of
allotment/date of allocation;

negotiating, executing, filing and delivering any documents, instruments, deeds, amendments,

papers, applications, notices or letters as may be required in connection with the issue, offer

and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and dealing with
regulatory authorities in connection with the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any

Tranche/Issue of the Debentures including but not limited to the RBI, SEBI (if so required),

any Stock Exchange (if so required), the relevant registrar of companies, the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs, the relevant sub-registrar of assurances (if so required), Central Registry of

Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest and such other authorities as may be

required,

to execute all documents with, file forms with and submit applicattons to any Stock Exchange

(if so required), the relevant registrar of companies, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the

relevant sub-registrar of assurances (if so required), Central Registry of Securntisation Asset

Reconstruction and Security Interest or any depository;

to sign and/or dispatch all documents and notices to be signed and/or dispatched by the

Company under or in connection with the Transaction Documents;,

to take all steps and do all things and give such directions as may be required, necessary,

expedient or desirable for giving effect to the Transaction Documents, the transactions

contemplated therein and the resolutions mentioned herein, including without limitation, to
approve, negoliate, finalise, sign, execute, ratify, amend, supplement and/or 1ssue the following,
including any amendments, modifications, supplements, restatements or novations thereto

(now or in the future):

(1) the debt disclosure document/placement memorandum, the private placement offer
cum application letter, and/or any other offer document (including any prospectus) (as
may be required) for the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any
Tranche/Issue of the Debentures (the "Disclosure Documents”),

(1) the debenture trust deed, the debenture trustee agreement, the deed of hypothecation
and any other documents required for the creation of security interest over the
Company's movable properties and the providing of any other security/contractual
comfort, or the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentuses or any Tranche/Issue of the
Debentures (including any power(s) of attorney in connection thereto) and any other
document in relation thereto ((i) and (1) above are collectively referred to as the
“Transaction Documents”),
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()

the debenture certificate(s) for the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debenydfes,

(if required), \%
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(iv)  any other documents required for the purposes of the 1ssue, offer and allotment of the
Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and the transactions contemplated
thereby, including but not limited 1o letters of undertaking, declarations, agreements,
reports; and

(v) any other document designated as a Transaction Document by the relevant debenture
trustee/Debenture Holders,

(t) to pay stamp duty required to be paid for the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or
any Trancheflssue of the Debentures in accordance with the laws of Tndia;

(v) to do all acts necessary for the 1ssue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue
of the Debentures in accordance with the terms set out in the Disclosure Documents and the
Transaction Documents; and

(v) to generally do any other act or deed, to negotiate and execute any documents, applications,
agreements, undertak ings, deeds, affidavits, declarations and certificates n relation to the issue,
offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the Debentures and the
transactions contemplated thereby, and to give such directions as it deems fit or as may be
necessary or desirable in relation to the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any
Tranche/Issue of the Debentures *

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authonised Persons be and are hereby severally authonsed to
take all necessary steps relating to the creation, perfection and registration of charges and also to sign
and submit the necessary forms with the relevant registrar of companies, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the relevant sub-registrar of assurances (if so required), Central Registry of Seouritisation Asset
Reconstruction and Security Interest and other relevant governmental authorities.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally
authorised to record the name of the Debenture Holders in the register of debenture holders and to
undertake such other acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the issuance and
allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and the listing of the Debentures
or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures if and as and when required by the Debenture Holders."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised to maintain any separate
escrow account or any other bank account(s) with such bank(s) in India as may be required in connection
with the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and that
any one of Authonsed Persons, be and are hereby severally authorised to sign and execute any form(s)
and other documents required for opening the said account(s), to operate such account(s), and to give
such instructions ncluding closure theteof as may be required and deemed appropriate by them, and
that such bank(s) be and is/are hereby has been duly authonsed to honour all cheques and other

| negotiable instruments drawn, accepted or endorsed and instructions(including without limitation for
the purposes of recognizing the rights of the debenture trustee to operate such bank accounts, wherever
required) given by the aforesaid Authorised Persons on behalf of the Company "

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authonised to
delegate the powers to any other employee/representative/agent of the Company, as may be deemed
necessary to do such acts and execute such documents as may be required in connection with any of the
matters relating to the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the
Debentures."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board hereby approves and ratifies all such acts, deeds and
actions taken by the Company till date for the purpose of the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures
or any Tranche/Tssue of the Debentures.”

Registered and Corporate Office

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1, New Delhi - 110020, India
E-mail : info@satyamicrocapital.com | Web : www.satyamicrocapital.com
CIN : U74893DL1995PLCO68688 | Fax:[+91-1) 49724051 | Phone :( +91-11) 4972 4000
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the common seal of the Company be affixed to the stamped
engrossments of such documents, deeds, evidences, writings and undertakings and/or other related
papers, as may be required to be executed under the common seal of the Company in terms of the
Articles of Association of the Company ..

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Vandita Kaul, Chief Financial Officer and Choudhary Runveer
Krishanan, Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer of the Company, be and are hereby authorised,
singly and severally, to sign specific documents as may be required to be signed in their respective capacity.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copies of the foregaing resolutions certified to be true copies by

any director or the Company Secretary of the Company be furmished to such persons as may be deemed
necessary "

Certified True Copy %

For wA MI(_'I}
A oy S
Ay

(_?hc;udhary Runveer Krishanam
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
Membership No.: F 7437

Registered and Corporate Office

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -1, New Delhi - 110020, India
E-mail : info@satyamicrocapital.com | Web : www.satyarmicrocapital.com
CIN : U74899DL1935PLCO6BEE8 | Fax: (+91-11) 49724051 | Phone: ( +91-11) 4972 4000
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(iv)  any other documents required for the purposes of the issue, offer and allotment of the
Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the Debentures and the transactions contemplated
thereby, including but not limited to letters of undertaking, declarations, agreements,
reports, and

v) any other document designated as a Transaction Document by the relevant debenture
trustee/Debenture Holders,

(t) to pay stamp duty required to be paid for the 1ssue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or
any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures in accordance with the laws of India;

(u) 1o do all acts necessary for the 1ssue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue
of the Debentures in accordance with the terms set out in the Disclosure Documents and the
Transaction Documents; and

(v) to generally do any other act or deed, to negotiate and execute any documents, applications,
agreements, undertakings, deeds, affidavits, declarations and certificates in relation to the issue,
offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the Debentures and the
transactions contemplated thereby, and to give such directions as it deems fit or as may be
necessary or desirable in relation to the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any
Tranche/Issue of the Debentures

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authonsed Persons be and are hereby severally authonsed to
take all necessary steps relating to the creation, perfection and registration of charges and also to sign
and submit the necessary forms with the relevant registrar of companies, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the relevant sub-registrar of assurances (if so required), Central Registry of Securitisation Assct
Reconstruction and Security Interest and other relevant governmental authorities.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally
authorised to record the name of the Debenture Holders in the register of debenture holders and 10
undertake such other acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the issuance and
allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and the listing of the Debentures
or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures if and as and when required by the Debenture Holders "

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised to maintamn any separate
escrow account or any other bank account(s) with such bank(s) in India as may be required in connection
with the ssue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures and that
any one of Authorised Persons, be and are hereby severally authorised to sign and execute any form(s)
and other documents required for opening the said account(s), to operate such account(s), and to give
such instructions including closure thereof as may be required and deemed appropriate by them, and
that such bank(s) be and isfare hereby has been duly authonsed to honour all cheques and other
negotiable instruments drawn, accepted or endorsed and instructions(including without limitation for
the purposes of recognizing the rights of the debenture trustee to operate such bank accounts, wherever
required) given by the aforesaid Authonsed Persons on behalf of the Company "

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authonsed to
delegate the powers to any other employee/representative/agent of the Company, as may be deemed
necessary 10 do such acts and execute such documents as may be required in connection with any of the
matters relating to the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures or any Tranche/lssue of the
Debentures

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board hereby approves and ratifies all such acts, deeds and
actions taken by the Company till date for the purpose of the issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures
or any Tranche/Issue of the Debentures."

Registered and Corporate Office

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1, New Delhi - 110020, India
E-mail : info@satyamicrocapital.com | Web : www.satyamicrocapital.com
CIN ;: U74893DL1995PLCO68688 | Fax:[+91-11) 49724051 | Phone:{ +91-11) 4872 4000

169



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: November 29, 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

V" #) SAT YA MicroCapital Ltd.

w& vy gfer

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the common seal of the Company be affixed to the stamped
engrossments of such documents, deeds, evidences, writings and undertakings and/or other related
papers, as may be required to be exccuted under the common seal of the Company in terms of the
Articles of Association of the Company .*

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Vandita Kaul, Chief Financial Officer and Choudhary Runveer
Krishenan, Company Scorctary & Chief Compliance Officer of the Company, be and are hereby authorised,
singly and scverally, to sign specific documents as may be required to be signed in their respective capacity.

"RESOLYED FURTHER THAT the copies of the foregoing resolutions certified to be true copies by
any director or the Company Sccretary of the Company be furmished to such persons as may be deemed
necessary."

"z b~ ¢
Choudhary Runveer Krishanan

Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
@)/ Membership No.: F 7437

Registered and Corporate Office

519, Sth Floor, DLF Prime Tower, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -1, New Delhi - 110020, India
E-mall : info@satyamicrocapital.com | Web : www.satyamicrocapital.com
CIN : U74899DL1995PLC0O68688B | Fax:(+91-11) 48724051 | Phone:(+91-11) 4972 4000
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ANNEXURE IX: SHAREHOLDERS RESOLUTION

#) SATYA MicroCapital Ltd.

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT THE 3§ ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SATYA MICHOCAPITAL LIMITED HELD OF MOKDAY, 03°°
DAY OF JULY 023 AT 06:00 .M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE AT 515, STH FLOOR, DLF PRIME
\L AREA; PHASE-1, DELHI-11G020, INIMA,

SHESOLYED THAT parsumnt to the provisions of ssction E500L(a) atd otbes spplicabls provisions i any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 ard the Rules made thereunder, the condant of e memess of the Company be and is hershy
accorded, to the Boent of Directors o tee Compasy (bercimafter referred to as the "Hoard™ which terhs shall be
deemed 16 include sy Comeings duly conseiiuged by the Beard o any Commities, which the Board may hereafter
canstifube], o pledpe, mosgags and'or charge in all or sy part of the moveable or immovable propertiss of the
Company and the whale ar part of the undertaking of the Company of every nahare and kind whatsoever andfor
creating o floating charpe in all of any movable or immovable propenies of the Company and the whals of e
ursdzrtakivg of thie Camginy 1o oe in favoar of Banks, Financial Irstitutions, amy ather lenders of debentune trusiees
10 gecte e amoant borrowed by the Company o any third parly from LEme 8o s for the dws payment of the
Princigal together with inserest, charges, cosls, expenses and all other monies payabie by the Company or sy chind
party in respect of such borrowings provided et the maximum eent of the indebredness secured by the properies
of the Company does not exceed Ba, 100,000 méllkon (Rupees Gne Hundred Thowsand Williim onlyyal eny tlime,

HESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of Direciors and Company Secretary of the Company be and are bereby
severnlly avthorized to do such oots, deeds, things and execite afl swe b decisnents, underaicngs as may be recessany
fiar giving effect to the abave nesoluion”

R IMGS

SRESOLVED THAT pursuani ba the provisiens of sectlon 10{1)(<} and ather sppliable provisicons iFany, of the
Camipanies Act, 2013 and the Roles made theseursder, the consent of the members of the Comparty bo s i henedy
socorded 1o the Board of Directors of the Company (her=inafier refermed to 85 the “Board” which terms shall be
deemed to inchads sy commities duly constituted by the Board), 1o raise of bierow from Hme to time such sum or
sams as they may deem appropriste Tor the purpoass of the business of the Company notwithstmd mg that the smondes
alresdy. boerowed and the Bronies 1o be bamowsd (apart from temporary Joans ebtained from Company’s benkers
i e ordimaery course of business) will exceed the Paid-up Capital of the Company knd Free Reserves of the
Company;, nod sef apan for any specific parpose, and Securities Praitium Accourd, provided thet the tofal amouan
up i which mennies miy be bomowed by the Board of Dinecions stall vt exeeed R, 100,000 million (Rupees Cne
Humdred Thousnd Milan oaly) 6 any i,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Cempany be and are herehy

suthorized o do such acis, deeds, things and execuio all such doconents, endertakings 2 may be necesasy for
piving effect ie the sbove reselation™

Certified o be true copy.

w_:—
.1: -;,'
Chowdhary Runveer Krishansn I"\-'." —
Company Secreiary & Chiel Compigice-Cificer
Memberahip Mo; FT437

Fegistared and Corporate Oifine

517, 57 Floo, DLF Prime Towars, Olinta industrial Ares, Phese - 1 New Dein -70020, nda
E-mai : infofsatyamicraCapitalost | Wab : wwewsatyamicraCapitalcom
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT THE 28™ ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SATYA MICROCAFITAL LIMITED HELD ON MONDAY,
B3RP DAY OF JULY 2003, AT 06:00 F.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE AT 519, STH FLOOR,
DLF PRIME TOWERS, DKHLA INDUSTRIAL AREA, PHASE-1, DELHI-110020, INDIA.

“RESOLYED THAT pursuant to the provision of Sections 42 and 75 of the Campanies Act, 201 3 and Ruls
142} of Companies {Prospoctua and ANl of Hecurities) Rules, 2014 (nchiding amy stafHory
madification]s), ansendmentis) o n bereaf Far the time being i foree) ond subjest to all oiber
applicalie regulations, nules, potifications, circulars and guidelines prescribed by the Securitics Exchangs
Board ef [ndia ("SEBI"), as smended, incloding SEBI (lssie and Listing of Nog-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021, ns amended, SEBT [Listing Obligation and Disclosurs Requirements) Reguliastions, 2005,
s amended, and subject 0 the applicable regulations, mles, notifications, ciroulars and guidelines prescribed
by Reserve Bank of ladsa (“RBI7) and in accordnnee with the relevast provisions of the Memorandum snd
Articles of Assoeiation of the Compeny, the consent of the membess of the Company be and is herehy
accorded 1o the Board of Dirsetors (hereliafter rafierred 10 as the “Boand” which terms sholl be decmed o
include any Commites duly comstitaled by the Boord or any Commitiee, which the Board may hereafter
congtitted, o Beuefofferinovide for suheeription of securediamsscured, ated/unrated, Datediamlisted Nan-
Comvertible Debentures {“Debentures™) by woy of private placensent, in one or mone tranches, from time to
Lime, 10 any category of investors eligile to invess in the Debentures, agerepating upto B, 15,000 Million
{Rupees Thirty-Five Thousand Mitlion andy) an sech terms asd conditions and a8 such tinses whethes a1
par/premivm/discount, s may be decided By the Board to such person or persons including one or more
eomphny(ies), body Corporstes), siriwtory corparationis), commerciel Bankis), Lending Agency(ies),
Fisancial [nsttetion(s), insarance compamyiics), foneign portfolio investon’s), muomual fusds)  amd
individmalis), Abernative Invesbtment Furd, a8 the sese may be or such other person persons as the Boerd
mity decide 50 for p period of ooe year from the date of 2pproval of the members, within the overal! borrwing
limits of the Company, oz approved by the members of the Company from s to time:

RESOLYED FURTHER THAT sy Direcior or the Compeny Secretary of the Company be and ars hereby
authurised to de ol suck: acts, deeds, maticrs and things as may be desmed necessary, desirahle, o or
expedient far the purpoae of giving effect to this Resabutions and for metters: connected therewith or
incidental thereto.”

Certifled to be true copy,

For S.'\T\"tmi.rrnﬂ;piT Limited

=

Company Seeretary & Chicf Complinnce Chficer
Membership Mo FT437

Registarad and Corporate Oifice

51,57 Floor, BLF Prima Towars, Oldvia Industrial Area, Phiase - 1. Hew Defi 110020, India
E-mial : infEsanmmicroCagital com | Wels | wivw satyarmicroCapstal.oom
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